RESILIENT BY DESIGN
Resilience is not by chance, it is by design. A
resilient structure is one that is built on a strong
foundation. Our foundation is our core value –
Putting Customers First. We have strengthened
our organizational structure by investing
significantly in digitizing every layer and process
of the organization. In the last year, digital
initiatives such as virtual customer engagement,
Business Continuity Plan & remote working
tools and e-Learning enabled our staff to deliver
customer success effectively, even in times of
extreme stress. As new technologies emerge and
customer touch points increase, we will continue
to invest in upgrading our systems and launching
new initiatives with customer centric approach.
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Snapshot of Results

Gross Loan Portfolio (₹ Mn)
Revenue (₹ Mn)
Profit After Tax (₹ Mn)
Net NPA% (PAR > 90 days)
Efficiency (OPEX/AUM)
Active Borrowers
Branches
Geographical Presence

FY 2018

FY 2019

FY 2020

Growth

11,842

18,796

19,732

4.98%

2,331

3,861

4,755

23.15%

398

855

796

-6.90%

Nil

0.35%

0.58%

6.19%

5.04%

5.65%

688,546

956,712

1,215,315

276

357

464

Tamil Nadu,
Puducherry,
Karnataka
Maharashtra,
Kerala,
Bihar,
and Orissa

Tamil Nadu,
Puducherry,
Karnataka
Maharashtra,
Kerala,
Bihar,
and Orissa

Tamil Nadu,
Puducherry,
Karnataka
Maharashtra,
Kerala,
Bihar, Orissa
and West
Bengal

Note:
Figures for FY 2019 are as revised under Ind AS. GLP for FY2018 includes securitised portfolio
Branch count includes branches under Business Correspondent model

REVENUE (₹ Mn)

Gross Loan Portfolio (₹ Mn)
19,732

4,755

18,796

3,861

2,331

11,842

1,794

8,226

1,187

5,531

2016
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LETTER FROM

CHAIRPERSON
Dear Shareholders,
I have been associated with Madura Microfinance only since April 30, 2020, when I was inducted
on the Company’s board as an independent director. It is indeed a privilege to be the Chairman
of this 14-year-old illustrious organisation, which has a rich pedigree, built on the bedrock of
trust, values and ethics. I am greatly honoured by the trust and confidence reposed in me by the
Company’ shareholders and the Board.
Over the last few months, as the country has been battling the Covid-19 pandemic, like every
business in our country, we have been going through tough times. It is important for us all to
stay safe and overcome this pandemic. I hope and pray that we all continue to live healthy lives.
As you are aware, Madura Microfinance has now been acquired by CreditAccess and as an
entity under the common management, we believe will bring us more benefits and a newer,
richer work culture, a larger client base and a whole lot of benefits that will make us stronger
and a name to reckon with in the microfinance industry.
As a group entity, it will create opportunities for a larger client base and geographical
diversification, strengthen our competitive positioning as a leader and accelerate growth. In
effect, we are adding a year of organic growth into our system with this liaison. CreditAccess
and Madura Microfinance will work towards greater synergies, combining effective work
cultures, thought processes and technology to create a new healthy environment with greater
productivity.
As we start on this new journey together, I wish all of us a great and fruitful year ahead. Together
we will scale greater heights, cross bigger barriers, serving a larger audience and make a
difference to many more lives. Once again, I thank all the stakeholders of Madura Microfinance,
especially the honourable Board members, employees and clients for contributing to our
success.

George Joseph
Chairperson
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LETTER FROM

MANAGING DIRECTOR
Dear Shareholders,
This year marks a turning point in Madura’s journey in many ways.
In March 2020 Madura was acquired by Credit Access Grameen Ltd (CAGL) and will merge with
the company. Together they will represent the largest MFI platform in the country. CAGL shares
many of the same values as Madura with respect to transparency, cost efficiency, financial
prudence, a commitment to the betterment of its customers and a strong people orientation.
CAGL as an NBFC-MFI maintains the focus firmly on rural microfinance, which will allow
Madura’s core strengths and markets to continue serving the rural population in line with its
mission. Further both organizations have developed different areas of strength which provides
a complementarity that can be leveraged to create a combined organization that is more than
the sum of the parts. With the scale of the combined entity, the company will be in a much more
competitive position with the opportunity to shape the course of the industry and mitigate risks
associated with geographic concentration as well as funding, all factors that can be significant
concerns in distressed market environments. In addition, there are many economies of scale
and cost advantages that translates into greater benefits to the customer.
However, we entered this phase at an unprecedented time in history. The global Covid-19
pandemic has given rise to an enormous number of economic repercussions. The need for
microfinance will be greater than ever as the world finds its way through this pandemic to
rebuild itself. Equally, the resilience of the organization will be put to test. The efforts put in
to build a data and technology driven platform over the past years now serves it well, allowing
many of its staff to work from home as well keep a pulse on the ground situation and stay in close
touch with customers. Its CSR program, focused on health, has enabled needed information
outreach on Covid-19 in addition to a number of other health issues that persist through the
pandemic.
Despite various setbacks from coming into the year on the heels of the devastation from
multiple cyclones and ﬂoods across India and ending the year in lockdown due to Covid-19, this
continued to be a year of growth for Madura. Madura’s GLP grew 4.98% to Rs. 1973.2 Crores
and Profit After Tax remained strong at Rs. 79.6 Crores. The company, as part of CAGL, remains
committed to its mission to bring productive capital into rural India and looks optimistically to
rebuilding after the Covid-19 lockdown.
This also marks my last year as Chairman and Managing Director of Madura and I thank you all
both personally, and on behalf of Madura, for your contributions to this journey.

Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

Letter from Managing Director
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Directors’ Report
Dear Members,
Your Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting the Fifteenth Annual Report together with the Audited
Financials of your Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.
Financial highlights (Under Ind AS)

(₹ In Lakhs)
Financial Highlights

Details

Revenue from operations
Other Income
Profit Before Interest,
Tax, Depreciation and
Amortization
Depreciation and
Amortization

Standalone

Consolidated

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

47110.67

38086.26

47151.18

38154.38

439.02

522.90

439.19

522.90

30696.13

27525.65

30701.91

27,558.36

499.25

335.61

511.40

358.90

Interest Expense (Net)

19539.16

14976.87

19549.50

14991.54

Profit Before Tax

10657.72

12213.16

10641.01

12207.92

Tax Expense (Current Tax)

2826.61

4004.07

2826.61

4004.07

Total Comprehensive
Income

7962.52

8552.89

7945.51

8546.67

Amount transferred to
Statutory Reserve

1593.00

1611.00

1593.00

1611.00

Standalone Financial Statements:
During the year under review, your Company registered revenue from operations of Rs. 47,110.67 lakhs as against
Rs.38,086.26 lakhs in the previous year, a growth of 23.70%. The PBITDA for the year was Rs.30,696.13 lakhs as
compared to Rs.27,525.65 lakhs in the previous year, a growth of 11.52%.
Consolidated Financial Statements:
During the year under review, your Company registered revenue from operations of Rs.47,151.18 lakhs as against
Rs.38,154.38 lakhs in the previous year, a growth of 23.58%. The PBITDA for the year was Rs.30,701.91 lakhs as
compared to Rs.27,558,36 lakhs in the previous year, a growth of 11.41 %.
Business Overview
During the year, the Company has provided Entry Level Loans to 404,833 new Self-Help Groups, Activity Term
Loans to 146,858 existing Groups, Certified Activity Term Loan to 9,529 Self-Help Group members and Business
Development Loan to 42,305 members. Overall, the Company has disbursed an additional 603,525 SHG Loans in FY
20, providing financial assistance amounting to Rs.1858 crores.
The Assets under Management (AUM) as on March 31, 2020 was Rs. 2110.27 crores, representing an increase of
7.82% over the previous year. Interest rates on SHG Loans were reduced by 69 basis points during the year.
New Locations - Branch Nos
During the year, the Company has opened a total of 104 new Branches including 30 new Branches in Tamil Nadu,
26 in Maharashtra, 6 in Karnataka, 13 in Kerala, 12 in Bihar, 6 in Odisha and 11 in West Bengal. In addition, 5
Branches in Tamil Nadu were opened under the business correspondent model. With 74 branches outside of Tamil
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Nadu, Madura’s national footprint spanned to 33 Districts within Tamil Nadu / Pondicherry and 41 Districts in other
States by the end of FY20. 43 % of new loans sanctioned in FY20 were from States other than Tamil Nadu driving
geographic diversification.
Capital Adequacy
The Capital to Risk Asset Ratio was 23.01% as on March 31, 2020 as against the minimum requirement of 15%
stipulated by RBI. The Net Owned Funds as on that date was Rs. 388 Crores.
Subsidiary
The Company’s subsidiary M/s Madura Micro Education Private Limited has provided skill development training to
9018 students during the year. The revenue from operations of the subsidiary was Rs.83.36 lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2020.
The details of the subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached as Annexure.
Major Corporate Actions
a) Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures
The Company has issued and allotted 360 Rated, Unlisted, Secured, Redeemable 11% Unlisted Non-Convertible
Debentures of Rs.10,00,000/- each for a total nominal value of Rs.36 crores on Private Placement Basis in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
b) Redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures
The Company has redeemed 150 Rated, Listed, Unsecured, 11.40% Listed Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of Rs.10,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs.15 crores as per the terms of issue and in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
c) Foreclosure of External Commercial Borrowings
The Company has prematurely closed the External Commercial Borrowings of USD 4,000,000 on final payment
of USD 2,707,022 to M/s World Business Capital, Inc, USA, which includes Principal and Interest and made the
necessary filings with Reserve Bank of India in compliance with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management
Act, 1999.
d) Transfer of Shares
Pursuant to the execution of Share Purchase Agreements dated November 27, 2019 by the Promoters, KMP, Major
Shareholders and others, 76.08% of the paid-up Capital of the Company have been acquired by M/s CreditAccess
Grameen Limited (CAGL), Bangalore, a Non-Banking Financial Company.
Consequently, effective March 18, 2020, your Company has become a Subsidiary of CAGL.
e) Amalgamation of the Company
Your Directors have approved a Scheme of Amalgamation of the Company with M/s CreditAccess Grameen Limited
(CAGL), Transferee Company, effective March 2, 2019 under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,
subject to obtaining the necessary approvals from the Shareholders, Reserve Bank of India, Securities Exchange
Board of India, National Company Law Tribunal, Lending Institutions and others.
Vigil Mechanism
In compliance with the procedure laid down under the Vigil Mechanism as required under Section 177(9) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a secured Vigil Mechanism which provides the procedures for:
i)

Receiving, retaining and treating complaints received;

ii)

Confidential, anonymous submission by Employees / Directors of complaints regarding questionable
accounting or auditing matters, conduct which results in a violation of law by Company or in a substantial
mismanagement of Company resources;

iii)

Reporting genuine concerns by the Employees and Directors;
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iv)

Adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use vigil mechanism.

Events Subsequent to the date of Financial Statements
No material changes and commitments have occurred affecting the financial position of the Company after March
31, 2020 till the date of this Report.
Dividend
In order to conserve resources for operations and future growth, your Directors do not recommend any dividend
for the year under review.
Transfer to Reserves
As required under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, an amount equivalent to 20 % of the Profit
after Tax Rs.1593 lakhs has been transferred to the Statutory Reserve Account.
Deposits
Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
Order of the Court
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the status of the
Company’s operations as a going concern.
RBI Guidelines
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) granted the Certificate of Registration to the Company in February 2006 vide
Registration No. N.07.00754, to commence the business of a Non-Banking Financial Institution without accepting
deposits. The Company was converted into NBFC-MFI with effect from December 2013. Your Company is a
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND-SI). The Company has
complied with and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and directions of the RBI.
Board Evaluation
The Board of Directors have carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board, Committees and
individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(p) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Performance evaluation criteria for Board, Committees of the Board and Directors were approved by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Board. The main criteria on which the evaluations were carried out were (i)
Contribution to Board’s discussions on varied issues related to strategy, risk, business performance and continuity,
(ii) Awareness of and guidance on norms relating to corporate governance, disclosure and legal compliances, (iii)
Contribution by way of new ideas / insights on business management and growth, (iv) Deliberations on issues that
the Management and Board should consider, and (v) Level of independence and non-partisan approach in decision
making.
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Policy
As required under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
Policy has been formulated relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other
Employees. The Policy has been approved by the Board and the same has been displayed at the Company’s website
(maduramicrofinance.com).
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Your Directors state:
i)

That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards has been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii)

That we have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

25

Directors’ Report & Annexures

Directors’ Report
Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;
iii)

That proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv)

That the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

v)

That proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively; and

vi)

That proper internal financial controls were laid down, and that such internal financial controls are adequate
and were operating effectively.

Corporate Governance
Your Company has been complying with the principles of good corporate governance over the years and is committed
to the highest standards of compliance. The composition of the Board and its Committees are in confirmation with
the various Rules and Regulations as applicable to the Company.
Listing Compliance
The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and its amendments and the Debt Listing Agreement entered
by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited in respect of all the Series of Secured / Unsecured NonConvertible Debentures issued by the Company.
Declaration by Independent Directors
The Company has received necessary Declarations of independence from each of its Independent Directors under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he / she meets the criteria of Independent Director as envisaged
in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are not disqualified from continuing as Independent Directors.
Registration in the Databank of Independent Directors
As per the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth Amendment Rules, 2019, every
Independent Director who was already appointed or proposed to be appointed, is required to apply with the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) for inclusion of his name in the Data Bank of Independent Directors.
As per the above rules, Your Company’s Independent Directors have enrolled with IICA and complied with the
provisions of the Rules.
Development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy
The Company has devised, developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy, upon which the Company
ensures that the activities are undertaken in a risk-mitigated environment.
Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements
The Company has implemented and evaluated Internal Financial Controls, which provide a reasonable assurance
of providing financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes and policies, safeguarding of
assets, prevention and detection of frauds and accuracy and completeness of accounting records. The Directors and
Management confirm that the Internal Financial Controls (IFC) are adequate with respect to the operations of the
Company. Further, the Board annually reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Control System.
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
During the year under review, Mr. Sandeep Farias, Ms. Kavitha Vijay, Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa, Mr. R Ramaraj, Mr.
Ashok Mirza and Mr. Ajit Thomas, Directors have resigned from the Board. Your Directors place on record their
appreciation of the valuable contribution made by them during their tenure of office.
During the year under review, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Paolo Brichetti, Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar, Mr.
Diwakar BR, Mr. George Joseph and Mr. Manoj Kumar as Additional Directors. Their appointment was approved by
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the members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on May 29, 2020 under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.
Presently, the Board of Directors comprise of eight Directors.
Name of the Director
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
Mr. F S Mohan Eddy
Mr. Paolo Brichetti
Mr. George Joseph
Mr. Manoj Kumar
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar
Mr. Ram Diwakar Boddupalli

Designation
Managing Director
Independent Director
Whole-time Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director & Chairman
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Key Managerial Personnel
As per the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the following Officers of the Company were designated as
the Whole-Time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan		
Mr. M. Narayanan		
Mr. V Balakrishnan		

Managing Director
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer

Board Meetings & Attendance
During the year, the Board of Directors of your Company met 7 times. The Board Meetings were held on 27.5.2019,
2.8.2019, 9.10.2019, 27.11.2019, 2.12.2019, 19.2.2020 and 18.3.2020. The maximum interval between any two
Meetings did not exceed 120 days as prescribed under 173(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
The details of attendance of the Directors for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Name of the Director

Attended
Held

Attended

Ms. Tara Thiagarajan

7

6

Mr. N C Sarabeswaran

7

7

Mr. R Ramaraj

7

5

Mr. Ashok Mirza

7

4

Mr. F S Mohan Eddy

7

6

Mr. Sandeep Farias

7

3

Mr. Ajit Thomas

7

7

Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa

7

5

Ms. Kavitha Vijay

7

6

Retirement by Rotation of Directors
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar and Mr. Ram Diwakar Boddupalli, Directors retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. Your Directors recommend their
reappointment.
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Committees
S. No.

Name of the Committee

Members

1.

Audit Committee

Mr. N C Sarabeswaran, Chairman
Mr. George Joseph
Mr. Paolo Brichetti

2.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Manoj Kumar, Chairman
Mr. George Joseph
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
Ms. Paolo Brichetti

3.

Risk Management Committee

Mr. N C Sarabeswaran, Chairman
Mr. Manoj Kumar
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar

4.

Asset Liability Management Committee

Mr. George Joseph, Chairman
Mr. Diwakar B R
Mr. M. Narayanan
Mr. Paolo Brichetti

5.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Ms. Tara Thiagarajan, Chairman
Mr. Paolo Brichetti
Mr. Manoj Kumar

6.

IT Strategy Committee

Mr. Manoj Kumar, Chairman
Mr. F S Mohan Eddy
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar
Mr. Rajiv R G

7.

Borrowing Committee

Mr. F S Mohan Eddy, Chairman
Mr. M. Narayanan
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar
Mr. Diwakar B R

Overall Remuneration
Details of remuneration as required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure and forms part of
this Report.
Statutory Auditors
In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of your Company at the Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2017, for a term of five
consecutive years subject to ratification at every Annual General Meeting at a remuneration recommended by the
Audit Committee.
However, the same was amended through the Companies (Amendment Act, 2017) notified on May 7, 2018, which
dispensed with the requirement of ratification at every AGM.
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The Company has received a certificate from M/s PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP, Chartered Accountants, confirming
that they continue to be compliant with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Report of the Statutory Auditor forming part of the Annual Report, does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.
However, they mentioned the following two points in the Emphasis Matters:
1.

Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (RBI) issuing ‘COVID-19 Regulatory Package-Asset classification and
Provisioning’ on 17th April 2020, the Company has granted a three month moratorium and consequential
asset classification benefit until May 31st 2020 to its borrowers. As at 31st March 2020, for determination of
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provisioning , the ageing of these Loans and Advances and their Asset Classification
will remain unchanged as per the Regulatory package. Moreover, the estimates and assumptions made by
management in determining the ECL provision required for its loans are subject to uncertainties that are
associated with the outcome of the pandemic. Hence, the actual results may vary from these estimates. Refer
Note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Management response:
The Company is closely monitoring the developments that are happening due to COVID-19. Collections have started picking up from June 2020. The Company has been assessing the situation, shall provide additional provision, if
necessary, as and when required.
2.

The appointment and payment of remuneration to the Managing Director for the period from October
2013 to September 2016 is subject to the approval of the Central Government. A sum of Rs.132.50 lakhs
(excluding gratuity) had been paid as remuneration to the Managing Director for this period subject to Central
Government approval and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the respective years. Refer Note 39
to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Management response:
The Company has received the approvals from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), New Delhi for the
appointment of Ms. Tara Thiagarajan as the Managing Director of the Company for the first term commencing from
26.2.2012 to 25.2.2015 as well as the current term from 1.10.2016 to 30.9.2021.
In connection with the approval of revision of the terms and conditions of appointment for the interim term from
1.10.2013 to 30.9.2016, the Company has filed the requisite application and provided all the necessary documents
and information to the Central Government. The approval has been delayed at MCA due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic and the Company is confident of getting the approval as soon as the situation improves.
Secretarial Auditor
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. V Ramasubramanian,
Practising Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.
The Secretarial Audit Report obtained from Mr. V Ramasubramanian, Practising Company Secretary is attached as
Annexure and forms a part of this Report.
There were no qualifications in the Report of the Secretarial Auditor and only suggested the Company to obtain
the approval of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) in respect of the revision of terms and conditions of
appointment of Ms. Tara Thiagarajan as the Managing Director of the Company for the period commencing from
1.10.2013 to 30.9.2016, which has been delayed at MCA due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Outgo
The particulars prescribed under clause (m) of sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the following:
The Company is engaged in the business of micro financing to Self-Help Groups and lending Business Development
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Loans to them. The Company has been taking its best efforts to conserve and optimize the use of energy, wherever
possible. There is no Foreign Technology used in the business operations.
During the year, the Company did not have any Foreign Exchange Earnings and had an outgo of Rs.2138 Lakhs.
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments:
During the year under review, the Company has not given any Loans / Guarantees or provided any security as
covered under provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the Company has made investments
in Mutual Funds in compliance with the provisions of the Act as per the details given below:
Name of the Fund

No. of Units

UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Growth

Investment Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

138,460.162

3,502 (Net)

Closing Balance as at March 31, 2020: Rs. 45.02
Loan given to wholly owned Subsidiary:
M/s Madura Micro Education Private Limited - Rs. 142 lakhs
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the CSR Committee
has been constituted and has recommended a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) that has been
approved by the Board.
For the Financial Year 2019-20, your Company is required to spend an amount of Rs.172.40 lakhs. The detailed
Report on CSR is attached as Annexure.
Related Party Transactions
All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 were on an
arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.
The particulars of contracts or arrangements with Related Parties referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188
entered by the Company during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 is annexed hereto as Annexure in Form
AOC-2.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The Management discussion and analysis report is annexed hereto as Annexure.
Extract of Annual Return
As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, the Extract
of Annual Return of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 has been displayed in the Company’s Website:
www.maduramicrofinance.com
Secretarial Standards
During the year, your Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards
issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Employees’ Particulars in terMs. of Section 134 read with Rules of the Companies Act, 2013
The details required to be disclosed under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are enclosed in
this Report.
Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013
The Company has in place a policy in line with requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
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(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 that covers all employees. An Internal Complaints Committee
has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. No complaints regarding sexual
harassment have been received during the financial year.
Acknowledgement
Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to all employees for their hard work,
spirited efforts, dedication and loyalty to the Company which has helped the Company maintain its growth.
The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the support extended by the Reserve Bank of
India, other regulatory and Government bodies, Company’s Auditors, Customers, Bankers, Financial Institutions,
Promoters and Shareholders.

Chennai
For and on behalf of the Board		
June 25, 2020
		
George Joseph
Tara Thiagarajan
Chairman
Managing Director
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report
1.

Company’s CSR Policy:

i)

Madura Micro Finance Limited (MMFL) in alignment with its vision, will continue to enhance value through
its CSR initiatives and promote social sustainability, sustainable development of the environment and social
welfare of the people and society at large, more specifically for the deprived and underprivileged persons.

ii)

This policy encompasses the Company’s philosophy for giving back to society as a corporate citizen and lays
down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking programmes for the welfare& sustainable development
of the community at large, is titled as the “MMFL CSR Policy”.

iii)

In keeping with the Company’s belief in the social and economic benefits of promoting community health
including cognitive health and preventive healthcare, its CSR initiatives were focused on these areas.

2.

Composition of the CSR Committee
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
Mr. Paolo Brichetti
Mr. Manoj Kumar

3.

Chairman
Member
Member

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years:
Financial Year

Net Profit Before Tax and exceptional items computed as per
Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Rs. In Lakhs)

2018-19

13,537.70

2017-18

6,815.50

2016-17

5,507.40

Total

25,860.60

Average Net Profit for the
last 3 years

8,620.20

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs.172.40 lakhs

5.

Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year:
a) Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year: Rs.172.40 lakhs
b) Amount spent: Rs.132.46 lakhs
c) Amount unspent: Rs.39.94 lakhs
d) The manner in which the amount was spent during the financial year is attached below.

6.

In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its
Board Report:
The Company could not spend the balance amount of Rs.39.94 lakhs since the Company is in the process of
identifying suitable projects and is confident of spending the same during the current Financial Year.

7.

A Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy
is in compliance with CSR Objectives of and Policy of the Company:
We hereby declare that the implementation of the CSR policy is in compliance with CSR Objective and Policy
of the Company.
Tara Thiagarajan
Chairman
CSR Committee

Chennai
June 25, 2020
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S.
No.

CSR project
or activity
identified

Sector in
which the
project is
covered

Projects or programs
(1) Local area or
other
(2) Specify the State
and district where
projects or programs
was undertaken

Amount
outlay
(budget)
project or
program
wise
(INR in
Mn.)

Amount spent on the
projects or programs
(INR in Mn.)

Direct

Overhead

Cumulative
expenditure
up to the
reporting
period
(INR in Mn.)

1.

Collaborative
Research on
Cognitive Health
Development

Promoting
health care
including
preventive
healthcare

Rewari, Haryana

10.00

10.00

NIL

10.00

2.

Medical
Camps & Tree
plantation
activities

Promoting
health care
including
preventive
healthcare,
Eradicating
hunger,
Disaster
management
and Ensuring
environmental
sustainability

Tamil Nadu:
Trichy, Ariyalur,
Perambalur,
Tiruvannamalai,
Villupuram,
Krishnagiri,
Dharamapuri,
Tanjore, Madurai,
Virudhunagar,
Ramanathapuram,
Sivagangai,
Pudukottai, Theni,
Dindigul, Tirunelveli,
Salem, Namakkal,
Tirupur, Kanyakumari,
Tiruvarur,
Nagapattinam,
Cuddalore,
Kallakurichi,
Chidambaram,
Chennai.
Maharashtra:
Pune, Kolhapur,
Ahmednagar, Solapur,
Jalgaon, Dhule and
Aurangabad.
Karnataka:
Dharwad, Koppal,
Belgaum, Gadag and
Bellary.
Kerala:
Thiruvananthapuram,
Pathanamthitta,
Kottayam, Palakkad,
Trissur & Kollam
Odisha:
Cuttack,
Jagatsinghpur, Khurda
Bihar:
Patna, Muzaffarpur
and Vaishali

3.25

1.87

1.38

3.25

Chennai
June 25, 2020
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Amount
Spent:
Directly or
through
implementing
agency. *
* details
of implementing
agency
* Sangath
(Reach)
Project

For and on behalf of the board
Tara Thiagarajan
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint
Ventures for the year ended March 31, 2020
Part-A: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in ₹)
S. No

Particulars

Details

1.

Name of the subsidiary

2.

Date since when subsidiary was acquired/ incorporated

Madura Micro Education Private Limited

3.

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different
from the Holding Company’s reporting period

N.A.

4.

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial Year in the case of Foreign
Subsidiaries

N.A.

31.3.2016

5.

Share Capital

6.

Reserves & Surplus

1,49,00,000

7.

Total Assets

13,92,905

8.

Total Liabilities

13,92,905

9.

Investments

10.

Turnover

83,53,628

11.

Profit Before Taxation / (Loss)

21,81,870

12.

Provision for Taxation

13.

Profit / (Loss) after Taxation

14.

Proposed Dividend

15.

Extent of shareholding (in %)

(3,63,88,950)

Nil

Nil
21,52,182
NIL
100%

Part-B: Associates and Joint Ventures: Nil
Chennai
June 25, 2020

For Madura Micro Finance Limited
George Joseph
Chairman
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Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director
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Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction
under third proviso thereto for the year ended March 31, 2020.
1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
S. No

2.
a)

Particulars

Details

1.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of the relationship

Nil

2.

Nature of contracts/agreements/transaction

Nil

3.

Salient features of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Nil

4.

Justification for entering in to such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Nil

5.

Date of approval by the Board

Nil

6.

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

7.

Date on which a special resolution was passed in General Meeting as required
under first proviso to section 188

Nil

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
S. No

Particulars

1.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of the
relationship

Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited

2.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Subscription of user licenses.

3.

Duration of contracts/arrangements/transaction

As per product terms and conditions.

4.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any

To explore the Scisphere platform for data
analytics. Amount paid: INR 200.88 lakhs

5.

Date of approval by the Board

27.5.2019
2.8.2019
2.12.2019
19.2.2020

6.

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil
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b)
S. No

Particulars

Details

1.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of the
relationship

Ms. Pamela Mohan
(Spouse of Mr. F S Mohan Eddy)

2.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Lease Agreement

3.

Duration of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Twelve months

4.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any

To use the residential property on rental basis.
Amount paid: INR 18.00

5.

Date of approval by the Board

2.8.2019

6.

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

c)
S. No

Particulars

Details

1.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of the
relationship

a) Ms. Tara Thiagarajan, MD
b) Mr. F S Mohan Eddy, WTD
c) Mr. M. Narayanan, CEO

2.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Employment / Contract

3.

Duration of contracts/arrangements/transaction

a) 1.10.2016 to 30.9.2021
b) 1.10.2019 to 30.9.2022
c) Employment

4.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements
or transaction including the value, if any

Amount Paid:
a) Rs.104.63 lakhs
b) Rs.124.65 lakhs
c) Rs.100.37 lakhs

5.

Date of approval by the Board

a) 28.7.2016
b) 2.8.2019
c) N.A.

6.

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Annexure III
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d)

S. No

Particulars

Details

1.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of the
relationship

M/s. Madura Micro Education Private Limited
(100% subsidiary)

2.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

To repay the Loan to National Skill Development
Corporation along with accumulated interest and
other operational requirements.

3.

Duration of Contracts/arrangements/transaction

No specific duration

4.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any

Amount paid: INR 1,42,00,000

5.

Date of approval by the Board

19.2.2020

6.

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Chennai
June 25, 2020

For Madura Micro Finance Limited

George Joseph
Chairman

37

Annexure III

Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

Annexure IV
Form No MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended 31st March 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To
The Members
M/s Madura Micro Finance Limited
No. 36, II Main Road
Kasturba Nagar
Adyar
Chennai 600 020
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by M/s Madura Micro Finance Limited (CIN: U65929TN2005PLC057390) (the
“Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents and Authorized
Representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2020 according to the provisions of:
1.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

2.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;

3.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

4.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent
applicable to Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) and External Commercial Borrowings (ECB);
On 20th March 2020, the Company has repaid in full the External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) availed from
M/s WorldBusiness Capital, Inc., USA on payment of the entire outstanding Principal of USD 2,665,600 and
Interest of USD 41,422 and filed the requisite Returns with RBI in compliance with the provisions of Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999.

5.

The Following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (SEBI Act):
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, and The
Debt Listing Agreement with BSE Limited.

6.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association; and

Annexure IV
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7.

Other applicable Laws:
a)

The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

b)

The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

c)

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

d)

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

e)

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

f)

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

g)

The Tamilnadu Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1972

h)

The Tamilnadu Shops and Establishment Act, 1947

I have also examined the compliance with the applicable mandatory clauses of the following:
i)

Secretarial Standards (SS) SS-1 for Board Meetings and SS-2 for General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

ii)

The Debt Listing Agreement entered by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited in respect of the
Secured / Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company.
During the period under audit, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:
Though the Company has received the approvals from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), New Delhi for the
appointment of Ms Tara Thiagarajan as the Managing Director of the Company under Section 196 read with Clause (e) of
Part I of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and 1956 for the first term commencing from 26.2.2012 to 25.2.2015 as
well as the current term from 1.10.2016 to 30.9.2021, the Company is yet to receive the approval from MCA for the revision
of terms and conditions of her appointment for the interim period commencing from 1.10.2013 to 30.9.2016.
It was observed that MCA has already condoned the delay in submitting the application for the above revision in terms and
conditions of her appointment. The Company has also confirmed that there is no additional information / documents are
pending to be given by them and it is only due to the administrative delay due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the
approval is yet to be received from MCA.
Hence, the Company is advised to closely follow up with MCA and obtain the approval of the Central Government for the
above period and regularize the compliance at the earliest.
I further report that:
Pursuant to the execution of Share Purchase Agreements on 27th November 2019 by the Promoters, KMP,
Major Shareholders and others, 76.08% of the paid-up Capital of the Company have been acquired by M/s
CreditAccess Grameen Limited (CAGL), Bangalore, a Non-Banking Financial Company.
Consequently, effective 18th March 2020, the Company has become a Subsidiary of CAGL.
Consequent to the transfer of shares and the approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation by the Board of Directors
for the proposed amalgamation of the Company with M/s Credit Access Grameen Limited (CAGL), the Board of
Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee and other Committees of
the Company were extensively reconstituted on 18th March 2020 with proper balance of Executive Directors, NonExecutive Directors and Independent Directors, as required under the Act.
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Adequate notice was given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committees, Agenda and
detailed notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the Agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part
of the Minutes.
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and
Guidelines.
I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:
i)

Public / Right / Preferential Issue of Shares etc.
However, the Company has issued and allotted 360 Rated, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Transferable, Taxable
Non-Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs.10,00,000 each at an interest rate not exceeding 11% p.a.
aggregating to Rs.36 crores on 27th November 2019 on Private Placement, which was in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company.

ii)

Redemption / Buy-Back of Securities:
The Company has redeemed 150 Rated, Listed, Unsecured, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of
Rs.10,00,000/- each aggregating to Rs.15 crores on 31st December 2019 in compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

iii)

Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013:
In terms of the powers conferred on the Board of Directors of the Company under Section 180(1)(a) & (c) of
the Act and with the approval of the Board:

iv)

a)

The Company has created security on the Current Assets and Immovable Properties of the Company
for the various borrowings made, which were well within the limits approved by the shareholders.

b)

The Company has borrowed funds from Banks, Financial Institutions and Non-Banking Financial
Companies, which were well within the limits approved by the shareholders.

During the period under review, the Company has not entered into any Foreign Technical Collaboration
Agreement.
V Ramasubramanian
Company Secretary

Chennai
15th June 2020

ACS No.5890
COP No.11325
UDIN: A005890B000344351
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Details of remuneration as required to be provided under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended
March 31, 2020
(i)

Ratio of Remuneration of each Director with
Median employees Remuneration.

(a) Managing Director - 65.35:1
(b) Whole-time Director - 67.86:1

(ii)

The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in
the Financial Year;

The increase in remuneration:
Managing Director - 14.87%
Whole-time Director - 14.89 %
Chief Executive Officer - 14.89 %
Chief Financial Officer - NIL
Company Secretary - 8.42 %

(iii)

The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the Financial Year;

(iv)

The number of Permanent Employees on the rolls
of the Company as on 31st March 2020.

3212 (excluding part time Employees)

(v)

Average percentile increase already made
in the salaries of employees other than the
Managerial Personnel in the last Financial Year
and its comparison with the percentile increase
in the Managerial Remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the Managerial
Remuneration.

The average increase in the salaries of the
Employees other than the Managerial Personnel in
the last Financial Year was 8.80% while the increase
in the remuneration of the Managerial Personnel
was 14.71%.

(vi)

The key parameters for any variable component of
remuneration availed by the Directors.

Based on the Individual performance and the
Company’s performance.

(vii)

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The remuneration is as per the Remuneration
Policy of the Company.

6.62 %

• Details of Employees employed throughout the financial year and were in receipt of remuneration for that
year which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rupees One Crore and Two Lacs is enclosed as an Annexure.
• None of the employees employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part
of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rupees Eight Lac Fifty Thousand per month.
• Details of the employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in
excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-Time Director or Manager and holds by himself or
along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company
is enclosed as an Annexure.
Chennai
June 25, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board
George Joseph
Chairman
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Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

Emp No

Name

Annexure V

Chennai
June 25, 2020

1

Part of the year

64 08-Jan-06 39

B.Com, CAIIB

3 MMFL 0001 M. Narayanan

7

70 01-Apr-13

2 MMFL 1151 F S Mohan Eddy B.E, PGDM.

Whole-Time
Director

Managing
Director

Nil

Chief
Executive
1,36,55,849
Officer

1,24,65,176

1,04,63,064

No

No

No

George Joseph
Chairman

5.53%

2.72%

12.50%

Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

VP - Corporate
Banking Group
Treasury Head

N.A.

N.A.

Nature of % of Equity
Whether
Age
Exp.
Employment share held
employees is a
Previous
Date of
Gross
Qualification in
in
Role or (mention the relative of Director Employment
Joining
Remuneration
Years
Contract
holding of or KMP if yes name Designation
Years
etc.
2% or more) of the Director

1 MMFL 0035 Tara Thiagarajan B.A, MBA, Ph.D. 49 26-Feb-09 11

S No

Full Year

Information as per Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014
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Industry Structure and Developments
FY 2020 has been an unusual and challenging year because of the COVID-19 crisis in the 4th quarter. The industry
growth is detailed for Q1-Q3 and the challenges posed by COVID-19 pandemic are highlighted for Q4.
At the end December 2019, the microfinance industry’s total loan portfolio stood at INR 2,11,302 Cr up 24% from
December 2018. The microcredit loan portfolio is shared among Banks (40%), NBFC-MFIs (31%), SFBs (18%),
NBFCs (10%) and others (1%). The total number of microfinance accounts were 10.11 crore, an increase of 16.6%
from December 2018. NBFC-MFIs, the 2nd largest provider of micro-credit, had a total loan portfolio of INR 66,159
crores catering to 3.1 crore clients, an increase of 31% from December 2018. In terms of regional distribution of
portfolio (GLP), East and North East accounts for 34%, South 25%, North 16%, West 15% and Central contributes
10%.
Fani Cyclone in Odisha in May’19 and floods in Karnataka and Maharashtra in Aug’19 had disrupted and displaced
large populations of MFI’s customers. It had inadvertently impacted the livelihoods and repayment capacity of the
customers.
In Q4, Covid-19 pandemic and the subsequent national lockdown in the latter half of March adversely affected
the overall economy, and livelihoods of the informal sector workers, in particular. Micro finance industry’s last
mile credit delivery operations were also severely impacted and came to a near halt. The industry had to extend
a loan moratorium for a minimum of 3 months to its 6 crore customers and suspend recovery of loans. There was
uncertainty about financial institutions extending a loan moratorium to the microfinance industry which resulted in
weakening of liquidity position.
Opportunities and Threats
COVID-19 pandemic has completely changed the way businesses operate and compelled them to reshape their
operations.
During the complete lockdown period, MFI has tried to maintain contact with most of their customers to educate
and raise awareness about COVID-19 safety measures and prevention. Post lockdown, with MSMEs in the informal
sector resuming operations earlier than the formal sectors, there is a huge opportunity for MFI to provide microcredit tailored to the needs of the informal workers to restart their livelihoods. Travel restrictions and social
distancing norms have compelled the industry to research and invest in digitalization of operations.
The reverse migration of over 1 crore workers will result in a loss of income for large swaths of population. The
limited earning opportunities will dampen their near-term outlook and result in a more conservative approach to
new loans. With ever increasing COVID-19 cases, the probability of localized containment zones and lockdowns are
high, the ripple effect of which will be felt in rural regions.
Segment wise or product wise performance
The product wise performance comparison for the last two financial years are given below.
(Outstanding in ₹ lakhs)
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Product

March 2020

March 2019

Activity Term Loan

62530.19

59372.65

Business Development Loan

5040.00

2256.28

Certified Activity Loan

1214.08

1933.88

Entry Level Loan

114812.84

97844.11

Viyabaraviruthi Loan

0.34

34.55

Co-lending

30.89

823.51

SME Loan

25.77

33.61

School Staff Loan

54.99

12.82

Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion
and Analysis
Outlook
FY2020 has been a year of strong growth, despite liquidity crunch due to stress in the banking sector. Steady
increase in the portfolio size indicates high potential for growth. Madura intends to focus on the current business
through geographic diversification in the coming years.
Risk and Concerns
The Company has identified various risks involved in the business and considering the key risk factors formulated
a risk management policy. The risk management policy of the company is reviewed every year by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Company has also developed a risk matrix in consultation with Basix, which helped
Madura as a part of ADB project.
Credit risk, operation risk, geographical risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, asset-liability management risk and
political risk are the major risks faced by the microfinance industry. The risk management committee of the Company
is in the process of framing a detailed risk management framework for clear understanding and identification of
various risks and to establish adequate review mechanism to monitor and control risks.
Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy
In the last financial year, the IT security initiatives were further extended to safeguard our enterprise. All end user
systems were hardened with next generation AL & ML based anti-virus, controlled through cloud. Madura’s entire
process is digital and all sales officers carry tablets for loan origination. Madura also standardised all IT policies and
introduced asset management for all IT assets, ensuring complete control and tracking for all company IT assets.
All Tabs in the field are always protected through Mobile Device Management (MDM), ensuring that only Madura’s
apps are allowed to be installed and also no access to any other app or activity, apart from official activity.
Necessary changes were made by Madura in view of Covid -19. Work From Homes norms were put in place. The
access of MMFL applications on the cloud, allows seamless BCP for us. All laptop users were enabled by default to
work from home. All IT security aspects were adhered to.
The internal audit function of the Company has been bolstered and is providing efficient control and check
mechanisms and are scrutinized at the highest levels with systematic and periodic reviews.
Discussion of Financial Performance with Operational Performance
The active borrowers of the Company have also increased to 1,230,432 as compared to 956,736 in the previous
financial year. This has resulted in increase in the revenue of the company to INR 47,111 Lakhs during the year 201920 as compared to INR 38,086 Lakhs in the year 2018-19. The Profit after Tax of the Company was INR 7984 Lakhs
as compared to INR 8553 Lakhs in the previous year. The Operational costs of the Company was 5.64% as compared
to 5.04% in the previous financial year.
Human Resources Development
Strengthen, Upskill and Appreciate was the focus area for most part of the last year.
We strengthened our management bandwidth – New CFO Joined Madura in August 2019. He comes with over 28
years’ experience in Corporate Finance as well as P&L and Operations management. He is both a qualified Chartered
Accountant and a Company Secretary.
We now have two Divisional Managers to assist the Business Head – Group Loans. With intense focus on filling in
gaps in the field through monitoring and supporting the hiring process availability of field officers steadily moved up
from 90% to 97%. We also strengthened the field operations through the induction of close to 200 full time Member
Relationship Associates in the cluster model in Tamil Nadu. The Collections team across regions facing challenges
was scaled up. For the first time management trainees were deployed on field to support the field leadership and to
groom them for future roles.
To achieve the growth plans new state head was recruited in West Bengal and 12 branches became operational.
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and Analysis
Through the use of the e-Learning platform, we were able to certify 1488 unique employees on critical business
processes. ‘Learn to lead’ program was launched to enhance the managerial skills of newly appointed Branch
Managers. In-house capability to create multi lingual bi-sensory content, enhanced the learning ability of the
participant and hence achieved an average learning shift of 40%.
Celebrating performance and higher reward for better performers are the drivers on which the compensation
philosophy is now anchored. Schemes were adopted to appreciate performers on a monthly & quarterly basis
on achievement of pre-set performance parameters. Those achieving higher results are rewarded with higher
incentives to drive higher performance. In order to standardise the performance review process, Score cards were
shared with Managers for each individual in their team.
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Auditors’ Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Madura Micro Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, The statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2020, its profits including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
Pursuant to Reserve Bank Of India (RBI) issuing ‘COVID-19 Regulatory Package-Asset classification and
Provisioning’ on 17’th April 2020 , the company has granted a three month moratorium and consequential asset
classification benefit until May 31’st 2020 to its borrowers . As at 31’st March 2020, for determination of Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) provisioning, the ageing of these Loans and Advances and their Asset Classification will remain
unchanged as per the regulatory package. Moreover, the estimates and assumptions made by management in
determining the ECL provision required for its loans are subject to uncertainties that are associated with the
outcome of the pandemic. Hence the actual results may vary from these estimates. Refer note 42 to the standalone
financial statements.
The appointment and payment of remuneration to the managing director for the period from October 2013 to
September 2016 is subject to approval of the Central Government. A sum of Rs. 132.50 lakhs (excluding gratuity)
had been paid as remuneration to the Managing Director for this period subject to central government approval
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the respective years. Refer note 39 to the standalone financial
statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31’st March 2020. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed

Transition to Ind AS accounting framework (as described • Considered the Ind AS impact assessment performed
in note 43, 44 and 45 of the Ind AS financial statements)
by management to identify areas to be impacted on
account of Ind AS transition. Also considered the
In accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting
changes made to the accounting policies in the light of
Standards) Rules, 2015 that sets out timelines for
the requirements of the new framework.
implementation of Ind AS for non-banking financial
companies, company has adopted Ind AS from • Obtained an understanding of managements’
01.04.2019 with an effective date of 01.04.2018 for
processes and controls around implementing INDAS
such transition. For periods up to and including the
and seeking explanations from management for areas
year ended March 31,2019, the Company had prepared
involving complex judgements or interpretations.
and presented its financial statements in accordance • Reviewed the implementation of exemptions availed
with the erstwhile generally accepted accounting
and options selected by the company for first time
principles in India (Indian GAAP). In order to give effect
adoption of INDAS to see if they are in accordance
of the transition to Ind AS these financial statements
with INDAS 101
for the year ended March 31,2020, together with the
comparative financial information for the previous year • Tested the accounting adjustments posted as at the
transition date and in respect of the previous year
ended 31.03.2019and the transition date balance sheet
to convert the financial information reported under
as at 01.04.2018 have been prepared under Ind AS.
erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS.
This change in the financial reporting framework
•
Evaluated
the appropriateness and adequacy
involved detailed evaluation by management of the
of disclosures included in the Ind AS financial
potential impact on every component of the financial
statements, with the requirements of the applicable
statements and to apply significant judgements for
standards.
selection of appropriate accounting policies suitable
for the transactions and operations of the company and • Assessed the judgement applied by the management
selection of options available for transition of balances
in reporting of areas where the accounting treatment
on transition date from previous GAAP to new GAAP.
prescribed under Ind AS was different from the extant
RBI directions and the impact of such differences on
The transition has also brought about significant
specific regulatory disclosures such as capital to
changes in the Company’s financial reporting processes,
risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR) and Net interest
including generation of reliable and supportable
margin(NIM).
financial information and additional disclosures required
by the INDAS framework as compared to the previous
GAAP. The transition has also required the management
to exercise judgement in determining the impact of Ind
AS on specific disclosure requirements prescribed under
extant Reserve Bank of India (RBI)directions.
In view of the significance of the transition with respect
to the financial statements and the complexities
in implementing Ind AS discussed above, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.
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5. Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors report and chairman’s statement but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. When we read the reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
6. Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
7. Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalonefinancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
standalonefinancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalonefinancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether thestandalonefinancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalonefinancial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
8. Other Matter
The financial information of the Company for the year ended 31.03.2019 and the transition date opening balance
sheet as at 01.04.2018 included in these Ind AS information, are based on the previously issued statutory financial
statements for the years ended 31.03.2019 and March 31, 2018 prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed modified
opinion dated 27 May 2019 and 4 May 2018 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the
differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
9. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Los, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements. Refer Note 30 to the standalone financial statements;
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts at the end of the year
for which there was any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company
(h) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the remuneration paid by the company to its
directors is in accordance with the prescribed provisions and the remuneration paid to every director is
within the limit specified under Section 197, except for the matter stated in our Emphasis of Matter section
of this report.
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Signature
S Rajeshwari
Partner
Membership No. 024105
UDIN: 20024105AAAAAV5244
Chennai
18.05.2020
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Annexure A
Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date to the members of Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone
financial statements as of and for the year ended 31.03.2020.
(i) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets :
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.
(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets which in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of the land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company
as at Balance Sheet date.
(ii) The Company does not have any inventories and hence clause ii is not applicable
(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act, except for an unsecured advance of Rs.216.12 lakhs to its subsidiary, Madura
Micro Education Private Limited and which amount is outstanding as on 31.03.2020. This advance has been
fully provided for in the books. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
specific terms regarding interest or principal repayment in respect of this advance. However, in view of this
being a 100% subsidiary, it is not considered as being prejudicial to the interest of the company, as the amount
has been fully provided for and no interest is being accrued on this advance.
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees, and securities, as applicable. No interest is being accrued on advance given to subsidiary as the
entire amount of advance has been provided for.
(v) Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the Act and the rules made there under and
hence clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
(vi) The Company is not required to maintain cost records specified by the Central Government under sub section
(1) of section 148 of the Act.
(vii)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, Goods and Services Tax(GST), cess
and any other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, Goods and Services Tax(GST), cess and any other statutory dues were in arrears,
as at 31.03.2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
(b) There are no dues relating to income tax / sales tax / service tax / duty of customs / duty of excise / value
added tax, Goods and Services Tax (GST) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
(viii) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks, Government
or dues to debenture holders.
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(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans taken during the year were
applied for the purposes for which those are raised.
(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
report that no significant fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year nor have we been informed of such case by the management.
(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has been paid /
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act except for Central Government approval yet to be received for appointment
and payment of remuneration to Managing Director for the period from Oct 2013 to Sep 2016. Refer our
Emphasis of Matter section.
(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company, in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable.
(xiii) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, all the
transactions entered into with the related parties during the year are in compliance with Section 177 and
Section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
(xiv) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause (xiv) of the Order are not applicable.
(xv) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
(xvi) The company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, and
accordingly registration has been obtained.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Signature
S Rajeshwari
Partner
Membership No. 024105
UDIN: 20024105AAAAAV5244
Chennai
18.05.2020
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Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date
1. Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31.03.2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.
2. Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
3. Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
4. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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5. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
6. Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls with certain changes for remote work
environment were operating effectively as at 31.03.2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Signature
S Rajeshwari
Partner
Membership No. 024105
UDIN: 20024105AAAAAV5244
Chennai
18.05.2020
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2020
Particulars

₹ IN LAKHS

Note
No.

As At
31.03.2020

As At
31.03.2019

As at
01.04.2018

8,020.50
5,694.42
-

13,959.10
5,500.46
-

6,170.32
2,803.83
-

-

-

-

169,432.20
14,715.86
1,033.81
791.79

107,958.35
8,017.12
32.34
175.18

ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
		
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
		
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
		
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments
		
(d) Receivables
			
(I) Trade receivables
			
(II) Other receivables
		
(e) Loans
			
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
			
- Securitised assets
		
(f) Investments
		
(g) Other financial assets

7
8 (A)

183,197.45
9,460.40
4,535.57
1,260.03

(2) Non-financial assets
		
(a) Current tax assets (net)
		
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
		
(c) Property, plant and equipment
		
(d) Right to use assets
		
(e) Intangible assets
		
(f) Other non-financial assets

27(B)
27(B)
9
9
9
8 (B)

447.66
1,223.71
749.65
160.64
89.00
15.05

1,063.77
474.15
107.44
97.15
20.78

720.88
340.20
59.48
25.03
10.68

214,854.08

207,196.51

126,313.41

-

7.21

193.35

-

-

-

2,235.40

954.41

67.74

-

-

-

645.46

642.30

1,449.70

13,729.92
141,764.28
7,489.63
8,079.08
173.11

15,321.60
138,348.40
5,000.00
13,786.56
291.14

15,375.63
72,344.39
5,000.00
7,572.61
261.57

4
5

6

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) Financial liabilities
		
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
		
(b) Payables
			
(I) Trade payables
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				enterprises and small enterprises
				
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
				
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
			
(II) Other payables
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				enterprises and small enterprises
				
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
				
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
		
(c) Borrowings
			
- Debt securities
10
			
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
11
			
- Subordinated liabilities
12
			
- Financial liability towards securitisation
13
		
(d) Other financial liabilities
14(A)
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(2) Non-financial liabilities
		
		
		

27(B)
15
14(B)

(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-financial liabilities

423.32
154.40

215.96
300.72
131.25

57.84
227.33
119.16

719.48
39,440.00
214854.08

719.48
31,477.48
207196.51

719.48
22,924.61
126313.41

(3) Equity
		
		

16
17

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Total liabilities and equity

Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020
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Venkateswaran Balakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer

Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Whole-time Director

M. Narayanan
Chief Executive Officer

Sanin Panicker
Company Secretary
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Profit And Loss
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020
Particulars

I

₹ IN LAKHS

Note
No.

Tuesday,
31.03.2020

Sunday,
31.03.2019

41,498.10
2,759.25
736.34
501.23

34,651.56
1,875.18
72.59
286.61

25.75
15.72
250.74
287.16
1,036.38
47,110.67

26.50
0.30
328.59
210.27
634.66
38,086.26

439.02

522.90

47,549.69

38,609.16

Total expenses (IV)

18,542.99
996.17
5,675.63
6,709.31
499.25
4,468.62
36,891.97

14,411.35
565.52
3,482.64
4,601.71
335.61
2,999.17
26,396.00

Profit before tax (III-IV)

10,657.72

12,213.16

3,000.50
(-173.89)
(-152.76)
2,673.85

3,932.72
71.35
(-343.15)
3,660.92

7,983.87

8,552.24

(-28.53)

0.89

Revenue from operations

(a) Interest income
		
- Interest on loans
		
- Income on securitisation
		
- Income from portfolio purchased under assignment
		
- Interest on deposits with banks and financial
		institutions
(b) Fees and commission
(c) Dividend income
(d) Net gain on fair value changes
(e) Bad debt recovery
(f) Others

18

19
20
21

Total revenue from operations (I)
II

For the year ended

Other income

22

III Total income (I+II)
IV Expenses
(a)
		
		
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

V

Finance costs
- On borrowings
- On financial liability towards securitisation
Impairment of financial instruments
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses

VI Tax expense

23

24
25
9
26

27(A)

(1) Current tax
		
i. Current year
		
ii. Pertaining to earlier years
(2) Deferred tax

Total tax expense (VI)
VII Profit / (loss) for the year (V-VI)
VIII Other comprehensive income
(a) (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
		
- Remeasurement (losses) and gains on defined
			
benefit obligations (net)
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(2) Income tax relating to items that will not be
		
reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (a)
(b) (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
			
- Net change in fair value of loans measured at
			
fair value through other comprehensive income
		
(2) Income tax relating to items that will be
		
reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (b)
Other comprehensive income (VIII = a+b)

IX Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)
(comprising profit / (loss) and other
comprehensive income for the year)
X

Earnings per equity share (face value of `₹10.00
each)
Basic
Diluted

7.18

(-0.26)

(-21.35 )

0.63

-

-

(-21.35 )

0.63

7,962.52

8,552.87

110.97
110.97

118.90
118.90

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020
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Venkateswaran Balakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer

Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Whole-time Director

M. Narayanan
Chief Executive Officer

Sanin Panicker
Company Secretary
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31.03.2020
Equity share capital

₹ IN LAKHS

Equity shares of ₹10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid.
Particulars

No of shares

Amount

At 01.04.2018
Changes in equity share capital during the year
At 31.03.2019
Changes in equity share capital during the year
as at 31.03.2020

7,194,761.00
7,194,761.00
7,194,761.00

719.48
719.48
719.48

Other equity
Statutory reserve
(As required by
Particulars
Sec 45-IC of
Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934)
As at 01.04.2018
3,015.15
Profit for the year
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes)
Transferred to statutory reserves
1,611.00
As at 31.03.2019
4,626.15
Profit for the year ended 31.03.2020
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes)
Transferred to statutory reserves
1,593.00
As as at 31.03.2020
6,219.15
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Securities
premium

Retained
earnings

Total

8,365.47
8,365.47
8,365.47

11,543.99
8,552.24
0.63
(1,611.00)
18,485.86
7,983.87
(21.35)
(1,593.00)
24,855.38

22,924.61
8,552.24
0.63
31,477.48
7,983.87
(21.35)
39,440.00
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Cash Flow
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31.03.2020
₹ IN LAKHS

Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020

31.03.2019

Cash flow from operating activities:			
Profit before tax		
10,657.72
12,213.16
			
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:			
Interest income on loans		
(42,234.44)
(34,724.15)
Income on securitisation		
(2,759.25)
(1,875.18)
Depreciation and amortisations		
499.25
335.61
Interest expense on borrowings		
18,542.99
14,411.35
Interest expenses on financial liability towards securitisation		
996.17
565.52
Impairment on financial instruments		
847.42
2,149.23
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss		
(1,287.12)
(963.25)
Dividend Income		
(15.72)
(0.30)
			
(25,410.70)
(20,101.17)
			
Operational cash flows from interest:			
Interest received on loans		
42,329.48
35,067.49
Interest received on loans securitised		
2,719.90
1,903.43
Interest paid on borrowings		
(18,481.35)
(14,415.16)
Interest on financial liability towards securitisation		
(1,004.74)
(561.95)
			
Working capital changes:			
Increase / decrease in derivative finacial instruments		
(7.21)
(186.14)
(Increase) / decrease in loans		
(13,567.42)
(63,115.57)
Increase/decrease in securitised assets		
5,190.90
(6,943.17)
(Increase) / decrease in bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(193.96)
(2,696.63)
Increase in other financial assets		
(468.24)
(616.61)
(Increase) / decrease in other non-financial assets		
5.73
(10.10)
Increase in trade and other payables		
1,284.15
79.27
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities		
(118.03)
29.57
Increase / (decrease) in provisions		
94.07
74.28
(Decrease) / increase in other non-financial liabilities		
23.15
12.09
			
(7,756.86)
(73,373.01)
Income tax paid		
(3,490.23)
(3,845.95)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)		
(436.78)
(63,113.17)
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Investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
(780.78)
(496.30)
Purchase of Intangible assets		
(39.04)
(93.34)
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit and loss		
(142,225.00)
(174,750.00)
Sale of investments at fair value through profit and loss		
138,989.72
174,077.41
Net cash flows (used in) / from investing activities (B)		 (4,055.10)
(1,262.23)
			
Financing activities			
Debt securities (repaid) / issued (net)		
(1,559.63)
(84.57)
Borrowings other than debt securities (repaid)/ issued (net)		
3,873.74
65,663.26
Subordinated liabilities (repaid) / issued (net)		
2,500.00
Financial liability towards securitisation (net)		
(5,698.91)
6,210.38
Net Cash flows from financing activities (C )		
(884.80)
71,789.07
			
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)		
(5,376.68)
7,413.68
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year		
13,395.90
5,982.22
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year		
8,019.22
13,395.90
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent with balance sheet
Cash and cash equivalents consists of 			
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 4)		
8,020.50
Cash credit (refer note 11)		
(1.28)
Total			
8,019.22

13,959.10
(563.20)
13,395.90

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of financial statements

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020

Venkateswaran Balakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer
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Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Whole-time Director

M. Narayanan
Chief Executive Officer

Sanin Panicker
Company Secretary
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Notes
Madura Micro Finance Limited
CIN:- U65929TN2005PLC057390
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31’st March , 2020
1. Corporate Information
Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”), headquartered in Chennai, is a Company incorporated on
02.09.2005 under Companies Act, 1956 and registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-deposit accepting
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND) with effect from 28.02.2006. The Company got classified as a
Non-Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI) effective 11.12.2013. The company’s
debentures are listed in Bombay Stock Exchange.
Pursuant to the execution of Share Purchase Agreements dated 27th November 2019 by the Promoters, Major
Shareholders and others, 75.64% of the paid-up Capital of the Company has been acquired by M/s CreditAccess
Grameen Limited (CAGL), Bangalore, a Non-Banking Financial Company, on 18th March 2020.Consequently,
effective 18th March 2020, your Company has become a Subsidiary of CAGL.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans to the Self-Help Groups (SHG) members
and other loans.
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on 18th May 2020
2. Basis Of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The rules specify the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain class of companies and sets out dates of applicability. Madura Micro
Finance Limited, being a Non-Banking Financial Company, for which IND AS is applicable from Phase III as
defined in the said notification, is required to apply the standards as specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015. Hence, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with transition date of 1 April 2018.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended till date)] and other relevant provisions of the Act.
In respect of significant accounting matters, the Company has analysed the provisions contained in Ind AS
and the relevant guidance as per RBI Guidelines and has adopted appropriate accounting treatment while
ensuring compliance with RBI Guidelines. The Company follows the prudential norms for income recognition,
asset classification and provisioning as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for NBFC-MFI’s and follows the
provisioning norms as per Reserve Bank of India or Ind AS whichever is more stringent.
For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial
Company – Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) issued by RBI.
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first, the Companyhas prepared in accordance
with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, for
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind AS has affected the previously
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note No. 44 and
45.
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The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments, financial assets held for trading and financial assets and liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated.
New and Amended Standards And Interpretation
Ind AS 116 – ‘Leases’
Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ provides a new model for lessee accounting in which the majority of leases have been accounted
for by the recognition on the balance sheet of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The subsequent amortization
of the right-of-use asset and the interest expense related to the lease liability have been recognized in profit or loss
over the lease term.
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 in the financial reporting period commencing 01.04.2019 and has elected to
apply the retrospective transition approach under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognized
at the date of initial application with no restatement of comparative periods’ financial information. Under this
approach, in respect of leases previously classified as operating leases, the lease liability has been recognised at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application and the right-of-use asset has been recognised at an amount equal to the lease
liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application. Being the first year of INDAS adoption, the Company has
recognised the lease liability and right-of-use asset as per above mentioned measurement principles at the date of
transition to INDAS as permitted by the Standard.
Ind AS 116 introduces a revised definition of a lease. As permitted by the standard, the Company has elected not
to reassess the existing population of leases under the new definition and only applied the new definition for the
assessment of contracts entered into after the transition date.

New Standards Notified But Not Effective
None
2.1 Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and
judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of
items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the
Management’s estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in
the financial statements for e.g.:
● Business model assessment (Refer Note no.3.13) - Financial Instrument
● Fair value of financial instruments (Refer Note no.3.15) - Fair value measurement
● Effective interest rate (EIR) (Refer Note no. 3.1.1)
● Impairment of financial assets (Refer Note no.3.13.4)- Impairment of financial assets
● Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)
● Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note no.3.9)
● Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no.3.11) - Taxes
● Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 3.6.1)
● Leases covered under INDAS 116 (Refer note 33)
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2.2 Presentation of financial statements
The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity.
The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet.
They are offset and reported net only when INDAS specifically permits the same or it has an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event.
Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses on a net basis only when it is specifically permitted to
do so by INDAS.
In the case of subsidiary, the normal operating cycle is taken as 12 months.
3. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
3.1 Revenue Recognition
3.1.1 Interest Income
The Company computes Interest income by applying the Effective interest rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for
• Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, where the company applies the credit
adjusted EIR to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition, and
• Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets but subsequently
have become credit-impaired financial assets, where the company applies EIR to the amortised cost
of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When calculating the EIR, the Company includes all fees and charges paid or received to and from
the borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts, but not future credit losses.
3.1.2 Interest income on all financial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the
contractual interest rate.
3.1.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
3.1.4 The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised
gains on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL on net basis.
3.1.5 Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when the
related loan assets are de-recognised.
3.1.6 Interest income on deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.
3.1.7 Thefees receivable in respect of courses conducted is reckoned on accrual basis on the basis of the
courses conducted during the year. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis.
3.2 Finance cost
Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the EIR.
3.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible with insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3.4 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Costs comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and
other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), any attributable expenditure
in making the assets ready for intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
3.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities),
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Following initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Transition To Ind As
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all assets, recognised as
of 1 April 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed
cost as of the transition date.
3.6 Depreciation And Amortization
3.6.1 Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE (other than freehold land and properties under construction) is recognised and
measured on the depreciable amount ( being cost less residual value) using the straight-line method
as per the useful life given in Schedule II except the following cases where it is depreciated as per the
useful lives estimated by management.
ASSET TYPE

USEFUL LIFE

Motor Vehicles

5 years

Furnitures & Fixtures

6.67 years

Electrical Fittings

5 years

Temporary structures

1 year

Assets costing less than Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period,and the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
3.6.2 Amortisation
Amortisation on intangible assets is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
life of the asset.. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, for the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on prospective basis.
Management has estimated the useful life of Software to be the license period or 3 years, whichever
3.7 Impairment of non–financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and
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its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
De-Recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the item (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the item is derecognised.
An Intangible-assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible-assets measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
3.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted
to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
3.9 Contingent Liabilities And Assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.
3.10 Retirement And Other Employee Benefits
3.10.1 Defined Contribution Plan
Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company
recognises contribution payable to the respective fund as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service.
3.10.2 Defined benefit plan
Gratuity liability, which is unfunded, is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurement of the liabilities are included in other
comprehensive income.
3.10.3 Leave salary
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of
each financial year.
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3.10.4 Short-term employee benefits ,including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and
non-monetary benefits for current employees, are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.
3.11 Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax.
3.11.1 Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities, including any adjustments of current tax for prior periods,
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised
outside the statement profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
the recognized amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
3.11.2 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside
the statement profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
3.12 Earning Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
3.13 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the instruments.
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3.13.1 Financial Assets
3.13.1.1 Initial Recognition And Measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of
financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics
and the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets (not measured
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset
3.13.1.2 Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
FVTOCI
3.13.1.3 Financial Assets Measured At Amortized Cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding. After initial measurement such loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of
Profit and Loss.
3.13.1.4 Financial Assets Carried At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (Fvtoci)
A financial asset is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being carried to other
comprehensive income, if both the following conditions are met:
• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
3.13.1.5. Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit Or Loss (Fvtpl)
A financial asset other than those stated as amortized cost/FVTOCI is subsequently fair
valued through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a financial instrument that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Dividend income from these financial
assets is included in other income.
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Derecognition Of Financial Assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
3.13.2 Financial Liabilities
3.13.2.1 Initial Recognition And Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as
on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at
amortised cost.
3.13.2.2 Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
3.13.2.3 De-Recognition Of Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
3.13.3 Reclassification Of Financial Assets And Liabilities
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
3.13.4 Impairment Of Financial Assets
3.13.4.1 Overview Of The Expected Credit Loss (Ecl) Allowance Principles
The Company recognises Impairment allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on
Financial Assets held at amortized cost. The Company also computes the provision for
non-performing assets (NPA) as per IRAC norms of RBI, the higher of the two is recorded
in the books.
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The measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes from reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events and current conditions.
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset
(the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’
expected credit loss (12mECL). The Company’s policies for determining if there has been
a significant increase in credit risk are set out in note no--3.15.2
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of
financial assets) such as loans and advances and security deposits held at amortised cost
are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Lifetime Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances
recognised if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since
initial recognition.
The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs)
for Loan Receivables.
3.13.4.2 Measurement of ECLs
ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default
(EAD) and Loss given default (LGD). ECL is the product of PD, EAD and LGD.
The Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure (gross carrying amount),
at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
reporting date, including repayments.
The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given
time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
loan has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.
The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of
any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the Exposure at Default.
To calculate the ECL, the Company assesses the possible default events at various stages
of the loans. The Company has broadly followed the following approach to compute ECL.
The Advances exposure is broadly classified into 2 pools: MFI loans and individual loans.
The EAD is categorised based on respective Past Due status as given below:
Stage 1: 12mECL
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit
impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company has assessed that
all standard advances and advances upto 30 days default would fall under this category.
Stage 2: LTECL — Significant increase in credit risk
Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition are classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due upto 90 Days Past Due is
considered as significant increase in credit risk and classified under this category. For
these assets, LTECL are recognized.
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Stage 3: LTECL — credit impaired
All exposures greater than 90 Days Past due assessed as credit impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become credit
impaired, a LTECL is recognised. Probability of Default is considered at 100% for credit
impaired loans. Interest revenue on these loans is recognized on actual realization, in line
with prudential norms.
The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each
reporting period, of whether a financial assets’ credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of defaults occurring over the
remaining life of the financial assets.
3.14. Write-offs
Loans are written off when they are overdue for more than 180 days. Any subsequent recoveries are
credited to statement of profit and loss.
3.15 Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation
techniques. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
3.16 Segment Information
The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns
for the purpose of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’. The Company operates in a single geographical
segment i.e. domestic.
3.17 Foreign Currency
3.17.1 All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.
3.17.2 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the
period.
3.17.3 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement of
Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded
during the period, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which they arise.
3.18 Leases (where the Company is the lessee)
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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The Company as a lessee
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU)
to which the asset belongs.
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.
Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.
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4. Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

₹ IN LAKHS

31.03.2020

Cash in hand
Balances with banks in current accounts
Bank deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total
5. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

2.42
4,013.04
4,005.04
8,020.50

31.03.2020

31.03.2019
3.63
2,348.94
11,606.53
13,959.10

31.03.2019

01.04.2018
1.86
4,166.76
2,001.70
6,170.32

01.04.2018

Fixed deposit with bank not considered as cash
and cash equivalents*
5,694.42
5,500.46
2,803.83
Total
5,694.42
5,500.46
2,803.83
*Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings (Refer Note 11)
6. Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
Particulars

31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
At amortisedcost At amortised cost At amortised cost

(A.1) Term loans:			
Self help group loans
186,911.68
171,977.82
106,360.25
Individual loans
594.95
1,020.05
3,230.72
Total - Gross
187,506.63
172,997.87
109,590.97
Less: Impairment loss allowance
4,309.18
3,565.67
1,632.62
Term Loans - Net
183,197.45
169,432.20
107,958.35
			
(A.2) Loan to related parties			
Loan to subsidiary company
216.12
254.66
276.21
Less: Impairment loss allowance
216.12
254.66
276.21
Loan to related parties - Net
			
Total Loans - Net
183,197.45
169,432.20
107,958.35
			
(B) (a) Secured (SME loan against property)
25.77
33.61
39.72
(b) Unsecured
187,696.98
173,218.92
109,827.46
Total - Gross
187,722.75
173,252.53
109,867.18
Less: Impairment loss allowance
4,525.30
3,820.33
1,908.83
Total - Net
183,197.45
169,432.20
107,958.35
			
(C) (I) Loans in India			
		
(a) Public sector
		
(b) Others
187,722.75
173,252.53
109,867.18
Total - Gross
187,722.75
173,252.53
109,867.18
Less: Impairment loss allowance
4,525.30
3,820.33
1,908.83
Total - Net
183,197.45
169,432.20
107,958.35
			
(C) (II) Loans outside India
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - Net
-
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Securitised assets
Particulars

31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
At amortised cost At amortised cost At amortised cost

(A) Term loans:			
Self help group loans
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Total - Gross
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Less: Impairment loss allowance
353.96
250.05
33.87
Total - Net
9,460.40
14,715.86
8,017.12
			
(B) (a) Secured
(b) Unsecured
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Total - Gross
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Less: Impairment loss allowance
353.96
250.05
33.87
Total - Net
9,460.40
14,715.86
8,017.12
			
(C) (I) Loans in India			
		
(a) Public sector
		
(b) Others
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Total - Gross
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Less: Impairment loss allowance
353.96
250.05
33.87
Total - Net
9,460.40
14,715.86
8,017.12
			
(C) (II) Loans outside India
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - Net
6(A) Group lending loans
Gross carrying value of assets as at 31.03.2020
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Standard
190,654.95
3,704.05 		
Non Performing assets			
3,164.67
Total
190,654.95
3,704.05
3,164.67

Total
194,359.00
3,164.67
197,523.67

Gross carrying value of assets as at 01.04.2018
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Standard
181,109.72
5,085.40 		
Non Performing assets			
1,664.42
Total
181,109.72
5,085.40
1,664.42

Total
186,195.12
1,664.42
187,859.54

Gross carrying value of assets as at 01.04.2018
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Standard
113,439.48
1,209.12 		
Non Performing assets			
546.62
Total
113,439.48
1,209.12
546.62

Total
114,648.60
546.62
115,195.22
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An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to
Group lending loans:
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as
181,109.72
5,085.40
1,664.42
at 31.03.2019
New assets originated during the year,
17,462.66
-2,538.10
-455.59
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year
-4,804.85
Movement between stages				
Transfer from Stage 1
-8,119.28
3,637.14
4,482.14
Transfer from Stage 2
201.84
-2,480.40
2,278.56
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as at
190,654.95
3,704.05
3,164.67
31.03.2020

Total
187,859.54
14,468.97

-4,804.85
0.00
197,523.67

Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
ECL allowance as at 31.03.2019
844.29
810.99
1,030.58
2,685.86
New assets originated during the year,
81.13
-404.76
-282.47
-606.10
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year
-4,804.85
-4,804.85
Movement between stages				
Transfer from Stage 1
-37.72
16.90
20.82
0.00
Transfer from Stage 2
32.19
-395.56
363.37
Transfer from Stage 3
Impact on ECL on account of movement
between stages / updates to the ECL model
975.90
708.79
5,695.86
7,380.54
ECL allowance as at 31.03.2020
1,895.78
736.36
2,023.31
4,655.46

Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as
113,439.48
1,209.12
546.62
at 01.04.2018
New assets originated during the year,
74,811.21
-653.21
-205.90
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year
-1,287.77
Movement between stages				
Transfer from Stage 1
-7,147.93
5,082.99
2,064.93
Transfer from Stage 2
6.97
-553.51
546.54
Transfer from Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as
181,109.72
5,085.40
1,664.42
at 31.03.2019

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Total
115,195.22
73,952.10

-1,287.77
187,859.54
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Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
ECL allowance as at 01.04.2018
495.07
354.50
344.37
New assets originated during the year,
326.48
-191.51
-129.72
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
Assets written off during the year
-1,287.77
Movement between stages				
Transfer from Stage 1
-31.19
22.18
9.01
Transfer from Stage 2
2.04
-162.18
160.14
Transfer from Stage 3
Impact on ECL on account of movement
between stages / updates to the ECL model
51.89
788.00
1,934.55
ECL allowance as at 31.03.2019
844.29
810.99
1,030.58

Total
1,193.94
5.25

-1,287.77
2,774.45
2,685.86

Note: The loan balances considered in this note are before netting off unamortised processing charges.
6(B) Individual lending
Gross carrying value of assets as at 31.03.2020
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Standard assets
603.08 			
Substandard assets			
3.88
Doubtful assets				
Total
603.08
3.88

Total
603.08
3.88
606.96

Gross carrying value of assets as at 31.03.2019
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Standard assets
973.37 			
Substandard assets			
46.52
Doubtful assets				
Total
973.37
46.52

Total
973.37
46.52
1,019.89

Gross carrying value of assets as at 01.04.2018
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Standard assets
3,198.10
Substandard assets
28.76
Doubtful assets				
Total
3,198.10
28.76

Total
3,198.10
28.76
3,226.86

Individual loans are not considered for ECL and hence no stage wise classification done. NPA provision made as
per IRACP norms are shown under stage 3 and standard loans under stage 1
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An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to
Individual lending loans:
Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as
at 31.03.2019
973.37
46.52
New assets originated during the year
netted off for repayments
-308.39 		
-42.63
Assets written off during the year
-61.90
Transfer from Stage 1
-61.90 		
61.90
Transfer from Stage 2				
Transfer from Stage 3
- 			
Gross carrying value of assets
as at 31.03.2020
603.08
3.88

Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
ECL allowance as at 31.03.2019
1.62
23.26
New assets originated during the year
-68.56 		
-21.32
netted off for repayments
Assets written off during the year
-61.90
Movement between stages				
Transfer from Stage 1
-13.76 		
13.76
Transfer from Stage 2
- 			
Transfer from Stage 3
- 			
Impact on ECL on account of movement
86.45 		
48.14
between stages / updates to the ECL model
ECL allowance as at 31.03.2020
5.76
1.94

Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Gross carrying value of assets as
at 01.04.2018
3,198.10 		
28.76
New assets originated during the year
-2,139.80 			
netted off for repayments
Assets written off during the year
-67.18
Transfer from Stage 1
-84.93 		
84.93
Transfer from Stage 2				
Transfer from Stage 3				
Gross carrying value of assets as
at 31.03.2019
973.37
46.52
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1,019.89
-351.03
-61.90
606.96

Total
24.88
-89.87
-61.90
134.60
7.70

Total
3,226.86
-2,139.80
-67.18
1,019.89
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Particulars
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
ECL allowance as at 01.04.2018
28.77 		
14.38
New assets originated during the year
netted off for repayments
-19.26 			
Assets written off during the year
-67.18
Movement between stages				
Transfer from Stage 1
-0.76 		
0.76
Transfer from Stage 2				
Transfer from Stage 3				
Impact on ECL on account of movement
between stages / updates to the ECL model
-7.13 		
75.29
ECL allowance as at 31.03.2019
1.62
23.26

Total
43.15
-19.26
-67.18
68.16
24.88

Note:
The loan balances considered in this note are before netting off unamortised processing charges.
Individual loans are not considered for ECL and hence no stage wise classification done. NPA provision made as
per IRACP norms are shown under stage 3 and standard loans under stage 1.

7. Investments
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Investments			
A) In India			
		At cost:			
			Investment in Subsidiary
149.00
149.00
			Less: Provision for Impairment loss
149.00
149.00
		At fair value through profit and loss account:			
			-in mutual funds
4,501.95
1,000.19
			-in equity instruments
33.62
33.62
B) Outside India
Total
4,535.57
1,033.81

01.04.2018

149.00
149.00
32.34
32.34

8 (A) Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
Particulars
Retained interest on assets assigned
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)
Loans and advances to employees
(unsecured, considered good)
Others
Total

81

31.03.2020
845.56
211.91
71.58

31.03.2019
537.17
158.70
55.75

01.04.2018
111.08
43.28

130.98
1,260.03

40.17
791.79

20.82
175.18
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Notes
8 (B) Other non-financial assets (at amortised cost)
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Other advances			
Unsecured, considered good
15.05
20.78
Total
15.05
20.78
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₹ IN LAKHS

01.04.2018
10.68
10.68

82

83

Freehold
Land

Buildings Leasehold Temporary Electrical Furniture Vehicles
Office Computer
Improve- Structures Equipment & Fixtures
equipment
ment
in Rented
Premises

Total

Buildings

Right
of use
assets
Total

₹ IN LAKHS

Computer
software
& Others

Total

Intangible assets

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Deemed cost

17.06
17.06

21.79
0.25
21.54

19.00
10.67
8.33

144.08
144.08
-

14.88
9.74
5.14

101.08
72.32
28.76

45.37
45.34
0.03

141.25
123.77
17.48

609.83
367.97
241.86

1,114.34
774.14
340.20

59.48
59.48

1,173.82
774.14
399.68

238.62
213.59
25.03

238.62
213.59
25.03

Company has opted for deemed cost under Ind AS 101 and has netted off accumulated depreciation from cost as at 01.04.2018. The cost and accumulated
depreciation as on that date are as below:
As at 01.04.2018

Note: The land and building is under mortgage as additional security for debentures issued. Refer Note 10 for information about debentures

Cost / Deemed Cost														
As at 01.04.2018
17.06
21.54
8.33
5.14
28.76
0.03
17.48
241.86
340.20
59.48
399.68
25.03
25.03
Additions
- 		
0.77
0.72
94.54
0.35
59.78
238.67
394.82
101.86
496.68
93.34
93.34
Disposals									
-0.38
-0.38
-0.38
As at 31.03.2019
17.06
21.54
9.10
5.86
123.30
0.38
77.26
480.14
734.64
161.34
895.98
118.37
118.37
														
Additions
21.89
23.25
195.27
65.78
344.69
650.89
129.89
780.78
39.04
39.04
Disposals
-55.49
-55.49
As at 31.03.2020
17.06
21.54
30.99
29.11
318.57
0.38
143.04
824.83 1,385.53
235.73 1,621.26
157.41
157.41
												
- 		
Depreciation:										
- 		
- 		
Depreciation charge for the year 0.36
1.80
3.30
74.85
0.06
18.51
161.60
260.49
53.90
314.39
21.22
21.22
Disposals
- 		
As at 31.03.2019
0.36
1.80
3.30
74.85
0.06
18.51
161.60
260.49
53.90
314.39
21.22
21.22
														
Depreciation charge for the year 0.36
4.57
8.49
111.27
0.07
26.36
224.25
375.38
76.69
452.07
47.18
47.18
Disposals
-55.49
-55.49
As at 31.03.2020
0.73
6.38
11.79
186.12
0.13
44.88
385.85
635.87
75.10
710.97
68.40
68.40
														
Net book value:														
As at 01.04.2018
17.06
21.54
8.33
5.14
28.76
0.03
17.48
241.86
340.20
59.48
399.68
25.03
25.03
As at 31.03.2019
17.06
21.18
7.29
2.55
48.45
0.32
58.75
318.55
474.15
107.44
581.59
97.15
97.15
As at 31.03.2020
17.06
20.82
24.61
17.32
132.45
0.25
98.15
438.99
749.65
160.64
906.53
89.00
89.00

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of use Assets and Intangible Assets

Notes
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Notes
10. Debt securities (at amortised cost)

₹ IN LAKHS

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Debentures (secured)
13,729.92
13,825.96
15,375.63
Debentures (unsecured)
1,495.64
Total
13,729.92
15,321.60
15,375.63
			
Debt securities in India
13,729.92
15,321.60
15,375.63
Debt securities outside India
Total
13,729.92
15,321.60
15,375.63
Nature of security
The above debentures are secured by way of first and exclusive charge over eligible book debts of the Company.
Debentures (secured) (at amortised cost)
Terms of debentures

Number of debentures

31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018

Amount ₹ in lakhs
Face value
(in Rs) 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018

14.84% Non-Convertible Debentures
- Privately placed, Listed Secured by
exclusive charge on the loans created
out of the proceeds of the debentures.
The NCD was redeemed in one bullet
payment on 08.05.2018

-

-

400

1,000,000

11.50% Non-Convertible Debentures
- Privately placed, Listed Secured by
exclusive charge on loans created out
of the proceeds of the debentures and
immovable properties. The NCD is
redeemable in one bullet payment on
31.07.2020.

400

400

400

14.15% Non-convertible Debentures
- Privately placed, Listed Secured by
hypothecation of loans granted to Self
Help Groups. The maturity date of the
Debentures is 13.09.2020, with 99.99%
redeemed on 13.09.2019 and balance
redeemable on maturity date.

366

366

330

250

11.40% Non-convertible Debentures
- Privately placed, Un-listed Secured
by exclusive charge on loans created
out of the proceeds of the debentures
and immovable properties. The NCD is
redeemable in one bullet payment on
05.12.2020.
11.40% Non-convertible Debentures
- Privately placed, Listed Secured by
exclusive charge on loans created out
of the proceeds of the debentures and
immovable properties. The NCD is
redeemable in one bullet payment on
31.12.2020.

11.00% Non-Convertible Debentures
- Privately placed, unlisted Secured by
exclusive charge on the loans created
out of the proceeds of the debentures
360
and immovable properties. 99.99%
		
of the principal amount of the NCD is
redeemable on 13-May-2021 and balance
on 13.05.2023

-

4,084.57

1,000,000 4,075.62

4,074.36

4,074.36

366

1,000,000

3,846.95

3,836.08

330

330

1,000,000 3,434.00

3,414.33

3,380.62

250

-

1,000,000 2,495.60

2,490.32

-

-

-

1,000,000 3,724.31

-

-

Total
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-

0.39

13,729.92 13,825.96 15,375.63
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Notes
₹ IN LAKHS

Debentures (unsecured) (at amortised cost)
Terms of debentures

11.40% Non-convertible Debentures Privately placed, listed. The NCD was
redeemed in one bullet payment on
31.12.2019.

Number of debentures
Amount ₹ in lakhs
Face value
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018 (in Rs) 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018

-

150

-

1,000,000

-

1,495.64

-

-

1,495.64

-

		

Total

11. Borrowings other than debt securities (at amortised cost)
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Term loans (secured)			
Banks
95,097.56
82,009.37
44,305.37
Financial institutions
31,540.60
36,354.37
13,368.75
Non-banking financial companies
15,124.84
17,272.21
12,047.50
External commercial borrowings
2,149.25
2,434.67
Cash Credit (secured)			
Banks
1.28
563.20
188.10
Total
141,764.28
138,348.40
72,344.39
			
Borrowings in India
141,764.28
136,199.15
69,909.72
Borrowings outside India
2,149.25
2,434.67
Total
141,764.28
138,348.40
72,344.39
Refer Note 11.1 for tenure, interest rates and repayment schedule
All the above loans are secured by a charge on the advances granted to Self Help Groups from the proceeds of
the Loans and by a charge on fixed deposits wherever sanction terms require it.
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6%-6.5%
6.5%-7%
7%-7.5%
7.5%-8%
8%-8.5%
8.5%-9%
9%-9.5%
9.5%-10%
10%-10.5%
10.5%-11%
11%-11.5%
11.5%-12%
12%-12.5%
12.5%-13%
10.5%-11%
11%-11.5%

12
12
12
14
49
89
253
44
12
12
29
10

1,071.60
1,452.00
1,071.60
1,000.00
6,084.42
6,411.23
26,733.78
3,368.28
444.00
3,999.96
805.56
111.11

No. of
Amount
installments

Due within 1 year

11
6
11
12
28
20
160
20
7
12
32
12

981.90
733.00
981.90
1,090.91
3,020.20
1,706.59
17,853.83
1,154.39
264.00
4,000.06
888.89
133.33

Due between 1 to 2
Years
No. of
Amount
installments
11
31
24
1

1,666.78
3,052.03
666.67
11.11

Due between 2 to 3
Years
No. of
Amount
installments
4
-

111.11
-

No. of
Amount
installments

Due between 3 to 4
Years

-

-

Due between 4 to 5
Years
No. of
Amount
installments
-

-

No. of
Amount
installments

Due more than 5 years

2,053.50
2,185.00
2,053.50
2,090.91
10,771.40
8,117.82
47,639.65
4,522.67
708.00
8,000.02
2,472.22
255.56

Total

₹ IN LAKHS
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# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

Bullet														
1-3 years 10.5%-11%
7
14,000.00
14,000.00
11%-11.5%
1
2,000.00
2,000.00
11.5%-12%
Grand Total		
615
90,450.66
365
42,305.85
82
7,864.32
12
776.11
3
150.00
141546.93

Half Yearly														
Above 3
10.5%-11%
2
1,200.00
2
200.00
2
200.00
1,600.00
years
11%-11.5%
4
360.00
4
360.00
1
80.00
800.00
11.5%-12%
8
4,475.00
7
2,582.50
6
690.00
4
415.00
8,162.50

Quarterly														
10%-10.5%
4
2,500.00
2
1,250.00
3,750.00
1-3 years 10.5%-11%
7
2,535.71
3
937.50
3,473.21
11%-11.5%
14
7,714.29
2
1,571.43
9,285.71
11.5%-12%
12
1,278.79
9
1,012.08
2
272.72
2,563.59
Above 3
11%-11.5%
4
333.33
1
83.33
416.67
years
11.5%-12%
4
1,500.00
4
1,500.00
4
1,225.00
4
250.00
3
150.00
4,625.00

Above 3
years

1-3 years

Monthly

Original Interest rate
maturity of
loan

11.1. Terms of repayment of borrowings as on 31.03.2020

Notes
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87

10.5%-11%
11.5%-12%

1-3 years

Above 3
years

24
9

12
12
88
194
169
77
28
10

466.67
258.04

1,452.00
1,250.00
4,840.91
17,989.90
12,343.36
6,264.05
1,272.42
2,065.58

Amount
No. of
installments

Due within 1 year

24
-

12
3
29
88
95
36
13
12
466.67
-

1,452.00
312.50
2,111.75
9,918.37
5,964.02
3,608.00
499.55
3,999.96

Due between 1 to 2
Years
Amount
No. of
installments

17
-

6
14
14
25
2
7
12
288.89
-

733.00
1,212.12
2,343.22
359.26
248.00
264.00
4,000.06

Due between 2 to 3
Years
Amount
No. of
installments

-

-

-

Amount
No. of
installments

Due between 3 to 4
Years

-

-

-

Due between 4 to 5
Years
Amount
No. of
installments

-

-

-

Amount
No. of
installments

Due more than 5 years

1,222.22
258.04

3,637.00
1,562.50
8,164.78
30,251.50
18,666.63
10,120.05
2,035.98
10,065.60

Total

₹ IN LAKHS
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690

76,864.65

# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

Grand Total		

355

43,734.65

121

14,869.78

13

1,413.02

7

832.88

-

-

137,714.98

Bullet														
1-3 years 10.5%-11%
3
6,000.00
6,000.00
Above 3
11%-11.5%
years
12.5%-13%
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
3
417.88
2,189.96

Half Yearly														
1-3 years 11.5%-12%
1
333.33
333.33
Above 3
10.5%-11%
2
1,200.00
2
1,200.00
2
200.00
2
200.00
2,800.00
years
11%-11.5%
4
2,050.00
4
360.00
4
360.00
1
80.00
2,850.00
11.5%-12%
8
4,787.50
8
4,475.00
7
2,582.50
6
690.00
4
415.00
12,950.00

Quarterly														
1-3 years 10%-10.5%
7
1,871.43
1,871.43
10.5%-11%
12
5,892.85
2
857.14
6,749.99
11%-11.5%
9
4,714.29
11
7,000.00
1
1,285.71
13,000.00
11.5%-12%
8
733.33
8
733.33
5
466.67
1,933.33
12%-12.5%
3
136.36
136.36
12.5%-13%
2
166.28
166.28
Above 3
11%-11.5%
4
333.33
4
333.33
1
83.33
750.00
years
11.5%-12%
-

6%-6.5%
6.5%-7%
9.5%-10%
10%-10.5%
10.5%-11%
11%-11.5%
11.5%-12%
12%-12.5%
13%-13.5%

Monthly

Original Interest rate
maturity of
loan

11.2 Terms of repayment of borrowings as on 31.03.2019

Notes

6%-6.5%
10%-10.5%
10.5%-11%
11%-11.5%
11.5%-12%
12%-12.5%
12.5%-13%
10.5%-11%
11%-11.5%
11.5%-12%

119
129
92
81
38
65
12
-

8,539.58
7,702.61
4,865.92
3,931.08
1,110.54
1,537.04
336.00
-

Amount
No. of
installments

Due within 1 year

86
95
55
12
4
4
10
-

6,092.55
6,638.84
2,045.62
556.35
161.76
65.60
272.65
-

Due between 1 to 2
Years
Amount
No. of
installments
13
12
22
-

1,067.92
739.15
437.33
-

Due between 2 to 3
Years
Amount
No. of
installments
1
-

86.79
-

Amount
No. of
installments

Due between 3 to 4
Years

-

-

Due between 4 to 5
Years
Amount
No. of
installments
-

-

Amount
No. of
installments

Due more than 5 years

15,786.84
15,080.60
7,348.87
4,487.43
1,272.30
1,602.64
608.65
-

Total

₹ IN LAKHS
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582

40,210.38

# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

Grand Total		

302

24,983.32

63

4,705.75

13

1,235.64

7

723.02

3

278.17

72,136.29

Bullet														
1-3 years 10.5%-11%
Above 3
11%-11.5%
years
12.5%-13%
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
3
278.17
2,493.27

Half Yearly														
1-3 years 10.5%-11%
1
166.67
166.67
11%-11.5%
11.5%-12%
4
1,166.67
1
333.33
1,500.00
Above 3
10.5%-11%
2
1,200.00
2
1,200.00
2
1,200.00
2
200.00
2
200.00
4,000.00
years
11%-11.5%
4
2,700.00
4
2,050.00
4
360.00
4
360.00
1
80.00
5,550.00
11.5%-12%
2
750.00
2
437.50
2
125.00
1
62.50
1,375.00

Quarterly														
1-3 years 10%-10.5%
11
3,028.57
10
2,621.43
5,650.00
10.5%-11%
5
1,785.71
4
1,428.57
3,214.29
11%-11.5%
11.5%-12%
12%-12.5%
4
181.82
3
136.36
318.18
12.5%-13%
6
515.15
2
166.41
681.56
Above 3
11%-11.5%
3
250.00
4
333.33
4
333.33
1
83.33
1,000.00
years
11.5%-12%
-

Above 3
years

1-3 years

Monthly

Original Interest rate
maturity of
loan

11.3 Terms of repayment of borrowings as on01.04.2018

Notes

88

₹ IN LAKHS

12. Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost)
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Debentures
5,001.95
5,000.00
5,000.00
Term Loan
2,487.68
Total
7,489.63
5,000.00
5,000.00
			
Borrowings in India
7,489.63
5,000.00
5,000.00
Borrowings outside India
Total
7,489.63
5,000.00
5,000.00
Refer Note 12.1 for tenure, interest rates and repayment schedule
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Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

-

-

-

-

-

-

Due between 1 to 2
Years
No. of
Amount
installments

-

No. of
Amount
installments

Due within 1 year

# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

Bullet
Above 3
14%-14.5%
years
Grand Total		

Original Interest rate
maturity of
loan

12.1 Terms of repayment of subordinate term loans as on 31.03.2020

-

-

-

Due between 2 to 3
Years
No. of
Amount
installments

-

-

-

No. of
Amount
installments

Due between 3 to 4
Years

-

-

-

Due between 4 to 5
Years
No. of
Amount
installments

2

2
2,500.00

2,500.00

No. of
Amount
installments

Due more than 5 years

2,500.00

2,500.00

Total

₹ IN LAKHS

Notes
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Notes
₹ IN LAKHS

Debentures (unsecured) (at amortised cost)
Terms of debentures

14.25% Subordinated, Unsecured,
Non-Convertible Debentures - Privately
placed, Listed. The NCDs are redeemable
on 29.03.2024.

Number of debentures
Amount ₹ in lakhs
Face value
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018 (in Rs) 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
500

500

500

1,000,000

		

5,001.95
5,001.95

Total

5,000.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

		

13. Financial liability towards securitisation
Particulars
Borrowings under securitisation arrangement
Total

31.03.2020
8,079.08
8,079.08

31.03.2019
13,786.56
13,786.56

01.04.2018
7,572.61
7,572.61

31.03.2020
173.11
173.11

31.03.2019
110.59
180.55
291.14

01.04.2018
59.48
202.09
261.57

14(A). Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Particulars
Lease Liability
Financial Guarantee given for subsidiary’s loan
Total

Refer Note 3.18 for accounting policy on leases and Note 33.7 for movement of lease liability
14(B). Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars
Statutory dues payable
Others
Total

31.03.2020
148.54
5.86
154.40

31.03.2019
125.40
5.85
131.25

01.04.2018
113.31
5.85
119.16

Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Provision for employee benefits:			
Gratuity
254.51
171.30
Leave encashment and availment
168.81
129.42
Total		
423.32
300.72

01.04.2018

15. Provisions
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127.98
99.35
227.33
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Notes
₹ IN LAKHS

16. Issued capital
Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Authorised				
Equity shares of INR 10 each
1,000.00
1,000.00
		
1,000.00
1,000.00
		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Issued, subscibed and fully paid up			
71,94,761 (31.03.2019: 71,94,761)
719.48
719.48
equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

01.04.2018
1,000.00
1,000.00
01.04.2018
719.48

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end
of the year		

01.04.2018
31.03.2019
31.03.2020
Amount
Amount
Amount
No. of
No. of
No. of
Shares
Shares
Shares
7,194,761
719.48 7,194,761
719.48 7,194,761
719.48
- 		
- 		
7,194,761

719.48 7,194,761

719.48 7,194,761

719.48

(b) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
“The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.
Any dividends proposed by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.”
(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity shares

31.03.2020
% Holding
No. of
Shares

31.03.2019
% Holding
No. of
Shares

01.04.2018
% Holding
No. of
Shares

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid						
Credit Access Grameen
5,473,975
76.08%
Limited (Holding Company)
				
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
899,345
12.50% 2,330,574
32.39% 2,330,574
32.39%
Mr. M Narayanan
397,683
5.53%
373,516
5.19% 364,366
5.06%
A V Thomas and Co Ltd
0.00% 1,159,435
16.11% 1,159,435
16.11%
Midland Rubber & Produce
0.00% 1,159,436
16.12% 1,159,436
16.12%
Company Ltd
Employees’ Welfare Trust
56,393
0.78%
364,917
5.07% 495,667
6.89%
Elevar Equity Mauritius
0.00%
865,916
12.04% 865,916
12.04%
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Notes
₹ IN LAKHS

17. Other equity*
Particulars		
Statutory reserve (As required by
Sec 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)
Securities premium
Retained earnings
Total		

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

6,219.15
8,365.47
24,855.38
39,440.00

4,626.15
8,365.47
18,485.86
31,477.48

3,015.15
8,365.47
11,543.99
22,924.61

* For detailed movement of reserves refer Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31.03.2020
Nature and purpose of reserve
17.1 Statutory reserve (As required by Sec 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)
Statutory reserve represents the accumulation of amount transferred from surplus year on year based on
the fixed percentage of profit for the year, as per section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
17.2 Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised
only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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18 Interest income
Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

On financial assets
On financial assets
measured at amortised cost measured at amortised cost

Interest on loans
Income from securitisation
Income from portfolio purchased through assignment
Interest on deposits with banks and financial institutions
Total		

41,498.10
2,759.25
736.34
501.23
45,494.92

34,651.56
1,875.18
72.59
286.61
36,885.94

19. Fees and commission
Particulars
Loan portfolio servicing fees
Total		

For the year ended
31.03.2020
25.75
25.75

For the year ended
31.03.2019
26.50
26.50

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

20. Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes
Particulars

(A) Net gain / (loss) on fair value instruments at
fair value through profit or loss		
(i) On trading portfolio		
		
- Investments
250.74
(ii) On financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss
(B) Others		
(i) Gain on derecognition of loans designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Total Net gain / (loss) on fairvalue changes (C)
250.74
		
Fair Value changes:		
- Realised
248.79
- Unrealised
1.95
Total Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes (D)
250.74

328.59
-

328.59

327.31
1.28
328.59

21. Others
For the year ended
31.03.2020
Gain on de-recognition of loans under assignment
1,036.38
(Refer note 3.1.5)		
		
1,036.38
Particulars
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For the year ended
31.03.2019
634.66
634.66

94

Notes
22. Other Income

₹ in lakhs
For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

-

0.37

7.06
430.50
1.46
439.02

46.42
456.00
20.11
522.90

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

(A) On borrowings		
Interest on debt securities
1,741.16
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities
15,797.94
Interest on subordinated liabilities
849.38
Other finance costs
134.65
Finance lease obligations
19.86
Total (A)		
18,542.99
(B) On financial liability towards securitisation
996.17
Total		
19,539.16

1,731.64
11,836.48
765.37
69.82
8.04
14,411.35
565.52
14,976.87

Particulars
Net gain / (loss) on derecognition of property, plant
and equipment
Net gain / (loss) on foreign currency transaction and
translation (other than considered as finance cost)
Advertisement Display Income
Others
Total
23. Finance costs
Particulars

₹ in lakhs

On financial liabilities
On financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost measured at amortised cost

24. Impairment of financial instruments
Particulars
Self help group loans
Individual loans
Impairment of Advance to Subsidiary
Total		

₹ in lakhs
For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

On financial assets
On financial assets
measured at amortised cost measured at amortised cost

5,731.35
(17.18)
(38.54)
5,675.63

3,522.46
(18.27)
(21.55)
3,482.64

25. Employee benefit expenses
Particulars
Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity		
Leave encashment and availment
Staff welfare expenses
Total		
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₹ in lakhs
For the year ended
31.03.2020

31.03.2019

5,838.74
577.35
76.17
58.14
158.91
6,709.31

4,003.77
394.65
51.52
43.09
108.68
4,601.71
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26. Other expenses

₹ in lakhs

For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Rental charges payable under operating leases
362.02
255.75
Rates and taxes
27.02
22.70
Insurance 		
14.03
6.88
Repairs and maintenance
368.04
223.79
Electricity		
49.21
35.04
Travelling and conveyance
883.77
609.18
Postage and telecommunication
251.04
182.21
Printing and stationery
194.22
63.07
Professional and consultancy charges
1,604.98
1,078.77
Remuneration to non-executive directors
48.78
47.96
Auditors remuneration (refer Note below)		
Audit fees
47.04
15.16
Out of pocket fees
0.49
0.28
Training expenses
61.06
54.12
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (refer note below)
132.46
138.43
Miscellaneous expenses
424.46
265.83
Total		
4,468.62
2,999.17

Auditors remuneration
Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

As auditor		
Audit fee		
29.43
Limited review
4.36
Others (Special purpose limited review and GST audit)
12.54
In other capacity		
Certification services
0.72
Taxation matter
Reimbursement of expenses
0.49
Total		
47.53

12.54
1.63
0.99
0.28
15.44

Details of CSR expenditure
Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the
Company during the year
172.40
b) Amount spent during the year (in cash)		
i) Construction / acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above
132.46
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138.43
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27(A). Income tax

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Particulars
Current tax		
Current year
Earlier years
Deferred tax
Total tax charge

3,000.50
(173.89)
(152.76)
2,673.85

3,932.72
71.35
(343.15)
3,660.92

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
10,657.72
12,213.16

Particulars

Profit before tax
		
At India’s statutory income tax rate
of 25.17% (PY 29.12%) (A)
2,682.33
		
Adjustments (B)		
(a) Non deductible expenses		
CSR Expenses
33.34
Interest on delayed payment of tax
0.28
		
(b) Change in tax rate
144.37
		
(c) Additional allowance of certain expenditure
-12.58
		
(d) Others
Income tax expense reported in statement of
profit and loss (A) + (B)
2,847.74
Tax expense in the current year
2,847.74

3,556.47

40.31
0.24
-15.29
7.84
3,589.57
3,589.57

27(B). Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31.03.2020
Particulars

Net balance
01.04.2019

(Charge)
/ credit in
profit and
loss

Recognised
in OCI

Net balance
31.03.2020

Net balance
31.03.2020

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)						
Impact of difference between
tax depreciation/ amortisation
39.39
17.02 		
56.41
56.41
Remeasurement gain / (loss)
on defined benefit plan
87.57
11.79
7.18
106.54
106.54
Impairment allowance for loans
1,039.21
67.72 		 1,106.93
1,106.93
Other items		
-102.40
56.23 		
-46.17
Net Deferred tax assets /
(liabilities)		
1,063.77
152.76
7.18 1,223.71 1,269.88
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Deferred tax
liability

-46.17
-46.17
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Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31.03.2019
Particulars

Net balance
01.04.2019

(Charge)
/ credit in
profit and
loss

Recognised
in OCI

Net balance
31.03.2020

Net balance
31.03.2020

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)						
Impact of difference between
tax depreciation/ amortisation
20.30
19.10 		
39.40
39.40
Remeasurement gain / (loss)
on defined benefit plan
66.20
21.63
-0.26
87.57
87.57
Impairment allowance for loans
502.66
536.55 		 1,039.21
1,039.21
Other items		
131.72
-234.13 		
-102.41
Net Deferred tax assets /
(liabilities)
720.88
343.15
(0.26) 1,063.77 1,166.18

Deferred tax
liability

-102.41
(102.41)

The following tables provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as at:
Current tax assets / liabilities
Particulars		
Income tax assets
Income tax liabilities
Total		

31.03.2020
464.44
16.78
447.66

31.03.2019
105.02
320.98
(215.96)

01.04.2018
105.03
162.87
(57.84)

28. Transfer of financial assets
28.1 Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that
part or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for de-recognition, together with the associated liabilities:			
Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Securitisations			
Carrying amount of transferred assets
measured at amortised cost
9,814.36
14,965.91
8,050.99
Carrying amount of associated liabilities
(debt securities - measured at amortised cost)
8,079.08
13,786.56
7,572.61
Net position at amortised cost
1,735.28
1,179.35
478.38
Refer Note 6 and 13
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29(A) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

29(A)(1) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the
net defined benefit liability/assets and its components:				
Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation			
Obligation at the beginning of the year
171.30
127.98
78.84
Current service cost
64.84
42.64
23.42
Interest cost
11.33
8.88
5.13
Past service cost
10.01
Benefits settled
-21.49
-7.31
-6.83
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised
in other comprehensive income
- Changes in experience adjustments
12.27
-2.96
32.62
- Changes in demographic assumptions
0.01
-14.33
- Changes in financial assumptions
16.26
2.07
-0.88
Obligation at the end of the year
254.52
171.30
127.98
				
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets				
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value
Interest income on plan assets
Re-measurement- actuarial gain
Return on plan assets recognised in other
comprehensive income
Contributions
Benefits settled
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value
Net defined benefit liability
254.52
171.30
127.98
29(A)(2) Expense recognised in profit and loss
Particulars		
Current service cost
Interest cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Net gratuity cost

31.03.2020
64.84
11.33
76.17

31.03.2019
42.64
8.88
51.52

01.04.2018
23.42
5.13
10.01
38.56

29(A)(3) Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability			
- Changes in experience adjustments
12.27
-2.96
32.62
- Changes in demographic assumptions
0.01
-14.33
- Changes in financial assumptions
16.26
2.07
-0.88
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit asset			
Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate			
Total Actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI
28.54
-0.89
17.41
99
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29(A)(4) Plan assets
Particulars		
Funds managed by insurer

31.03.2020
-

31.03.2019
-

01.04.2018
-

31.03.2020
4.90%
10.00%
30.00%
60 years

31.03.2019
6.60%
10.00%
30.00%
60 years

01.04.2018
6.94%
10.00%
30.00%
60 years

29(A)(5) Defined benefit obligation - Actuarial assumptions
Particulars		
Discount rate
Future salary growth
Attrition rate
Normal retirement age
29(A)(6) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably, possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:						
Particulars
Discount rate
(1% movement)
Future salary growth
(1% movement)
Attrition Rate
(- / + 50% of attrition rates)
Mortality Rate
(- / + 10% of mortality rates)

31.03.2020
Increase Decrease

31.03.2019
Increase Decrease

01.04.2018
Increase Decrease

244.70

265.08

165.36

177.67

123.86

132.38

263.96

245.50

177.22

165.62

132.09

124.03

208.19

355.07

147.05

216.65

112.18

156.39

254.51

254.52

171.31

171.30

127.98

127.98
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29(B) Compensated leave
29(B)(1) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the
net defined benefit liability/assets and its components:				
Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Reconciliation of present value ofdefined benefit obligation		
Obligation at the beginning of the year
129.42
99.35
62.23
Current service cost
69.38
50.77
12.39
Interest cost
8.56
6.89
3.96
Past service cost
Benefits settled
-18.76
-13.02
-7.90
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised
in other comprehensive income
- Changes in experience adjustments
-28.51
-15.82
33.40
- Changes in demographic assumptions
0.02
-4.14
- Changes in financial assumptions
8.70
1.25
-0.60
Obligation at the end of the year
168.81
129.42
99.35
				
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets			
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value
Interest income on plan assets
Re-measurement- actuarial gain
Return on plan assets recognised in
other comprehensive income
Contributions
Benefits settled
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value
Net defined benefit liability
168.81
129.42
99.35
29(B)(2) Expense recognised in profit or loss
Particulars		
31.03.2020
31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Current service cost
69.38
50.77
12.39
Interest cost
8.56
6.89
3.96
Past service cost
Interest income
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability			
- Changes in experience adjustments
-28.51
-15.82
33.40
- Changes in demographic assumptions
0.02
-4.14
- Changes in financial assumptions
8.70
1.25
-0.60
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit asset			
Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate
- 		
Expense recognised in profit or loss
58.15
43.10
45.01
29(B)(3) Plan assets
Particulars		
Funds managed by insurer
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31.03.2020
-

31.03.2019
-

01.04.2018
-
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29(B)(4) Defined benefit obligation - Actuarial assumptions
Particulars		
Discount rate
Future salary growth
Attrition rate
Normal retirement age

31.03.2020
4.90%
10.00%
30%
60 years

31.03.2019
6.60%
10.00%
30%
60 years

01.04.2018
6.94%
10.00%
30%
60 years

29(B)(5) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably, possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions,
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:						
Particulars
Present Value of
Obligation (Base)
Discount Rate (- / + 1%)
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%)
Attrition Rate
(- / + 50% of attrition rates)
Mortality Rate
(- / + 10% of mortality rates)

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

168.81
Increase

Decrease

129.42
Increase

Decrease

99.35
Increase

Decrease

163.58
174.07

174.39
163.77

125.80
133.11

133.26
125.88

96.43
102.34

102.46
96.49

154.34

209.75

122.84

146.82

96.54

107.91

168.78

168.83

129.41

129.44

99.34

99.36

30. Contingent liabilities
Particulars		
Demands under Income Tax Act, 1961
Demand under Employee Provident
Fund Act, 1952
Indemnity undertaking given to
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited
for insurance claims
Penalty under Income Tax Act, 1961 - AY 2007-08

31.03.2020
-

31.03.2019
37.66

01.04.2018
32.20

25.37

25.37

25.37

19.84
-

71.02

71.02

31. Capital commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and are
not provided:			
Particulars
For purchase / development
of computer software

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

-

-

-
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32. Related party transactions
Names of the related parties (as per IndAS – 24)
Holding Company
Subsidiary Company
Company under common control
Company under common control
Company under common control
Companies in which directors exercise
significant influence
Companies in which directors exercise
significant influence
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Additional Director
Additional Director
Additional Director
Additional Director
Additional Director
Relative of Key Management Personnel

Particulars

Credit Access Grameen Limited (w.e.f. 18.03.2020)
Madura Micro Education Private Limited
Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited
Scimergent Analytics and Education Private Limited
Microcredit Foundation of India
A V Thomas and Co Ltd (till 18.03.2020)
Midland Rubber & Produce Company Ltd (till 18.03.2020)
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
Mr. F S Mohan Eddy
Mr. M Narayanan (w.e.f. 01.08.2019)
Mr. Rajasekar Ramaraj (till 18.03.2020)
Mr. Ashok Mirza (till 18.03.2020)
Mr. Ajit Thomas (till 18.03.2020)
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
Ms. Kavitha Vijay (till 18.03.2020)
Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa (till 18.03.2020)
Mr. George Joseph (w.e.f. 18.03.2020)
Mr. Paolo Brichetti (w.e.f. 18.03.2020)
Mr. Ram Diwakar Boddupalli (w.e.f. 18.03.2020)
Mr. Manoj Kumar (w.e.f. 18.03.2020)
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar (w.e.f. 18.03.2020)
Mrs. Pamela Mohan

Key Management Personnel

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

Transactions during the year		
Salary and perquisites -		
Mr. Tara Thiagarajan
104.63
Mr. F S Mohan Eddy
124.65
Mr. M Narayanan
100.37
Balances at the end of the year		
Incentives payable
133.00

137.30
100.94
98.00

Provisions for gratuity and leave benefits are made for the Company as a whole and the amounts pertaining to
the key management personnel are not specifically identified and hence are not included above.		
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Transactions during the year

Other related parties
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Sitting fees
Mr. Ashok Mirza
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
Mr. R Ramaraj
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa
Rent Paid
Mrs. Pamela Mohan

Transactions during the year

5.25
9.75
10.75
9.50
9.50

8.00
3.50
12.00
8.50
12.00

18.00

17.40

Company under common control
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Professional charges		
Scimergent Analytics and Education Pvt Ltd
Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited
200.88

6.00
258.78

Subsidiary Company
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Transactions during the year		
Expenses reimbursed
20.06
12.11
Training Fees paid
42.86
38.09
Balance at the end of year		
Amount due from subsidiary company
216.12
74.12
Less Provision made
216.12
74.12
Corporate Guarantee given
180.55
Transactions during the year

Other related parties
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Sitting fees payable		
Mr. Ashok Mirza
2.75
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay
3.75
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
5.50
Mr. R Ramaraj
4.50
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa
5.25
Balances at the end of the year
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Leases- Ind AS 116
33.1

Effective 01.04.2019, the Company has applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 01.04.2019
using the Modified Retrospective method along with the transition option to recognise the Right Of Use
asset (ROU) at an amount equal to the Lease liability. Being the first year of INDAS adoption, company has
recognised the lease liability and right-of-use asset as per above mentioned measurement principles at the
date of transition to INDAS as permitted by the Standard. A sum of Rs. 61,22,175 has been recognised as
ROU asset and a similar sum of Rs.61,22,175 has been recognised as lease liability as on transition date of
01.04.2018.

33.2

“The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment
with a similar end date.
2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.
3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.“

33.3

The company’s leased assets mainly comprise office building. Leases contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The term of property leases ranges from 1-3 years. The company has used an incremental
borrowing rate of 12.98% to determine the lease liability and right to use of asset for leases entered into
before March 2019 and accounted under Ind AS 116 and 11.84% for leases entered into in 2019-20

₹ in lakhs

33.4 Total lease liabilities are analysed as at
a

Denominated in the following currencies:
Rupees in Lakhs
Foreign currency
Total

31.03.2020
173.11
173.11

31.03.2019
110.59
110.59

01.04.2018
59.48
59.48

b

Maturity of Lease liability
Current
Non Current
Total		

31.03.2020
75.56
97.55
173.11

31.03.2019
44.24
66.35
110.59

01.04.2018
44.37
15.11
59.48

33.5 The following amounts were recognised as expense in the year:
		
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Expense relating to variable lease payments
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets
Interest on lease liabilities
Total recognised in the income statement
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31.03.2020
76.69
362.02
20.35
459.06

31.03.2019
53.90
255.75
8.04
317.69
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33.6 The following are the undiscounted contractual cash flows of lease liabilities. The payment profile has
been based on management’s forecasts and, could in reality, be different from expectations:
Maturity analysis
Less than 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years
More than 5 years
Total		

31.03.2020
461.49
104.99
566.48

31.03.2019
343.51
209.97
11.30
564.79

33.7 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31.03.2020 and 31.03.2019:
Particulars		
Balance as at 1 Apr
Additions		
Finance cost accrued during the period
Deletion		
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as of Mar 31

31.03.2020
110.59
129.89
19.86

31.03.2019
59.48
101.86
8.04

-87.23
173.11

-58.79
110.59

Refer Note 9 for movement in right to use of assets

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

106

Notes
₹ in lakhs

34. RBI Disclosures
a. Capital to risk assets ratio (‘CRAR’):
Particulars		
CRAR (%)		
CRAR-Tier I Capital (%)
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%)
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II capital
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments

31.03.2020
23.01%
19.53%
3.48%
55.00
Nil

31.03.2019
19.45%
16.63%
2.82%
40.00
Nil

Notes:		
Impairment allowance on Stage 1 loans has been considered as ‘contingent provision for standard asset’ for
the purpose of determining Tier II capital.		
b. Investments
Particulars		
31.03.2020
1. Value of Investments		
(i) Gross value of investments		
		
(a) in India
4,684.57
		
(b) outside India
(ii) Provisions for depreciation		
		
(a) in India
149.00
		
(b) outside India
(iii) Net value of investments		
		
(a) in India
4,535.57
		
(b) outside India
2. Movement of provision held towards depreciation		
(i) Opening balance
149.00
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year
(iii) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provision
(iv) Closing balance
149.00

31.03.2019

1,182.81
149.00
1,033.81
149.00
149.00

c. Derivatives
Particulars		
Cross Currency Swap for External Commercial Borrowing

31.03.2020
-

31.03.2019
7.21

The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31.03.2020 (31.03.2019: Nil).
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d. Disclosure related to securitization

₹ in lakhs

The information on securitisation activity of the Company, as an originator, is furnished below:
Particulars		
31.03.2020
No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for
securitization transactions
8
Amount of securitized assets as per books
of SPV sponsored by NBFC
9,851.06
Amount of exposures retained by NBFC
to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet		
a. Off-balance sheet exposure		
		· First loss
Nil
		· Others
Nil
b. On-balance sheet exposure		
		· First loss – cash collateral
1,599.78
		· Others - over collaterisation
2,840.46
Amount of exposures other than MRR
Nil
a. Off-balance sheet exposure		
		
i. Exposure to own securitizations 		
			· First loss
Nil
			· Loss
Nil
		
ii. Exposure to third party transactions		
			· First loss
Nil
			· Others
Nil
b. On-balance sheet exposure		
		
i. Exposure to own securitizations		
			· Others
Nil
		
ii. Exposure to third party transactions		
			· First loss
Nil
			· Others
Nil

31.03.2019
6
15,707.53

Nil
Nil
1,326.75
2,628.14
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

e. Details of financial assets sold to securitization / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction:
The Company has not sold any financial asset to securitization / reconstruction company for asset
reconstruction in the current and previous year.		
f. Details of securitisation and assignment transactions:		
The Company has undertaken four assignment transactions and four securitisation transactions during the
current year (31.03.2019: two assignments and four securitisation transactions).
Particulars		
Number of loans assigned / securitised during the year
Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold
Aggregate consideration
Interest recognised in statement of profit and loss
account including amortisation of unamortised
interest spread (retained interest)

As at 31.03.2020
170,456
24,731.00
24,731.00

As at 31.03.2019
140,240
21,774.69
21,774.69

3,842.87

2,521.45

Note: The above are securitisation and assignment transactions during the year.
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Upto
30 / 31
days
6,306.95
12,364.30
-1.48
8,647.92
12,533.11
1,000.19
-1.53

1 to 2
months
7,044.64
12,290.01
117.72

2 to 3
months
28,559.05
34,972.60
106.86

3 to 6
months
44,196.03
57,649.84
213.41

6 months to
1 year
69,167.71
54,327.86
861.68

1 to 3
years

3 to 5
years
6,385.00
10.34
852.60

The above maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, has been prepared with reference to the carrying values of assets and liabilities.

Borrowings
Advances
Investments
Foreign currency assets
Foreign currency liabilities

Particulars

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2019:

Company has cash and bank balances amounting to Rs 8020.50 lakhs which is sufficient to meet the ALM mismatch

Particulars

33.62
-

Over 5
years

Over 5
1 to 3
3 to 6
1 to 2
Upto
3 to 5
6 months to
2 to 3
years
years
months
months
30 / 31
years
1 year
months
days
Borrowings
5,712.47
3,457.62
12,064.73
33,715.35
53,548.01
54,148.02
5,919.75
2,496.97
Advances
14,641.19
40,918.63
65,821.93
71,270.17
5.93
Investments
4,501.95
33.62
Foreign currency assets									
Foreign currency liabilities
-

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2020:

h. Asset liability management:

The Company has not purchased / sold any non-performing financial assets in the current and previous year.

g. Details of non-performing financial asset purchased / sold:

170,307.30
184,148.06
1,033.81
2,149.25

Total

171,062.91
192,657.85
4,535.57
-

Total

₹ in lakhs

Notes
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i. Exposures to real estate

₹ in lakhs

Category
A. Direct exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property
that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;
(All loans are under Rs 15 lakhs)
(ii) Commercial Real Estate Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates
(office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS)
and other securitised exposures		
a. Residential
		
b. Commercial Real Estate.
B. Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

25.77

33.61

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
25.77

Nil
33.61

Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have any exposure to Capital Market
Details of financing of parent company products
The Company has not financed any parent company products
Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by applicable NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year w.r.t Single Borrower Limit /
Group Borrower Limit

j. Unsecured advances: Refer Note 6.
k. Registration obtained from other financial regulators:
The Company is registered with financial sector regulators / self regulatory organisations as below.
a) Ministry of Corporate Affairs
b) Reserve Bank of India
c) Microfinance Institutional Network

CIN No.U65929TN2005PLC057390
N-07.00754
20

l. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and previous year.
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Notes
m. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings:
Particulars

111

Name
of rating
agency

Date of
rating

Rating /
(Previous year
rating)

Commercial Paper
Working Capital Facility (Cash
credit/WCDL)
Long Term Bank Facilities

CARE

31.03.2020

Long Term Bank Facilities

ICRA

04.12.2019

14.15% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in August
2015)

ICRA

04.12.2019

14.50% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in March
2017)

ICRA

04.12.2019

11.50% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in August
2017)

CARE

05.12.2019

11.40% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in
December 2017)

CARE

05.12.2019

11.40% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in August
2018)
11.40% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in August
2018)

CARE

05.12.2019

CARE

05.12.2019 BBB+ (Under
Credit watch
with Positive
Implications) /
BBB+ Positive

Not applicable
Rating is not
done
BBB+ (Under
Credit watch
with Positive
Implications) /
BBB+ Positive
BBB+ placed
on watch
with positive
implication /
BBB+ Stable
BBB+ placed
on watch
with positive
implication /
BBB+ Stable
BBB+ placed
on watch
with positive
implication /
BBB+ Stable
BBB+ (Under
Credit watch
with Positive
Implications) /
BBB+ Positive
BBB+ (Under
Credit watch
with Positive
Implications) /
BBB+ Positive
Closed / BBB+
Positive

₹ in lakhs
Borrowing
limit /
conditions
imposed
by rating
agency

Valid up to

950.00

31.03.2021

300.00

03.12.2020

36.60

03.12.2020

50.00

03.12.2020

40.00

04.12.2020

33.00

04.12.2020

15.00

04.12.2020

25.00

04.12.2020
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₹ in crores
Particulars

Name
of rating
agency

11.00% Non-Convertible
Debentures (allotted in
November 2019)

CARE

MFI Grading

ICRA

Perpetual Debt

Date of
rating

Rating /
(Previous year
rating)

05.12.2019 BBB+ (Under
Credit watch
with Positive
Implications)
22.07.2020 M2+ / Rating not
done
NA

Borrowing
limit /
conditions
imposed
by rating
agency

Valid up to

36.00

04.12.2020

21.07.2020

n. Provisions and contingencies
Particulars		
				
Impairment of financial instruments
Provision for income tax
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment and availment
Provision for fraud and misappropriation (net of recoveries)
Provision for other assets (net)
Total			

₹ in lakhs
For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
808.88
2,127.69
3,000.50
4,004.07
76.17
51.52
58.14
43.09
3,943.69
6,226.37

o. Drawdown from reserves:
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31.03.2020 (previous year: Nil).

p. Concentration of advances, exposures and NPAs
Particulars		
31.03.2020
Concentration of advances 		
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
182.27
(%) of advances to twenty largest borrower
0.09%
to total advances
Concentration of exposures 		
Total exposure to twenty largest
182.27
borrowers / customers
(%) of exposures to twenty largest
0.09%
borrowers / customers to total exposure
Concentration of NPAs		
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts
17.45

31.03.2019
414.25
0.23%

414.25
0.23%

50.00

The above represents amount outstanding as per repayment schedule agreed with the borrowers
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Notes
₹ in lakhs

q. Sector-wise NPAs
Particulars

Agriculture and allied activities
MSME			
Corporate borrowers
Services			
Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans		
Other personal loans

Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that
sector as at 31.03.2020

Percentage of NPAs to
Total Advances in that
sector as at 31.03.2019

1.07%
0.52%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
NA
NA

0.84%
0.84%
8.90%
0.00%
0.00%
NA
NA

The above represents amount outstanding as per repayment schedule agreed with the borrowers

₹ in lakhs

r. Movement of NPAs
Particulars		
31.03.2020
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
0.59%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross):		
Opening balance
1,710.94
Additions during the year
8,622.89
Reductions during the year (loans written off)
7,165.28
Closing balance
3,168.55
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs 		
Opening balance
657.10
Additions during the year
7,651.48
Reductions during the year
7,165.28
Closing balance
1,143.30
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs 		
Opening balance
1,053.84
Provisions made during the year
971.42
Write-off / write-back of excess provisions		
Closing balance
2,025.26

31.03.2019
0.36%
575.38
3,253.20
2,117.65
1,710.94
216.63
2,558.11
2,117.65
657.10
358.75
695.09
1,053.84

s. Disclosure of customer complaints
Particulars			
a. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year		
b. No. of complaints received during the year		
c. No. of complaints redressed during the year		
d. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year		
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No. of complaints
0
167
167
0
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t. Information on instances of fraud
Instances of fraud reported during the year ended 31.03.2020:
Nature of fraud
Nil				

No. of cases
Nil

Amount of fraud
Nil

Recovery
Nil

Amount provided
Nil

Recovery
3.09

Amount provided
4.23

Instances of fraud reported during the year ended 31.03.2019:
Nature of fraud
Cash Embezzlement

No. of cases
1

Amount of fraud
7.32

u. The net interest margin (NIM)
Particulars 		
				
Average interest (a)
Average effective cost of borrowing (b)
Net interest margin (a-b)

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
21.34%
21.62%
11.36%
11.31%
9.98%
10.31%

Note:
1. Above computation is in accordance with the method accepted by RBI vide its letter no DNBS.
PD.NO.4906/03.10.038/2012-13 dated April 4,2013 to Micro-finance Institutions Network (the“MFIN format”)
read with the FAQs issued by RBI on October 12, 2017.
2. Securitised loans qualifying for de-recognition as per RBI’s “true sale” criteria and related interest income
have not been considered for computation of “average interest charged” in accordance with the MFIN format.
Accordingly, the purchase consideration received towards such securitisations and related finance costs have
not been considered for computation of “average effective cost of borrowings”. As per Ind AS 109, such loans and
borrowings continue to be recognized on the balance sheet in the Ind AS financial statements.			
3. Interest income considered for computation of “average interest charged” excludes loan processing fee
collected from customers in accordance with para 54 (vi) of the RBI Master Directions. As per Ind AS 109, such
loan processing fee forms part of interest income in the Ind AS financial statements.

v. The Company has not disbursed any loan against the security of gold.
All discosure pertaining to 2018-19 have been reworked based on Ind AS figures as per RBI circular DOR (NBFC).
CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20.				
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w. Asset classification as per RBI Norms
As at 31.03.2020
Asset Classification as per RBI
Norms

₹ in lakhs
Asset
Gross
Loss
Classifica- Carrying Allowances
tion as per amount as (provisions)
IndAS 109 per IndAS
required
under IndAS
109

Net
Provisions Difference
carrying
as per
between
Amount
IRACP IndAs 109
norms provisions
and IRACP
Norms

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)=(3)-(4)
(6)
(7)=(4)-(6)
						
Performing Assets						
						
Standard
Stage 1 190,448.39 1,901.54 188,546.85
765.03 1,136.51
Stage 2 3,704.05
736.36
2,967.69
14.82
721.54
Additional provision				
409.22
-409.22
(refer note below)
Standard assets total		 194,152.44 2,637.90 191,514.55 1,189.07 1,448.83
						
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)						
Substandard
Stage 3 3,168.55 2,025.26
1,143.30 1,982.90
42.35
Doubtful up to 1 year
Stage 3
1 - 3 years
Stage 3
More than 3 years
Stage 3
Doubtful assets total		
						
Loss		
						
NPA total		 3,168.55 2,025.26
1,143.30 1,982.90
42.35
Other items						
Stage 1
Stage 2
Loan to subsidiary
Stage 3
216.12
216.12
NA
NA
Subtotal		
216.12
216.12
Total
Stage 1 190,448.39 1,901.54 188,546.85 1,174.25
727.29
Stage 2 3,704.05
736.36
2,967.69
14.82
721.54
Stage 3 3,384.67 2,241.38
1,143.30 1,982.90
42.35
Total 197,537.12 4,879.27 192,657.84 3,171.97 1,491.19
Note: IRACP provisions for Stage 1 and 2 includes additional 5% provisions of Rs 409.22 lakhs for
defaulting loans under amounting to Rs 8184.37 lakhs, for which asset classification benefit is extended
based on RBI’s circular DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dt 17.04.2020
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₹ in lakhs

As at 31.03.2019
Asset Classification as per RBI
Norms

(1)

Asset
Gross
Loss
Classifica- Carrying Allowances
tion as per amount as (provisions)
required
IndAS 109 per IndAS
under IndAS
109
(2)

(3)

(4)

Net
Provisions Difference
carrying
as per
between
Amount
IRACP IndAs 109
norms provisions
and IRACP
Norms
(5)=(3)-(4)

(6)

(7)=(4)-(6)

Performing Assets						
Standard
Stage 1 181,169.64 1,950.90 179,218.74
728.33 1,222.56
Stage 2 5,085.40
810.99
4,274.41
20.00
790.99
Standard assets total		 186,255.04 2,761.89 183,493.15
748.33 2,013.55
						
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)						
Substandard
Stage 3 1,708.74 1,053.84
654.90 1,903.45
-849.61
						
Doubtful up to 1 year
Stage 3
1 - 3 years
Stage 3
More than 3 years
Stage 3
Doubtful assets total		
Loss		
NPA total		 1,708.74 1,053.84
654.90 1,903.45
-849.61
Other items						
Stage 1
Stage 2
Loan to Subsidiary
Stage 3
254.66
254.66
NA
NA
Subtotal		
254.66
254.66
Total
Stage 1 181,169.64 1,950.90 179,218.74
728.33 1,222.56
Stage 2 5,085.40
810.99
4,274.41
20.00
790.99
Stage 3 1,963.41 1,308.50
654.90 1,903.45
-849.61
Total 188,218.45 4,070.39 184,148.06 2,651.78 1,163.94

Note: Stage 1 provision includes an additional provision of Rs 11.05 Cr on standard assets of SHG potfolio
of Tamil Nadu created in 2019, based on an estimate of impact of natural disaster on the state’s portfolio.		
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As at 01.04.2018
Asset Classification as per RBI
Norms

(1)

₹ in lakhs
Asset
Gross
Loss
Classifica- Carrying Allowances
tion as per amount as (provisions)
required
IndAS 109 per IndAS
under IndAS
109
(2)

(3)

(4)

Net
Provisions Difference
carrying
as per
between
Amount
IRACP IndAs 109
norms provisions
and IRACP
Norms
(5)=(3)-(4)

(6) (7)=(4)-(6)

Performing Assets						
Standard
Stage 1 115,857.46
953.24 114,904.22
466.55
486.69
Stage 2 1,209.12
354.50
854.63
5.00
349.50
Standard assets total		 117,066.58 1,307.74 115,758.85
471.55
836.19
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)						
Substandard
Stage 3
575.38
358.75
216.63 1,195.10
-836.35
						
Doubtful up to 1 year
Stage 3
1 - 3 years
Stage 3
More than 3 years
Stage 3
Doubtful assets total		
Loss		
NPA total		
575.38
358.75
216.63 1,195.10
-836.35
Other items						
Stage 1
Stage 2
Loan to Subsidiary
Stage 3
276.21
276.21
NA
NA
Subtotal		
276.21
276.21
Total
Stage 1 115,857.46
953.24 114,904.22
466.55
486.69
Stage 2 1,209.12
354.50
854.63
5.00
349.50
Stage 3
851.59
634.96
216.63 1,195.10
-836.35
Total 117,918.18 1,942.70 115,975.48 1,666.65
-0.16

Note: Stage 1 provision includes additional provision created to meet minumum provisions required under
IRACP.
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35 Risk Management
35.01 Introduction and risk profile
Madura Micro Finance Limited (“Company”) is one of the leading microfinance institutions in India focused
on providing financial support to women from low income households engaged in economic activity with
limited access to financial services. The Company predominantly offers collateral free loans to women
from low income households, willing to borrow in a Company and agreeable to take joint liability. The wide
range of lending products address the critical needs of customers throughout their lifecycle and include
income generation, home improvement, children’s education, sanitation and personal emergency loans.
35.02 Market Risk
The Company is exposed to various types of market risks during the normal course of business such as
credit risk, operational risk, cash management risk, market exposure risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk.
35.03 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from defaults by borrowers under loan agreements. In
order to address credit risk, the Company has stringent credit assessment policies for client selection.
Measures such as verifying client details, online documentation and the usage of credit bureau data to get
information on past credit behaviour also supplement the efforts for containing credit risk.
Madura predominantly operate in rural and semi urban areas, where we are of the view that the impact
of credit risk is limited. Most of our borrowers are into Agriculture, Dairy, Animal Husbandry, textiles,
cottage and small trading businesses, where they operate in a 30 km radius. As on date these businesses
are running as usual with minimum or no impact. Also, we will be choosy and cautious while lending to
our borrowers in June 2020, when we restart lending. As on date, we are of the opinion that the covid -19
incidence will be very less and not going to hamper our progress. More clarity will evolve in the months to
come, and the way our Government handles the whole situation.
35.04 Operational Risk		
Operational risks arise from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external
events. The Company controls it’s operational risk by maintaining a comprehensive system of internal
controls supported by an on-the-ground internal audit team which conducts checks at the client and branch
levels concurrently with checks and balances instituted at the corporate level. In addition, the Company
has leveraged technology to enhance data integrity and swifter reporting to help in providing actionable
intelligence to contain fraud by taking measures such as verifying client details and documentation online
and using credit bureau data to get information on potential frauds.

		
35.05 Cash Management Risk		
The Company’s branches collect and deposit a large amount of cash through a high volume of transactions
taking place in our branch network. To address the cash management risks, the Company has developed
advanced cash management checks that it employs at multiple levels to track and tally accounts. The
Company ensures that cash collected up to a certain time is deposited at local bank branches on the same
day.

		
35.06 Market Exposure risk		
Market risk is that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Company
classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non–trading portfolios and manages each of
those portfolios separately.
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₹ IN LAKHS

35.07 Total market risk exposure
Tuesday, 31.03.2020

Carrying Traded risk Non-traded Primary risk sensitivity
amount
risk
		
Assets				
		
Cash and cash equivalent
8,020.50
8,020.50 No market risk
and other bank balances
Fixed deposits
5,694.43
5,694.43 Interest rate risk - 1% - Rs 40.91
lakhs
Financial assets at Amortised cost
Loans
192,657.85
- 192,657.88 No market risk as fixed interest
rate
Financial investments–FVTPL
4,535.57
4,501.95
33.62 Price risk - 1% - Rs 45.02 lakhs
Other financial assets at
1,260.03
1,260.03 No market risk as fixed interest
amortised cost
rate
Total
212,168.38
4,501.95 207,666.46
Liabilities
Borrowings (other than
Debt Securities)
ECB loan

141,764.28

- 141,764.28

-

-

-

13,729.92

-

13,729.92

Subordinate debt

7,489.63

-

7,489.63

Borrowings under securitisation
arrangement
Other financial liabilities
Total

8,079.08

-

8,079.08

Debt Securities

119

173.11
171,236.02

Interest rate risk on floating rate
interest loans. 0.25%-Rs 139.73
lakhs
Currency risk & interest rate riskSquared off during the year
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate

173.11
- 171,236.02
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₹ IN LAKHS

Sunday, 31.03.2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and
other bank balances
Fixed deposits
Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans
Financial investments–FVTPL
Other financial assets at
amortised cost
Total
Liabilities
Borrowings (other than Debt
Securities)
ECB loan

Carrying
amount
13,959.10

-

5,500.46

-

184,148.06
1,033.81
791.79
205,433.22
136,199.15

13,959.10 No market risk
5,500.46 Interest rate risk

- 184,148.06
33.62 No market risk as fixed interest
rate
791.79 Price risk
1,000.19 204,433.03 No market risk as fixed interest
rate
- 136,199.15
1,000.19

2,149.25

-

2,149.25 Interest rate risk on floating rate
interest loans

15,321.60

-

15,321.60 Currency risk & interest rate risk

Debt Securities
5,000.00
Subordinate debt
Borrowings under securitisation
arrangement
Other financial liabilities
Total

Traded risk Non-traded Primary risk sensitivity
risk

13,786.56
291.14
172,747.70

No interest risk as fixed interest
5,000.00 rate
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate
- 13,786.56 No interest risk as fixed interest
rate
291.14
- 172,747.70
-
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₹ IN LAKHS

Sunday, 01.04.2018

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and
other bank balances
Fixed deposits
Financial assets at Amortised
cost
Loans
Financial investments–FVTPL
Other financial assets at
amortised cost
Total
Liabilities
Borrowings (other than Debt
Securities)
ECB loan
Debt Securities

Carrying
amount

Traded risk Non-traded
risk

6,170.32

-

6,170.32

No market risk

2,803.83
-

-

2,803.83
-

Interest rate risk

115,975.47
32.34
175.18
125,157.14

- 115,975.47
-

32.34
175.18

-

69,909.72

2,434.67
15,375.63

-

2,434.67
15,375.63

Subordinate debt

5,000.00

-

5,000.00

Borrowings under securitisation
arrangement
Other financial liabilities

7,572.61

-

7,572.61

261.57

-

261.57

100,554.20

No market risk as fixed interest
rate
No market risk as fixed interest
rate

- 125,157.14

69,909.72

Total

Primary risk sensitivity

Interest rate risk on floating rate
interest loans
Currency risk & interest rate risk
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate
No interest risk as fixed interest
rate

- 100,554.20

*The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the changes in market interest rates on debt
securities, other borrowings and subordinated liabilities or price on investments and forex rates on foreign
currency exposures
35.08 Market risk – trading (trading book)					
The Company has invested in listed Mutual funds in 2019-20 which is subject to security price risk.
The Company’s exposure to such investments is limited. The Company manages the risk by diversifying
the portfolio or by holding the investments in only very short spans of time before deploying them in
business.							
35.09 Liquidity risk and fund management risk					
Liquidity risk arises due to the unavailability of adequate amount of funds at an appropriate cost and
tenure. The Company may face an asset-liability mismatch caused by a difference in the maturity profile of
our assets and liabilities. This risk may arise from the unexpected increase in the cost of funding an asset
portfolio at the appropriate maturity and the risk of being unable to liquidate a position in a timely manner
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and at a reasonable price. The Company monitors liquidity risk through our Asset Liability Management
Committee. Monitoring liquidity risk involves categorizing all assets and liabilities into different maturity
profiles and evaluating them for any mismatches in any particular maturities, particularly in the shortterm. The Company actively monitors it’s liquidity position to ensure that it can meet all borrower and
lender-related funding requirements.
The Reserve bank of India has offered three months moratorium to borrowers and the same could be
extended based on the period of lockdown. This could have an impact on the liquidity of the company.
The Company has approached its bankers who have funded the operations for a moratorium on term
loan payments and some banks have already approved the same. 90% of the branches have commenced
operations as on date . The Company has made collections even during the lockdown. So the impact of
liquidity risk is expected to be low.
There are Liquidity Risk mitigation measures put in place which helps in maintaining the following:
35.10 Diversified funding resources
“Asset Liability Management (ALM) can be termed as a risk management technique designed to earn an
adequate return while maintaining a comfortable surplus of assets over liabilities. ALM, among other
functions, is also concerned with risk management and provides a comprehensive as well as dynamic
framework for measuring, monitoring and managing liquidity and interest rate risks. ALM is an integral part
of the financial management process of MMFL. It is concerned with strategic balance sheet management,
involving risks caused by changes in the interest rates and the liquidity position of MMFL. It involves
assessment of various types of risks and altering the asset-liability portfolio in a dynamic way in order to
manage risks.
ALM committee constitutes of Board of Directors who would review the tolerance limits for liquidity/
interest rate risks and would recommend to Board of Directors for its approval from time to time. As per
the directions of the Board, the ALM statements would be reported to the ALM committee on quarterly
basis for necessary guidance.”						
“The scope of ALM function can be described as follows:
i. Liquidity risk management
ii. Interest Rate risk management
iii. Funding and Capital Management”
Capital guidelines ensure the maintenance and independent management of prudent capital levels for
MMFL to preserve the safety and soundness of the Company, to support desired balance sheet growth
and the realization of new business; and to provide a cushion against unexpected losses. Refer Note 34(a)
with respect to regulatory capital of the Company as at the reporting dates.				
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Upto
1 to 2
2 to 3
3 to 6
6 months to
1 to 3
3 to 5
Over 5
Total
30 / 31
months
months
months
1 year
years
years
years
days
Borrowings									
Debt securities
72.55
4,394.02
-1.91
-5.87
-3.96
10,920.80
15,375.63
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
2,523.32
2,887.85
3,120.74
12,609.43
19,371.80
29,613.23
1,941.70
276.31
72,344.39
Subordinated liabilities
5,000.00
5,000.00
Financial liability towards securitisation
531.03
514.73
514.73
1,544.18
3,028.91
1,439.03
7,572.61
3,126.90
7,796.60
3,633.56
14,147.74
22,396.75
41,973.06
1,941.70
5,276.31
100,292.63

Particulars

35.13. Liquidity assessment as on 01.04.2018

1 to 2
2 to 3
Upto
3 to 6
6 months to
1 to 3
3 to 5
Over 5
Total
30 / 31
months
months
months
1 year
years
years
years
days
Borrowings									
Debt securities
69.35
331.41
-3.06
3,650.23
1,487.99
9,785.68
15,321.60
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
4,806.43
6,952.84
5,824.73
22,039.50
38,061.04
58,426.26
2,237.60
138,348.40
Subordinated liabilities
5,000.00
5,000.00
Financial liability towards securitisation
1,429.70
1,362.14
1,340.70
2,976.18
4,860.40
1,817.44
13,786.56
6,305.48
8,646.39
7,162.37
28,665.91
44,409.43
70,029.38
7,237.60
172,456.56

Particulars

35.12. Liquidity assessment as on 31.03.2019

1 to 2
2 to 3
Upto
3 to 6
6 months to
1 to 3
3 to 5
Over 5
Total
months
months
30 / 31
months
1 year
years
years
years
days
Borrowings									
Debt securities
73.12
305.49
-2.62
3,992.30
5,790.45
3,572.54
-1.36
13,729.92
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
4,282.76
3,152.25
12,066.51
26,730.04
44,558.46
50,048.18
926.08
141,764.28
Subordinated liabilities
-0.12
-0.12
0.84
-0.38
1.17
-3.75
4,995.04
2,496.95
7,489.63
Financial liability towards securitisation
1,356.70
2,993.39
3,197.93
531.06
8,079.08
5,712.46
3,457.62
12,064.73
33,715.35
53,548.01
54,148.03
5,919.76
2,496.95
171,062.91

Particulars

35.11. Liquidity assessment as on 31.03.2020

Notes
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35.14. Interest rate risk
“Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in market interest rates might adversely affect MMFL’s financial
condition and the changes in interest rates affect MMFL significantly. The immediate impact of changes in
interest rates is on earnings (i.e. reported profits) by changing its Net Interest Margin (NIM). The risk from the
earnings perspective can be measured as changes in Net Interest Margin (NIM). In line with RBI guidelines,
the traditional Gap analysis is considered as a suitable method to measure the Interest Rate Risk for MMFL
In case of MMFL it may be noted that portfolio loans are not rate sensitive as there is no re-pricing of
existing loans are carried out. Only liabilities in the form of borrowings are rate sensitive and considering
the size of our business the quantum of impact of change of interest rate of borrowings on liquidity is not
significant and can be managed with appropriate treasury action.”
On account of COVID-19 the banks are expected to reset the interest rates. The MCLR rates of public
sector banks have dropped marginally after March 2020. Depending on the period of impact of pandemic,
the interest rates could undergo a change. However MMFL has significant exposure to fixed rate
borrowings by way of NCDs and financial institution and partial exposure to floating rate interest loans
from banks. These floating rate interest rates are reset annually.
The company lends at fixed rates. Hence there is no short term impact of interest rate risk on the company.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible charge in interest rates (all other
variables being constant) of the Company’s profit and loss statement.

35.15
Particulars

Effect on profit / loss and
Effect on profit / loss and
equity for the year
equity for the year
2019-20
2018-19
Borrowings					
Increase in basis points
+ 25
-139.73
-105.99
Decrease in basis points
- 25
139.73
105.99
Basis points

35.16 ALM- Funding and Capital Management

₹ IN LAKHS

35.16 A. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31.03.2020
Sl. No.

Particulars
Within 12 months
After 12 months
Total
ASSETS				
(1)
Financial assets				
(a)
Cash and cash equivalents
8,020.50
8,020.50
(b)
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
2,832.70
2,861.72
5,694.42
(c)
Derivative Financial Instruments
(d)
Receivables				
		 (I) Trade receivables
		 (II) Other receivables
(e)
Loans					
		 - Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
112,914.56
70,282.89 183,197.45
		 - Securitised assets
8,467.18
993.22
9,460.40
(f)
Investments
4,501.95
33.62
4,535.57
(g)
Other financial assets
1,186.39
73.64
1,260.03
				

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

124

Notes
Sl. No.

Particulars

Within 12 months

After 12 months

₹ IN LAKHS

Total

(2)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Non-financial assets			
Current tax assets (net)
447.66
447.66
Deferred tax assets (net)
1,223.71
1,223.71
Property, plant and equipment
749.65
749.65
Right to use assets
160.64
160.64
Intangible assets
89.00
89.00
Other non-financial assets
15.05
15.05
TOTAL ASSETS
137,938.33
76,915.75 214,854.08
				
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
(1)
Financial liabilities			
(a)
Derivative Financial Instruments
(b)
Payables			
		 (I) Trade payables			
			(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
		
enterprises and small enterprises
			(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
2,235.40
2,235.40
		
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
		
		 (II) Other payables			
			 (i) Total outstanding dues of micro
			
enterprises and small enterprises
			
			 (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
645.46
645.46
			
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(c)
Borrowings		
		
- Debt securities
10,158.74
3,571.18
13,729.92
		
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
90,790.03
50,974.25 141,764.28
		
- Subordinated liabilities
1.39
7,488.24
7,489.63
		
- Financial liability towards securitisation
7,548.04
531.04
8,079.08
(d)
Other financial liabilities
75.56
97.55
173.11
				
(2)
Non-financial liabilities			
(a)
Current tax liabilities (net)			
(b)
Provisions
115.85
307.47
423.32
(c)
Other non-financial liabilities
148.54
5.86
154.40
				
(3)
Equity			
(a)
Equity share capital
719.48
719.48
(b)
Other equity
39,440.00
39,440.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
111,719.01
103,135.07 214,854.08
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35.16 B. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31.03.2019
Sl. No.

Particulars
Within 12 months
After 12 months
Total
ASSETS		
(1)
Financial assets			
(a)
Cash and cash equivalents
13,959.10
13,959.10
(b)
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
1,789.28
3,711.18
5,500.46
(c)
Derivative Financial Instruments
(d)
Receivables			
		 (I) Trade receivables
		 (II) Other receivables
(e)
Loans				
		 - Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
117,755.52
51,676.68 169,432.20
		 - Securitised assets
12,054.35
2,661.51
14,715.86
(f)
Investments
1,000.19
33.62
1,033.81
(g)
Other financial assets
731.19
60.60
791.79
						
(2)
Non-financial assets			
(a)
Current tax assets (net)
(b)
Deferred tax assets (net)
1,063.77
1,063.77
(c)
Property, plant and equipment
474.15
474.15
(d)
Right to use assets
13.87
93.57
107.44
(e)
Intangible assets
97.15
97.15
(f)
Other non-financial assets
20.78
20.78
TOTAL ASSETS
147,324.28
59,872.23 207,196.51
							
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
(1)
Financial liabilities			
(a)
Derivative Financial Instruments
7.21
7.21
(b)
Payables			
		 (I) Trade payables			
			(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
		
enterprises and small enterprises
			(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
		
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
954.41
954.41
		 (II) Other payables			
			(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
		
enterprises and small enterprises
			(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
		
other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 642.30
642.30
(c)
Borrowings			
		
- Debt securities
5,535.92
9,785.68
15,321.60
		
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
77,684.54
60,663.86 138,348.40
		
- Subordinated liabilities
5,000.00
5,000.00
		
- Financial liability towards securitisation
11,969.11
1,817.45
13,786.56
(d)
Other financial liabilities
95.83
195.31
291.14
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Sl. No.

Particulars

Within 12 months

After 12 months

₹ IN LAKHS

Total

(2)
Non-financial liabilities		
(a)
Current tax liabilities (net)
215.96
215.96
(b)
Provisions
96.85
203.87
300.72
(c)
Other non-financial liabilities
125.40
5.85
131.25
					
(3)
Equity				
(a)
Equity share capital
719.48
719.48
(b)
Other equity
31,477.48
31,477.48
					
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
97,320.32
109,876.19 207,196.51

35.16 C. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 01.04.2018
Sl. No.

Particulars
Within 12 months
After 12 months
Total
ASSETS		
(1)
Financial assets			
(a)
Cash and cash equivalents
6,170.32
6,170.32
(b)
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
1,563.66
1,240.17
2,803.83
(c)
Derivative Financial Instruments (d)
Receivables		
(I) Trade receivables
(II) Other receivables
(e)
Loans				
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
71,262.12
36,696.23 107,958.35
- Securitised assets
5,995.50
2,021.62
8,017.12
(f)
Investments
32.34
32.34
(g)
Other financial assets
160.91
14.27
175.18
					
(2)
Non-financial assets			
(a)
Current tax assets (net)
(b)
Deferred tax assets (net)
720.88
720.88
(c)
Property, plant and equipment
340.20
340.20
(d)
Right to use assets
59.48
59.48
(e)
Intangible assets
25.03
25.03
(f)
Other non-financial assets
10.68
10.68
TOTAL ASSETS
85,163.19
41,150.22 126,313.41
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
(1)
Financial liabilities			
(a)
Derivative Financial Instruments
193.35
193.35
(b)
Payables			
		 (I) Trade payables		
			(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
		
enterprises and small enterprises
			(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
		
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
67.74
67.74
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Sl. No.

Particulars

Within 12 months

After 12 months

Total

(II) Other payables			
			(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
		
enterprises and small enterprises
			(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
1,449.70
1,449.70
		
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(c)
Borrowings
		
- Debt securities
4,454.83
10,920.80
15,375.63
		
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
40,513.14
31,831.25
72,344.39
		
- Subordinated liabilities
5,000.00
5,000.00
		
- Financial liability towards securitisation
6,133.58
1,439.03
7,572.61
(d)
Other financial liabilities
65.92
195.65
261.57
					
(2)
Non-financial liabilities		
(a)
Current tax liabilities (net)
57.84
57.84
(b)
Provisions
73.27
154.06
227.33
(c)
Other non-financial liabilities
113.30
5.86
119.16
						
(3)
Equity 		
(a)
Equity share capital
719.48
719.48
(b)
Other equity
22,924.61
22,924.61
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
52,929.32
73,384.08 126,313.41
35.17 Risk management structure
Risk is an integral part of our business and sound risk management therefore is critical to our success. As
a financial intermediary, the Company are exposed to risks that are particular to the lending that it do and
the environment in which it operate. The Company continuously identify and implement comprehensive
policies and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk. The Company’s risk management process is
continuously reviewed, improved and adapted in the context of changing risk scenarios and the agility
of our risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk
landscape. The Company assess the fitness of it’s risk management process on an event-driven basis.
The Company’s risk management process has three components:
� The assessment of business risks, operational controls assessment and compliance processes.
� Concentration Risk - The Company aims to avoid concentration in both our loan portfolio and our
borrowings. To mitigate concentration risk, it has well defined geographic and lender dependence norms.
� Borrowing Dependence Norms In order to reduce dependency on any single lender, the Company has
adopted a cap on borrowings from any single lender at 25%.”
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35.18 Capital Management
The Company’s capital management objectives are:
- to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
- to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders.
Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall
financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of
the Company’s various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
₹ IN LAKHS

Particulars
Net Debt
Total Equity
Net debt to total equity

As at 31.03.2020
171,062.91
40,159.48
4.26

As at 31.03.2019
172,456.56
32,196.96
5.36

As at 01.04.2018
100,292.63
23,644.09
4.24

Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + subordinated liabilities +
financial libilities towards securitization
Impairment Assessment
The references below show where the Company’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is
set out in this report. It should be read in conjunction with the summary of significant accounting policies.
Definition of default, significant increase in credit risk and stage assessment
For the measurement of ECL, Ind AS 109 distinguishes between three impairment stages. All loans need
to be allocated to one of these stages, depending on the increase in credit risk since initial recognition (i.e.
disbursement date):
Stage 1: Includes loans for which the credit risk at the reporting date is in line with the credit risk at the
initial recognition (i.e. disbursement date).
Stage 2: Includes loans for which the credit risk at reporting date is significantly higher than at the risk at
the initial recognition (Significant Increase in Credit Risk).
Stage 3: Includes default loans. A loan is considered default at the earlier of (i) the Company considers
that the obligor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realizing collateral (if held); or (ii) the obligor is past due more than 90 days
on any material credit obligation to the Company.
The Company offers products with monthly repayment frequency, whereby 30 and above Days Past
Due (‘DPD’) means already 1 missed instalment from the borrower, and accordingly, the Company has
identified the following stage classification to be the most appropriate for its Loans:
Stage 1: 0 to 30 DPD.
Stage 2: 31 to 90 DPD (SICR).
Stage 3: above 90 DPD (Default).
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Probability of Default (‘PD’)
PD describes the probability of a loan to eventually falling into Stage 3. PD %age is calculated for each loan
account separately and is determined by using available historical observations.
PD for stage 1: is derived as %age of all loans in stage 1 moving into stage 3 in 12-months’ time.
PD for stage 2: is derived as %age of all loans in stage 2 moving into stage 3 in the maximum lifetime of
the loans under observation.
PD for stage 3: is derived as 100% considering that the default occurs as soon as the loan becomes
overdue for 90 days which matches the definition of stage 3.
Exposure at default (EAD)
Exposure at default (EAD) is the sum of outstanding principal and the interest amount accrued but not
received on each loan as at reporting date.
Loss given default (LGD)
LGD is the opposite of recovery rate. LGD = 1 – (Recovery rate). LGD is calculated based on past
observations of Stage 3 loans.
The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at
a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the Exposure at Default.
Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis
The Company believes that the Self Help Group (SHG) loans have shared risk characteristics (i.e.
homogeneous) and Individual Loans (IL) have not shared risk characteristics. Therefore, SHG and IL are
treated as two separate groups for the purpose of determining impairment allowance.
Analysis of inputs to the ECL model under multiple economic scenarios
Adjusting the ECL to reflect the expected changes (if any) in the economic environment for forward
looking information in the form of management overlay.
Based on the historical loss experience, adjustments need to be made on the average PD computed to
give effect of the current conditions which is done through management overlay by assigning probability
weightages to different scenarios.
35.19 Foreign currency risk:
In view of the Pandemic and oil prices, the rupee has been weakening against the USD. However as of
31.03.2020, the company does not have any foreign currency exposure.
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36 Financial instruments – Fair values
Accounting classification and fair values:
Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy, are presented below. It does not include the fair value information for financial assets and
financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Fair value hierarchy					
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.		
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).				
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial assets

Measured at

Carrying
amount

31.03.2020
Fair value
Level 2
Level 1

₹ IN LAKHS

Level 3

Loans
Amortised cost
192,657.85 		 195,846.52
Investments
FVTPL
4,535.57
4,501.95 		
33.62
Total		 197,193.42
4,501.95 195,846.52
33.62
					
Fair value of financial liabilities

Measured at

Debt securities
Amortised cost
Borrowings other than debt
Amortised cost
securities
Subordinated liabilities
Amortised cost
Total		

Financial assets

Measured at

Loans
Amortised cost
Investments
FVTPL
Total		

131

Carrying
amount

31.03.2020
Fair value
Level 2
Level 1

Level 3

13,729.92 		 14,024.46
141,764.28 		 142,805.57
7,489.63 		
162,983.83
-

Carrying
amount

8,509.28
165,339.31

31.03.2019
Fair value
Level 2
Level 1

184,148.06 		 187,403.17
1,033.81
1,000.19
33.62
185,181.87
1,000.19 187,436.79

-

Level 3
33.62
33.62
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Fair value of financial liabilities

Measured at

Carrying
amount

31.03.2019
Fair value
Level 2
Level 1

₹ IN LAKHS

Level 3

Debt securities
Amortised cost
15,321.60
15,625.00
Borrowings other than debt
Amortised cost
138,348.40
- 139,063.84
securities
Subordinated liabilities
Amortised cost
5,000.00
5,547.00
Total		 158,670.00
- 160,235.84
					

Financial assets

Measured at

Loans
Amortised cost
Investments
FVTPL
Total		

Fair value of financial liabilities

Measured at

Carrying
amount
115,975.47
32.34
116,007.81

Carrying
amount

01.04.2018
Fair value
Level 2
Level 1
-

117,866.32
117,866.32

31.03.2019
Fair value
Level 2
Level 1

Level 3
32.34
32.34

Level 3

Debt securities
Amortised cost
15,375.63
15,688.00
Borrowings other than debt
Amortised cost
72,344.39
73,283.44
securities
Subordinated liabilities
Amortised cost
5,000.00
5,480.00
Total		
92,720.02
- 94,451.44
					
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables,loans measured at amortised cost, other financial assets / liabilities,other non-financial assets /
liabilities, payables and provisions are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term
nature.
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37 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit / loss after tax and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS
calculations:
Particulars			
Net profit/ (loss) after tax as per 			
statement of profit and loss			
Net profit/ (loss) as above for			
calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS			
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of diluted EPS			
Weighted average number of equity			
shares in calculating basic EPS			
Weighted average number of equity			
shares in calculating dilutive EPS			
Earnings per share (Rs)			
Diluted earnings per share (Rs)			
Nominal value per share (Rs)			

31.03.2020
7,983.87

31.03.2019
8,552.24

7,983.87

8,552.24

7,983.87
7,194,761

8,552.24
7,194,761

7,194,761

7,194,761

110.97
110.97
10.00

118.90
118.90
10.00

38 “The erstwhile promoters, major shareholders and others signed Share Purchase Agreements with Credit
Access Grameen Limited (NSE: CREDITACC, BSE: 541770) (“CAGL”), India’s leading microfinance institution on
27.11.2019 enabling CAGL to acquire 76.34% of the Company’s shares. The Directors have approved a Scheme
of Amalgamation of the Company with M/s CreditAccess Grameen Limited (CAGL- Transferee Company)
under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to obtaining the necessary approvals from the
Shareholders, Reserve Bank of India, Securities Exchange Board of India, National Company Law Tribunal,
Lending Institutions and others
Company received RBI approval for the same on 29.01.020 pursuant to which 54,42,128 Equity Shares
representing 75.64% of the paid-up Capital of the Company have been acquired by CAGL on 18.03.2020 and the
shareholding has further increased to 76.08% as on 31.03.2020.
Consequently, effective 18.03.2020, our company has become a Subsidiary of Credit Access Grameen Limited.
Company will be applying to NCLT post lockdown, and on approval will be merged with CAGL“
39 The approval for re-appointment of Ms. Tara Thiagarajan as the Managing Director of the Holding Company
for the period Oct 2013 to Sep 2016 is pending with the Central Government for approval. The Company
has furnished all the necessary documents/clarifications in this regard to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA). During this period an amount of INR 132.50 lakhs excluding gratuity was paid to Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
as remuneration. The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic has created a technical delay for obtaining the approval
order from MCA. However, the Company is confident of getting the approval at earliest based on the recent
communication from MCA.
					
40 Segment information
The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns
for the purpose of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’. The Company operates in a single geographical
segment i.e. domestic.
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41 Disclosure relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:			
Particulars		
(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers		
(b) Interest due on the above remaining unpaid to suppliers
(c) Interest paid during the year in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(d) Amount paid to suppliers beyond the appointed day during
the year
(e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payments which have been paid beyond the appointed but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
(g) Interest remaining due and payable and paid during the year,
for disallowance of deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006

31.03.2020
-

31.03.2019
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

42 On 11.03.2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization.
It continues to spread across the country leading to a significant decline and volatility in the Indian Financial
Markets and a significant decrease in local economic activities. On 24.03.2020, the Indian Government
announced a strict 21-day lockdown followed by further extensions of lockdown till 17.05.2020 and various
containment measures.
The Company has made an initial assessment of the impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets
and receivables as at 31.03.2020. The Company’s business is expected to be impacted by lower lending
opportunities and higher credit losses in the coming financial years thereby affecting future profitability.
Subject to this, the Company expects to earn interest income from existing loan book during the coming years
thereby recovering the fixed costs likely to be incurred. 					
Moreover, with various stimulus packages and other measures being announced by the Government to revive
economic activity in the country, company expects business to improve over the next couple of quarters.
In accordance with the Reserve Bank Of India (RBI) guidelines relating to COVID-19 regulatory package dated
April 17’th 2020, the Company has granted moratorium of three months on the payment of all instalments
falling due between 01.03.2020 and 31.05.2020 to its eligible borrowers based upon a Board approved policy.
For all such accounts where the moratorium is granted, the asset classification will remain unchanged during the
moratorium period. 					
The company makes provision for impairment based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model as per INDAS
109. Company has revised its ‘Probability of Default’(PD) estimates to factor in the impact of the pandemic and
has created an additional management overlay on ECL as at 31.03.2020.				
The Company based on its initial estimates and assumptions has provided for the impact of the pandemic on
the Financial Statements. Moreover, due to the uncertainties associated with the pandemic, the actual impact
may not be in line with current estimates. The Company will continue to closely monitor any changes to the
estimates basis future economic conditions. Further, the impact assessment does not indicate any adverse
impact on the ability of the company to continue as a going concern.				
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43 Disclosure as per Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards:
43.01 Overall principle:
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of 1st April, 2018 (the transition
date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items
of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind
AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.
However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions
availed by the Company as detailed below:
43.02 Mandatory exceptions and optional exemption
Deemed Cost:
The Company has elected to use the written down value of the PPE, intangible on the date of transition as
the cost of PPE.
Classification of debt instruments:
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the
transition date.
Leases:
The Company as a lessee has applied the provisions of IND AS 116 on lease by lease basis.
The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 for lease terms which ends within
12 months from the date of transition and where management does not have an intention to continue the
lease.
Similarly the Company has also elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 where the underlying
asset value is of low value.
The Company has used Modified Retrospective Approach to account for lease liability and the
corresponding right of use asset at the transition date.
Classification and measurement of financial assets:
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.
Impairment of financial assets:
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as
permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially
recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date.
Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at
the date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.
Estimates:
The estimates at 01.04.2018 and at 31.03.2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates in
accordance with Previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) apart
from the following items where application of Previous GAAP did not require estimation:
- FVTPL / FVOCI – equity and debt instrument.
- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.
The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions
at 01.04.2018, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of 31.03.2019.
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Particulars

Refer
note
below

As at 31.03.2019
Ind AS
Previous GAAP
Adjustments
As at
31.03.2019

As at 01.04.2018
Previous GAAP
Ind AS
Adjustments
As at
01.04.2018

₹ IN LAKHS

ASSETS							
(1)
Financial assets							
(a)
Cash and cash equivalents		
13,959.10
13,959.10
6,170.32
6,170.32
(b)
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents		
5,500.46
5,500.46
2,803.83
2,803.83
(c)
Receivables		
		
(I) Trade receivables		
		
(II) Other receivables		
(d)
Loans		
		
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
1&2
170,358.98
-926.77
169,432.20
108,744.76
-786.41
107,958.35
		
- Securitised assets
7
2,628.14
12,087.73
14,715.86
1,219.45
6,797.68
8,017.12
(e)
Derivative Financial Instruments		
(f)
Investments		
1,020.19
13.61
1,033.81
20.00
12.34
32.34
(g)
Other financial assets
7
254.61
537.19
791.79
175.18
175.18
			
(2)
Non-financial assets		
(a)
Current tax assets (net)		
(b)
Deferred tax assets (net)
5
1,011.59
52.18
1,063.77
390.40
330.48
720.88
(c)
Property, plant and equipment		
474.15
474.15
340.20
340.20
(d)
Right to use assets
6
107.44
107.44
59.48
59.48
(e)
Intangible assets		
97.15
97.15
25.03
25.03
(f)
Other non-financial assets		
20.78
20.78
10.67
0.01
10.68
Total assets		
195,325.15
11,871.39
207,196.51
119,899.84
6,413.59
126,313.41
								
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY							
(1)
Financial liabilities							
(a)
Derivative Financial Instruments		
7.21
7.21
193.35
193.35
(b)
Payables		
		
(I) Trade payables		
			
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
			
and small enterprises
			
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than		
954.41
954.41
67.74
67.74
			
micro enterprises and small enterprises		
		
(II) Other payables		
			
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
			
and small enterprises
			
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 		
641.94
0.36
642.30
1,449.70
1,449.70
			
micro enterprises and small enterprises		

Sr.
No.

44 Reconciliation of equity as at 31.03.2019

Notes
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Particulars

Refer
note
below

(c)
Borrowings		
		
- Debt securities
1
		
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
1
		
- Subordinated liabilities		
		
- Financial liability towards securitisation
7
(d)
Other financial liabilities
6
			
(2)
Non-financial liabilities		
(a)
Current tax liabilities (net)		
(b)
Provisions		
(c)
Other non-financial liabilities 		
			
(3)
Equity		
(a)
Equity share capital		
(b)
Other equity		
Total liabilities and equity		

Sr.
No.
15,374.85
138,867.06
5,000.00
1,730.91
215.96
300.72
131.25
719.48
31,381.36
195,325.15

-53.25
-518.66
12,055.65
291.14
96.12
11,871.36

As at 31.03.2019
Ind AS
Previous GAAP
Adjustments
15,321.60
15,436.74
138,348.40
72,604.46
5,000.00
5,000.00
13,786.56
695.81
291.14 		
215.96
57.84
300.72
227.33
131.25
119.15
719.48
719.48
31,477.48
23,328.23
207,196.51
119,899.82

As at
31.03.2019
-61.11
-260.07
6,876.80
261.57
0.00
0.00
-403.62
6,413.57

As at 01.04.2018
Previous GAAP
Ind AS
Adjustments

719.48
22,924.61
126,313.41

57.84
227.33
119.15

15,375.63
72,344.39
5,000.00
7,572.61
261.57

As at
01.04.2018

₹ IN LAKHS

Notes
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45 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31.03.2019
For the year ended 31.03.2019
Refer
Particulars
Sr.
Previous GAAP
Ind AS
As at
note
No.
Adjustments
31.03.2019
below

I

Revenue from operations				
(a) Interest income				
		
- Interest on loans
1
35,045.70
-394.14
34,651.56
		
- Income on securitisation
7
857.56
1,017.62
1,875.18
		
-Income from portfolio purchased for assignment		
72.59
72.59
		
- Interest on deposits with banks and 		
286.61
286.61
		
financial institutions		
(b) Fees and commission		
26.50
26.50
(c) Dividend income		
0.30
0.30
(d) Net gain on fair value changes		
327.31
1.28
328.59
(e) Bad debts Recoverd
7
209.09
1.18
210.27
(f) Others
7
108.51
526.15
634.66
Total revenue from operations (I)		
36,934.17
1,152.09
38,086.26
					
II Other income		
522.90
522.90
III Total income (I+II)		
37,457.07
1,152.09
38,609.16
					
IV Expenses				
(a) Finance costs				
		
- On borrowings
1
14,654.04
-242.69
14,411.35
		
- On financial liability towards securitisation
7
565.52
565.52
(b) Impairment of financial instruments
2
3,426.53
56.11
3,482.64
(c) Employee benefits expenses
3
4,600.82
0.89
4,601.71
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
6
281.71
53.90
335.61
(e) Other expenses
6
3,057.96
-58.79
2,999.17
Total expenses (IV)		
26,021.06
374.94
26,396.00
					
V Profit before tax (III-IV)		
11,436.01
777.15
12,213.16
					
VI Tax expense				
		(1) Current tax		
3,932.72
3,932.72
		
(2) Earlier year tax		
71.35
71.35
		
(2) Deferred tax
5
-621.19
278.04
-343.15
Total tax expense (VI)		
3,382.88
278.04
3,660.92
					
VII Profit / (loss) for the year (V-VI)		
8,053.13
499.11
8,552.24
					
VIII Other comprehensive income
4			
(a) (1) Items that will not be reclassified to
		
profit or loss				
		
- Remeasurement (losses) and gains on		
0.89
0.89
		
defined benefit obligations (net)		
		
(2) Income tax relating to items that		
-0.26
-0.26
		
will not be reclassified to profit or loss		
Subtotal (a)		
0.63
0.63
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Sr.
No.

Particulars

Refer
note
below

For the year ended 31.03.2019
Previous GAAP
Ind AS
As at
Adjustments
31.03.2019

(b) (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss				
		
- Net change in fair value of loans measured at
		
fair value through other comprehensive income				
(2) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss				
Subtotal (b)				
Other comprehensive income (VIII = a+b)		
0.63
0.63
					
IX Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)		
8,053.13
499.74
8,552.87
(comprising profit / (loss) and other comprehensive
income for the year)		

139

Madura Micro Finance Standalone Financial Statements

Notes
Notes
1 EIR on loans and borrowings:				
Under Previous GAAP, loan processing fees received in connection with loans portfolios were recognized
upfront and credited to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, loan processing fee is credited to profit
and loss using the effective interest rate method (amortising the processings over the period of the loan). The
unamortized portion of loan processing fee is adjusted from the loan portfolio.
For Borrowings under Previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised
upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under IndAS, transaction costs are included in the initial
recognition amount of financial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective interest method.
2 Expected credit losses on loans:
Under Previous GAAP, the Company has created provision for loans and advances based on the provisioning
norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India in NBFC Master Directions. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance
has been determined based on Expected Credit Loss model (ECL). Loans under securitisation and guarantees
which were earlier off balance sheet items have now been classified under loans based on risk retained and
impairment allowance has been done on such items also. The differential impact has been adjusted in Retained
Earning/ Profit and Loss during the year. Under Previous GAAP, contingent provision against standard assets
and provision for non-performing assets were presented under provisions. However, under Ind AS, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL are presented net of provision for expected credit losses.
3 Defined benefit obligations:				
Both under Previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined
benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Previous GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses,
are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI.
4 Other comprehensive income
Under Previous GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately. Hence,
it has reconciled Previous GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, Previous GAAP profit or
loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.				
5 Deferred tax
Previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses
on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities
to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of
Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not
required under Previous GAAP.
In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting
policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.
6. Lease accounting				
Under the previous GAAP, the lease rentals on operating leases were accounted as rent. Under the Ind AS, a
Right to Use of asset and lease liability are created and depreciation is charged on the Right to use of asset and
finance cost is charged on lease liability.				
The company has exhanged lease rentals and depreciation on assets accounted under Ind AS 116 and lease
rentals on other assets as rent expense				
7. Assignment & Securitisation trasanctions
“Under the previous GAAP the company derecognised assignment transactions and accounted for Excess
interest spread( EIS) as and when the interests were collected. Under Ind AS in view of significant risk being
transferred to the Asignee, the EIS is accounted upfront on the sale of the portfolio. This income is credited to
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the Profit and Loss account.
Under the previous GAAP the company derecognised securitisation transactions and accounted for income
as and when the interest and the Excess Interest Spread were received.Under Ind AS, since the risk is retained
with the company the securitised portfolio is recognised in the books and the income under securitised
portfolios is accounted using the Effective Interest Rate method.

As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020
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Auditors’ Report
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Madura Micro Education Private Limited
Report on the standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the standalone financial statements of Madura Micro Education PrivateLimited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements”)
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain and audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of out auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify doing our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid (Standalone) financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31.03.2019 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31.03.2019 from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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3. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:
a. There are no pending litigations.
b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.
c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.
ICAI UDIN NO.20020899AAAADL5751

Chennai
Dated: 12.05.2020
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Madura Micro Education Private Limited
(i)		

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

		

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of the verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

		

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties.

(ii)

The Company does not have any inventories.

(iii)

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

(iv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to loans availed by
it.

(v)

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public.

(vi)

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for any of the activities of the Company.

(vii)		

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the amounts deducted/accrued in the books of accounts in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees state insurance, excise, income tax,
sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs,
excise, service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were in arrears as on 31st March 2020 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

		

(b) There are no dues of income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, excise, service tax, cess
or other statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions or debenture
holders.
(ix)

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). As per the records of the Company, the term loans availed during the year were applied for
the purposes for which those are raised.

(x)

As per the records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
frauds by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees have been noticed or reported
during the year.

(xi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration has not paid any
managerial remuneration to its Directors requiring approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)

The Company is not a nidhi company.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Accounting Standard.
(xiv) According to the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of its shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
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(xv)

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the Directors or persons connected with
the Directors.

xvi)

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

Chennai
Dated: 12.05.2020
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
MADURA MICRO EDUCATION PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MADURA MICRO EDUCATION
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls system over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedure selected
depends on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Annexure B
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our Opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial Controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31.03.2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
ICAI UDIN NO.20020899AAAADL5751

Chennai
Dated: 12.05.2020
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Balance Sheet
₹ in rupees

Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2020
Particulars

ASSETS				

Note
No.

As At
31.03.2020

As At
31.03.2019

(1) Non-Current Assets				
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment
4
578,370
1,115,675
(b) Capital Work In Progress				
(c) Intangible Assets
5
677,957
(2) Current Assets		
(f) Financial Assets		
6			
(a) Trade Receivables		
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents		
359,456
1,862,223
(c) Other Receivables		
20,727
88,423
(g) Oher Current Asssets
7			
(a) Current tax assets (net)		
434,352
386,696
(h) Other non-financial assets
8
Total assets					
1,392,905
4,130,974

As at
01.04.2018

640,357
2,355,287

208,092
109,085
14,055
358,000
3,684,876

					
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				
EQUITY			
9			
14,900,000
14,900,000 14,900,000
		(a) Equity share capital		
		(b) Other equity		
(36,388,950) (38,541,131) (40,076,649 )
LIABILITIES				

(1) Non-Current Liabilities
10			
		(a) Financial liabilities				
			
(a) Other payables		
12,896,004 16,419,750
		
(b) Other Non-Current Liabilities
11			
			
(a) Provisions		
401,593
429,467
416,018
(2) Current Liabilities				
(a) Financial liabilities				
		
(a) Borrowings
12
21,277,174
12,868,695 11,201,265
		
(b) Payables		
13			
			
(I) Trade payables				
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				
enterprises and small enterprises
					
- Total outstanding dues of
					
creditors other than micro
					
enterprises and small enterprises		
			
(II) Other payables				
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of
				
micro enterprises and small enterprises
284,209
198,192
277,220
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other thanmicro enterprises and
					 small enterprises				
		
(c) Other Financial Liabilities
14
635,943
967,729
173,943
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(b) Other Current Liabilities				
		
(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
15
		
(b) Provisions		
16
159,185
194,324
96,520
		(c) Other non-financial liabilities
17
123,751
217,694
276,809

Total Equity and Liability		

1,392,905

4,130,974 3,684,876

Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For S.N.S. Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 006297S)
S. Nagarajan
(Partner)
(Membership No. 020899)

Tara Thiagarajan
Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Director

Chennai
12.05.2020
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Profit And Loss
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020
Particulars

I

₹ in rupees

Note
No.

For the year ended

Tuesday,
31.03.2020

Sunday,
31.03.2019

Revenue from operations			
(a) Fees and Commission

18

8,336,463

10,620,490

Total Revenue from Operations (I)		
II Other Income
19
III Total Revenue (I+II)		
IV Expenses			

8,336,463
17,165
8,353,628

10,620,490
1,007
10,621,497

(a) Finance Cost
20		
		
(i) On Borrowings		
1,034,870
(b) Employee Benefit expenses
21
3,145,125
(c) Depreciation, amortization and impairment
4&5
1,215,262
(d) Other expenses
22
776,501

1,467,245
3,667,083
2,328,214
1,526,808

Total Expenses (IV)		
6,171,758
V Profit before Tax		
2,181,870
VI Tax Expense
23		

8,989,350
1,632,147

(a) Current Tax			
(b) Deferred Tax			

Total Tax Expense (VI)		
VII Profit/(loss) for the year (V-VI)		
2,181,870
VIII Other Comprehensive Income			
(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans		
Tax effect on above		

1,632,147

(29,688)
-

(96,629)
-

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year		
(29,688)
IX Total comprehensive income (VII +VIII)
(comprising profit/loss and other comprehensive
income for the year)		
2,152,182
X Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs.10 each)			

(96,629)

Basic				
Diluted				

1.44
1.44

1,535,518
1.03
1.03

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
Vide our report of even date attached
For S.N.S. Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 006297S)
S. Nagarajan
(Partner)
(Membership No. 020899)

Tara Thiagarajan
Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Director

Chennai
12.05.2020

Madura Micro Education Financial Statements

154

Cash Flow
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31.03.2020
Particulars

₹ in rupees

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Cash flow from operating activities:			
Profit before tax		
2,152,181.84
1,535,517.64
			
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:			
Interest income on loans		
Depreciation and amortisations		
1,215,262.00
2,328,214.00
Interest expense on borrowings		
882,847.00
1,199,389.00
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss		
Dividend Income		
			
2,098,109.00
3,527,603.00
			
Operational cash flows from interest:			
Interest received on loans		
Interest received on loans securitised (re-recognised on balance sheet)		
Interest paid on borrowings		
(882,847.00)
(1,199,389.00)
Interest on financial liability towards securitisation
(re-recognised on balance sheet)		
			
Working capital changes:			
Increase in loans		
(Increase) / decrease in bank balance other
than cash and cash equivalents		
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables		
(Increase) / decrease in other receivables		
67,696.00
20,662.00
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets		
(47,656.00)
(372,641.00)
(Increase) / decrease in other non-financial assets		
358,000.00
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables		
(245,769.00)
714,758.00
Increase / (decrease) in Provisions		
(63,013.00)
111,253.00
(Decrease) / increase in other non-financial liabilities		
(93,943.00)
(59,115.00)
			
(382,685.00)
772,917.00
Income tax paid		
Net cash flows used in operating activities		
2,984,758.84
4,636,648.64
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Cash Flow
Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		
Purchase of Intangible assets		
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit and loss		
Sale of investments at fair value through profit and loss		
			
Net cash flows (used in) / from investing activities		
			
Financing activities			
Borrowings other than debt securities issued (net)		
(4,487,525.00)
Net Cash flows from financing activities		
(4,487,525.00)
			
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		
(1,502,766.16)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year		
1,862,222.56
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year		
359,456.40

(1,126,202.00)
(1,126,202.00)

(1,856,316.00)
(1,856,316.00)
1,654,130.64
208,091.92
1,862,222.56

Vide our report of even date attached
For S.N.S. Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 006297S)
S. Nagarajan
(Partner)
(Membership No. 020899)

Tara Thiagarajan
Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Director

Chennai
12.05.2020
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Notes
Madura Micro Education Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020
1. Corporate Information
The Company is a private limited company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate
Identification No. U80301TN2013PTC091745. The Company is engaged in the business of providing Skill
development training to Micro entrepreneurs and others. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Madura
Micro Finance Limited (CIN U65929TN2005PLC057390). In turn, Madura Micro Finance Limited is a subsidiary
of Credit Acces Grameen Limited (CIN L51216KA1991PLC053425 ). (ref.1.138 of Ind AS 1)
1.1. Basis Of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time
to time) and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).The rules specify the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain class of companies and sets out dates of applicability.
Madura Micro Finance Limited, the Holding Company of the company, being a Non-Banking Financial
Company, for which IND AS is applicable from Phase III as defined in the said notification, is required to
apply the standards as specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Hence being a
subsidiary, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from 01.04.2018. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31.03.2019, the Company prepared its financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.
The financial statements for the year ended 31.03.2020 are the first, the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards, for transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind AS has
affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is
provided in Note No. 40.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments, financial assets held for trading and financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair
value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest crores, except when otherwise indicated.
1.2. Presentation of financial statements
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle. The normal operating cycle is taken as 12 months.
The Company generally reports financial assets and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet.
They are offset and reported on a net basis only when Ind AS specifically permits the same or the company
has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts not contingent on a future
event. Similarly, the Company offsets incomes and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when
permitted by Ind AS specifically.
1.3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates and
judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in measurement of
items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from those on which the
Management’s estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in
the financial statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Revenue recognition
The fees recceivable in respect of courses conducted is reckoned on accrual basis on the basis of the courses
conducted during the year. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis.
2.2 Finance cost
Borrowing cost on financial liabilities are recognised by applying the EIR.
2.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to insignificant risk of changes in value.
2.4 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)
Initial Recognition and measurement:
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Costs comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import
duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), any attributable
expenditure on making the assets ready for intended use.
2.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities),
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use.
Transition to IND AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all assets, recognised
as of 01.04.2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.
2.6 Depreciation and amortization
2.6.1 Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method
as per the useful life given in Schedule II except the following cases where it is depreciated as per the
useful lives estimated by management.
Asset Type					

Useful Life

Motor Vehicles				

5 years

Furnitures & Fixtures				

6.67 years

Electrical Fittings				

5 years

Temporary structures				1 year
Assets costing less than Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.6.2

Amortisation
Amortisation on intangible assets is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. Software
is depreciated over the license period or 3 years, whichever is lower. The Educational content on
digital media is depreciated over 3 years.
The Company remeasures the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments). The company recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

2.7 Impairment of non–financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.
De-Recognition:
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the item (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the item is derecognised.
An Intangible-asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible-asset measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
2.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their
present values, where the time value of money is material.
2.9 Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.
2.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
2.10.1 Defined contribution plan
Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund are defined contribution schemes. The Company
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds. The Company
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recognises contribution payable to the respective funds as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service.
2.10.2 Defined benefit plan
Gratuity liability, which is unfunded, is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis
of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurement of the liabilities/asset are included in other
comprehensive income.
2.10.3 Short Term Employee Benefits:
Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and
non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.
2.10.4 Other Long Term Employee Benefits:
The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of
each financial year.
2.11 Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax.
2.11.1 Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities, including any adjustments of current tax for prior periods,
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised
outside the statement profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
the recognized amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In view of the unabsorbed losses/allowances, no provision for tax including MAT is considered
necessary on the profits for the period.
2.11.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement profit or loss is recognised outside
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the statement profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
2.12 Earning per share
Basic earnings per share is calcuated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharehoders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted avaerage number of shares oustanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
2.14 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the instruments.
2.14.1 Financial Assets
2.14.1.1. Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The classification of
financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics
and the management’s intention when acquiring them. All financial assets (not measured
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
2.14.1.2. Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
� Debt instruments at amortised cost.
� Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
� Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).
� Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI.
2.14.1.3 Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
2.14.1.4. Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being carried to other
comprehensive income, if both the following conditions are met:
• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
2.14.1.5. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset other than those stated as amortized cost/FVTOCI is subsequently fair
valued through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
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measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Dividend income from these financial assets is
included in other income.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
2.14.2 Financial Liabilities
2.14.2.1. Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is designated as
on initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at
amortised cost.
2.14.2.2. Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss.
2.14.2.3 De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
2.14.3 Reclassification of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The company doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
2.15 Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to statement of profit and loss.
2.16 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation
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techniques. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantegeous market must be accessible by the Company.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
2.17 Foreign currency
2.17.1 All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.
2.17.2 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the
close of the period.
2.17.3 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement
of Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the
period, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses in the
period in which they arise.
3. Leases (where the Company is the lessee)
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. The
company has opted to apply this standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard recognized at the date of initial application.
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with
any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes
an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably
certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the
Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term,
costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to company’s operations
taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease
term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.
The company has also used the practical expedient permitted in the standard for leases ending within 12 months
by treating them as short-term leases.
The Company remeasures the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease
term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The company recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset.
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4. Property, plant and equipment
5. Intangible Assets
At cost:
Computer
Office Equipment
Furniture and
Right to use of
Total
Educational content Other software
Accessories
Fittings
Leased Assets
on digital media
At 01.04.2018
1,369,703
167,459
100,529
173,943
1,811,634
20,324,923
2,427,631
Additions		
1,126,202
1,126,202
Disposals					
173,943
173,943 			
At 31.03.2019
1,369,703
167,459
100,529
1,126,202
2,763,893
20,324,923
2,427,631
								
Additions Disposals								
At March 2020
1,369,703
167,459
100,529
1,126,202
2,763,893
20,324,923
2,427,631
								
Depreciation								
At 01.04.2018
996,714
102,352
72,211
1,171,277
19,320,887
1,076,380
Additions
250,104
32,612
6,525
361,643
650,884
893,254
784,076
Disposals
173,943
At 31.03.2019
1,246,818
134,964
78,736
187,700
1,822,161
20,214,141
1,860,456
								
Additions		
122,885
32,495
6,525
375,400
537,305
110,782
567,175
Disposals		
			
- 			
At 31.03.2020
1,369,703
167,459
85,261
563,100
2,359,466
20,324,923
2,427,631
								
Net Book Value:								
At 01.04.2018
372,989
65,107
28,318
173,943
640,357
1,004,036
1,351,251
At 31.03.2019
122,885
32,495
21,793
938,502
1,115,675
110,782
567,175
At 31.03.2020
15,268
563,102
578,370
-

Particulars

2,355,287
677,957
-

22,752,554

677,957

22,074,597

20,397,267
1,677,330

22,752,554

22,752,554

22,752,554
-

Total

₹ in rupees

Notes
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₹ in rupees
6 (a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Cash and cash equivalents:			
Cash in Hand
4,478
1,638
Balances with bank in current account
359,456
1,857,745
124,431
Deposits with Banks
82,023
Total		
359,456
1,862,223
208,092
			
			
6 (b) Other receivables			
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received.			
Rent Advance
75,000
75,000
Others		
20,727
13,423
34,085
Total		
20,727
88,423
109,085
				

7 Current tax assets (net)			
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Income tax assets
434,352
386,696
Income tax liabilities
Total		
434,352
386,696
			
			
8 Other non- financial assets (at amortized cost)			
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Preliminary expenses (to the extent not written off)
Total		
-

01.04.2018
14,055
14,055

01.04.2018
358,000
358,000

9 (a) Issued Capital
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Authorised			
50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/ each
50,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
			
1490000 equity shares of Rs.10/ each
14,900,000
14,900,000
14,900,000
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(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equity shares

31.03.2019

31.03.2020

No. of Shares

Amount

No. of Shares

Amount

Number shares at the
beginning of the period
1,490,000 14,900,000 1,490,000 14,900,000
Shares issued during
the year				
Shares outstanding at
the end of the year
1,490,000 14,900,000 1,490,000 14,900,000

₹ in rupees

01.04.2018

No. of Shares

Amount

1,490,000 14,900,000
-

-

1,490,000 14,900,000

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Equity shares

31.03.2019

31.03.2020

No. of Shares

% Holding

No. of Shares

% Holding

01.04.2018

No. of Shares

% Holding

Madura Micro Finance
Limited		
1,490,000
100
1,490,000
100
1,490,000
						

100

(c) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceeding the reporting date:			
Particulars

Madura Micro Finance Limited

31.03.2020 - No.
of equity shares

31.03.2019 - No.
of equity shares

1,480,000

1,480,000

31.03.2018- No.
of equity shares
1,480,000

9 (b) Other equity
Particulars
Retained earnings
Other Comprehensive Income
Total

31.03.2020
-36,416,338
27,388
-36,388,950

31.03.2019
-38,598,207
57,076
-38,541,131

01.04.2018
-40,230,354
153,705
-40,076,649

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
a)Term Loan:			
From other Parties **
18,352,608
b) Loans from Related parties
21,277,174
7,412,091
Total
21,277,174
25,764,699
Less : Payable after 12 Months
12,896,004
Total Payable in 12 Months
21,277,174
12,868,695

01.04.2018

10 & 12 Borrowings other than debt securities (at amortized cost)

20,208,924
7,412,091
27,621,015
16,419,750
11,201,265

** Term Loan from National Skill Development Corporation was duly Guranteed by Holding Company
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11 Provisions -Non Current

₹ in rupees

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Provision for Employee Benefit			
Gratuity
279,118
218,310
Leave Encashment
122,475
211,157
Total
401,593
429,467

01.04.2018
194,347
221,671
416,018

13 A Trade Payables
Particulars
(i) Total outstanding dues of
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of Creditors
other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

-

-

-

-

-

-

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
(i) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro enterprises and small enterprises			
Liability for expenses
134,189
111,743
Audit fees payable
88,500
75,000
Sundry Creditors
61,520
11,449
Travelling Expenses Payable
Total		
284,209
198,192

01.04.2018

13 B Other Payables

-

139,914
67,260
70,046
277,220

14 Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars
Lease Liability
Total

31.03.2020
635,943
635,943

31.03.2019
967,729
967,729

01.04.2018
173,943
173,943

31.03.2020
-

31.03.2019
-

01.04.2018
-

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Provision for Employee Benefit			
Gratuity
108,760
92,573
Leave Encashment
50,425
101,751
Total
159,185
194,324

01.04.2018

15 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars
Total
16 Provisions
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17 Other non-financial liabilities (at amortized)

₹ in rupees

Particulars
Statutory Liabilities
Employee Benefit Liabilities
Others
Total

31.03.2020
123,751
123,751

31.03.2019
201,963
15,731
217,694

01.04.2018
72,397
204,412
276,809

18 Fees and commission
Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

4,050,703
4,285,760
8,336,463

6,811,290
3,809,200
10,620,490

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

17,140
25
17,165

95
912
1,007

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

A) On borrowings 		
Interest on borrowings other than Debt
882,847
Other Finance Cost
103,229
On finance lease obligations
48,794
Total
1,034,870

1,199,389
232,982
34,874
1,467,245

Course fees received
Training fees from SHG
Total

19 Other income
Particulars
Interest on deposits with Bank
Interest received from others
Misc Income
Total
20 Finance costs
Particulars

21 Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

3,026,926
147,175
81,576
-130,870
20,318
3,145,125

3,360,662
177,898
75,082
23,530
29,911
3,667,083

Salary and wages
Contribution to PF and other funds
Gratuity
Leave Encashment
Staff welfare expenses
Total
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22 Other Expenses
Particulars
Office Rent
Rates and taxes
Office Maintenance
Preliminary Expenses written off
Printing and Stationery
Computer Maintenance
Electricity charges
Professional fees
Auditor’s Remuneration
Travelling expenses
Postage and telecommunication
Other Expenses
Total

₹ in rupees

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

69,450
4,500
21,509
56,276
128,837
15,968
201,680
140,150
69,031
66,098
3,002
776,501

167,160
4,655
44,021
358,000
59,502
328,657
22,388
112,350
75,000
238,645
112,196
4,234
1,526,808

For the year ended
31.03.2020

For the year ended
31.03.2019

Auditor’s Remuneration
Particulars

As auditor		
Audit fee
102,000
In other capacity		
Certification services
38,150
Total
140,150.00

75,000

75,000

22 (a) OCI - Income
Particulars
OCI - Income
Total
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For the year ended
31.03.2020
-29,688
-29,688

For the year ended
31.03.2019
-96,629
-96,629
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23 Defined benefit plan 						

₹ in rupees

23.1 Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net
defined benefit liability/assets and its components:			
Particulars

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation			
310,883.00

194,730.00

250,791.00

Current service cost

Obligation at the beginning of the year

60,859.00

61,578.00

80,853.00

Interest cost

20,717.00

13,504.00

16,791.00

Past service cost			
Benefits settled

-34,269.00

-55,558.00

-

Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other comprehensive income			
- Changes in experience adjustments
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions
Obligation at the end of the year

6,967.00

2,990.00

-37,297.00

38.00

-

-108,428.00

22,683.00

93,639.00

-7,980.00

387,878.00

310,883.00

194,730.00

			
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

NA

NA

NA

Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value			
Interest income on plan assets			
Re-measurement- actuarial gain			
Return on plan assets recognised in other comprehensive income			
Contributions			
Benefits settled			
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value			
Net defined benefit liability			

23.2 Expense recognised in profit or loss
Particulars

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

Current service cost

60,859.00

61,578.00

80,853.00

Interest cost

20,717.00

13,504.00

16,791.00

Past service cost			
Interest income			
Net gratuity cost

81,576.00

75,082.00

97,644.00

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

23.3 Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability			
- Changes in experience adjustments
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions

6,967.00

2,990.00

-37,297.00

38.00

-

-108,428.00

22,683.00

93,639.00

-7,980.00

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit asset			
Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate			
Total Actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI
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96,629.00

(153,705.00)
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23.4 Plan assets
Particulars

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

0%

0%

0%

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

4.90%

6.65%

6.94%

Future salary growth

10%

10%

10%

Attrition rate

30%

30%

30%

Funds managed by insurer

23.5 Defined benefit obligation - Actuarial assumptions
Particulars
Discount rate

Average term of liabilty (in years)			

23.6 Sensitivity analysis
We have used acturial assumptions selected by the company. The company has been advised that the
assumptions selected should be unbiased and mutually compatible and should reflect the Company’s best
estimate of the variables of the future. The Company has also been advised to consider the requirements of
Para 144 of IND AS 19 in this regard.
Particulars

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

4.90%

6.65%

6.94%

Future salary growth

10%

10.00%

10.00%

Attrition rate

30%

30.00%

30.00%

Discount Rate

01.04.2018

Average term of liability (in years)			
₹ in rupees

Particulars
Discount rate (1% movement)

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

374,576.00

402,150.00

300,810.00

321,649.00

186,664.00

203,385.00

401,297.00

375,060.00

321,213.00

301,021.00

203,057.00

186,812.00

365,945.00

460,371.00

299,747.00

345,987.00

146,895.00

263,598.00

387,837.00

387,920.00

310,863.00

310,902.00

194,728.00

194,731.00

Future salary growth
(1% movement)
Attrition Rate
(- / + 50% of attrition rates)
Mortality Rate
(- / + 10% of mortality rates)
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24 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31.03.2020
Sr. No. Particulars								

Within 12 months After 12 months
Total
ASSETS			
(1)
Non-Current Assets 		
		
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment
578,370
578,370
		
(b) Capital Work In Progress
		
(c) Intangible Assets				
(2)
Current Assets			
		
(f) Financial Assets			
				
(a) Trade Receivables
				
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents
359,456
359,456
				
(c) Other Receivables
20,727
20,727
		
(g) Other Current Asssets			
				
(a) Current tax assets (net)
434,352
434,352
		
(h) Other non-financial assets
Total assets 							
814,535
578,370
1,392,905
				
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
EQUITY			
		
(a) Equity share capital		
14,900,000
14,900,000
		
(b) Other equity					
-36,388,950 -36,388,950
LIABILITIES			
(1)
Non-Current Liabilities			
			(a) Financial Liabilities			
				
(i) Other Payables		
		
(b) Provisions					
401,593
401,593
(2)
Current Liabilities			
		
(a) Financial liabilities 		
				
(a) Borrowings		
21,277,174
21,277,174
				
(b) Payables			
					(I) Trade payables			
					 (i) Total outstanding dues of
					
micro enterprises and small enterprises
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other
					
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
					(II) Other payables			
					 (i) Total outstanding dues of micro
					
enterprises and small enterprises
284,209 		
284,209
						- Total outstanding dues of creditors
						other than micro enterprises and
						small enterprises
				
(c) Other Financial Liabilities
635,943
635,943
(b) Other Current Liabilities			
				
(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
				
(b) Provision 		
159,185
159,185
			
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
123,751
123,751
Total Equity and Liability				
22,480,262
-21,087,357
1,392,905
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Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 31.03.2019
Sr. No. Particulars					

₹ in rupees

Total
ASSETS			
(1)
Non-Current Assets			
		
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment
1,115,675
1,115,675
		
(b) Capital Work In Progress
		
(c) Intangible Assets		
677,957
677,957
(2)
Current Assets			
(f) Financial Assets			
		
(a) Trade Receivables		
		
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents
1,862,223
1,862,223
		
(c) Other Receivables
88,423
88,423
(g) Other Current Asssets			
		
(a) Current tax assets (net)
386,696
386,696
(h) Other non-financial assets
Total assets 				
2,337,342
1,793,632
4,130,974
				
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
EQUITY			
		
(a) Equity share capital
14,900,000
14,900,000
		
(b) Other equity			
-38,541,131
-38,541,131
LIABILITIES			
(1)
Non-Current Liabilities			
		
(a) Financial Liabilities			
				
(i) Other Payables
12,896,004
12,896,004
		
(b) Provisions			
429,467
429,467
(2)
Current Liabilities			
		
(a) Financial liabilities
		
			 (a) Borrowings		
12,868,695
12,868,695
				
(I) Trade payables			
					
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
					
enterprises and small enterprises
						
- Total outstanding dues of
						
creditorsother than micro
						
enterprises and small enterprises
				
(II) Other payables			
					
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				
enterprises and small enterprises
198,192
198,192
						
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
						
other than micro enterprises and
						
small enterprises
			 (c) Other Financial Liabilities
967,729
967,729
		
(b) Other Current Liabilities			
			 (a) Current tax liabilities (net)
			 (b) Provisions 		
194,324
194,324
			 (c) Other non-financial liabilities
217,694
217,694
Total Equity and Liability		
14,446,634
-10,315,660
4,130,974
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₹ in rupees

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 01.04.2018
Sr. No. Particulars		

			

Within 12 months

Total
ASSETS			
(1)
Non-Current Assets 		
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment
640,357
640,357
(b) Capital Work In Progress
(c) Intangible Assets			
2,355,287
2,355,287
(2)
Current Assets 		
(f) Financial Assets			
		
(a) Trade Receivables		
		
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents
208,092
208,092
		
(c) Other Receivables		
109,085
109,085
(g) Other Current Asssets			
		
(a) Current tax assets (net)
14,055
14,055
(h) Other non-financial assets
358,000
358,000
Total assets					
689,232
2,995,644
3,684,876
				
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			
EQUITY			
		
(a) Equity share capital
14,900,000 14,900,000
		
(b) Other equity			
-40,076,649 -40,076,649
LIABILITIES			
(1)
Non-Current Liabilities			
(a) Financial Liabilities			
		
(i) Other Payables		
16,419,750 16,419,750
(b) Provisions				
416,018
416,018
(2)
Current Liabilities			
(a) Financial liabilities
		
		
(a) Borrowings			
11,201,265
- 11,201,265
			 (I) Trade payables			
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				
enterprises and small enterprises
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other than micro enterprises and
					
small enterprises
			 (II) Other payables			
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				
enterprises and small enterprises
277,220
277,220
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other than micro enterprises and
					
small enterprises
		
(c) Other Financial Liabilities
173,943
173,943
(b) Other Current Liabilities			
		
(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
		
(b) Provisions
		
96,520
96,520
		
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
276,809
276,809
Total Equity and Liability		
12,025,757
-8,340,881
3,684,876
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25 Contingent liabilities
Particulars				
Nil			

₹ in rupees

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

26 Capital commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and not provided:

Particulars				
Nil			

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

27 Leases
Operating Lease		
Head office and branch office premises are acquired on operating lease. The branch office premises are
generally rented on cancellable term for period of eleven to sixty months with no escalation clause and
renewable at the option of the Caompany.
There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. There are no subleases. Lease payments during
the year are charged to statement of profit and loss. Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:		
Particulars					

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

Minimum lease obligations			

Not later than one year
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years			

384,444.00
251,499.00
-

348,437.00
619,292.00
-

173,943.00
-

28 Related party transactions
Names of the related parties (as per IndAS – 24)

Holding Company

Madura Micro Finance Ltd.

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Amount due to Holding Company
8,512,091
7,412,091
Corporate guarantee given by Holding Company
12,896,003
18,054,404
Training fees from SHG
3,898,360
3,809,200
Expenses Reimbursed
1,922,451
1,922,451
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29 Risk Management
29.1 Introduction and risk profile
Madura Mirco Education Private Limited is the business of creating awareness of micro finance borrowers
by running training programs.
29.1.a Risk management structure
Market Risk
We are exposed to various types of market risks during the normal course of business such as
credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, cash management risk, asset risk and
inflation risk.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur on receivables. Our business size and volume is
insignifcant and hence we are not affected by credit risk
Interest Rate Risk
We are subject to interest rate risk, on our borrowings . However, we borrow from our Holding
Company at fixed rates . So, we are insulated form this risk
Operational Risk
Operational risks arise from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from
external events. We control our operational risk by maintaining a comprehensive system of
internal controls . Our team also manages compliance with requirements set forth by regulatory
bodies and our internal standards.
Inflation Risk
Inflation rates in India have been range-bound in recent years. However, significant geo-political
events may increase inflation levels in the future. A high-inflation environment may result in an
increase in overall interest rates. High rates of inflation in the Indian economy could also lead to
a higher operating cost, which could impact the results of our operations.However, we borrow at
fixed rate from Holding company and hence the risk is managed
Risk management structure
Risk is an integral part of our business and sound risk management therefore is critical to our
success.We continuously identify and implement comprehensive policies and procedures to
assess, monitor and manage risk. Our risk management process is continuously reviewed,
improved and adapted in the context of changing risk scenarios and the agility of our risk
management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk
landscape. We assess the fitness of our risk management process on an event-driven basis.
Our risk management process has three components:
The assessment of business risks, operational controls assessment and compliance processes.
Concentration Risk - To mitigate concentration risk, we have well defined geographic norms.
29.1.b Risk mitigation and risk culture
Risk assessments are conducted for all business activities. The assessments are to address
potential risks and to comply with relevant legal and regulatory requirements. Risk assessments
are performed by competent personnel from individual departments and risk management
department including, where appropriate, expertise from outside the Company. Procedures are
established to update risk assessments at appropriate intervals and to review these assessments
regularly. Based on the Risk Control and Self Assessment (RCSA), the Company formulates its
Risk Management Strategy / Risk Management plan on annual basis. The strategy will broadly
entail choosing among the various options for risk mitigation for each identified risk. The risk
mitigation is planned using the following key strategies:
Risk Avoidance: By not performing an activity that could carry risk. Avoidance may seem the
answer to all risks, but avoiding risks also means losing out on the potential gain
that accepting (retaining) the risk may have allowed.
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Risk Transfer:

Mitigation by having another party to accept the risk, either partial or total,
typically by contract or by hedging.

Risk Reduction: Employing methods/solutions that reduce the severity of the loss.
Risk Retention: Accepting the loss when it occurs. Risk retention is a viable strategy for small
risks where the cost of insuring against the risk would be greater over time
than the total losses sustained. All risks that are not avoided or transferred are
retained by default. This includes risks that are so large or catastrophic that they
either cannot be insured against or the premiums would be infeasible.
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Carrying
amount

Traded risk

Non-traded
risk

Tuesday, 31.03.2020
Carrying
amount

Traded risk

Non-traded
risk

Sunday, 31.03.2019
Carrying
amount

Traded risk

Non-traded
risk

Sunday, April 1, 2018
Primary risk sensitivity

₹ in rupees

Assets										
Cash & Cash equivalents
359,456 		
359,456 1,862,223 		
1,862,223
208,092 		
208,092
No market risk
										
Other receivables
20,727 		
20,727
88,423 		
88,423
109,085 		
109,085
No market risk
										
Liabilities										
										
Other payables
- 		
- 12,896,004 		 12,896,004 16,419,750 		 16,419,750
No market risk
										
Borrowings
21,277,174 		 21,277,174 12,868,695 		 12,868,695 11,201,265 		 11,201,265
Interest rate risk.Fixed
										
interest- Hence no risk

Assets

29.1.d

Total market risk exposure

Interest rate sensitivity

Notes
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30 Earnings per share (EPS)

₹ in rupees

The following reflects the profit / loss after tax and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations:
Particulars
31.03.2020
Net profit/ (loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss
2,152,181.84
“Net profit/ (loss) as above for calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS
(₹ in crores)”
2,152,181.84
“Add: Interest on debentures convertible into equity shares (net of tax)
(₹ in crores)”
Net profit/ (loss) for calculation of diluted EPS (₹ in crores)
2,152,181.84
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
1,490,000.00
Stock options granted under ESOP
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating dilutive EPS
1,490,000.00
Earnings per share
1.44
Dilutive earnings per share#
1.44
Nominal value per share		

31.03.2019
1,535,517.64
1,535,517.64
1,535,517.64
1,490,000.00
1,490,000.00
1.03
1.03

31 Disclosure as per Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards:
Overall principle:
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of 1st April, 2018 (the transition
date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of
assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as
required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.
However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed
by the Company as detailed below:
Mandatory exceptions and optional exemption
Deemed Cost:
The company has elected to use the written down value of the PPE on the date of transition as the cost of PPE.
Classification of debt instruments:
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the
transition date.
Leases:
The Company as a lessee has applied the provisions of IND AS 116 on lease by lease basis.
The company has elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 for lease terms which ends within
12months from the date of transition and where management does not have an intention to continue the
lease.
Similarly the company has also elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 where the underlying
asset value is of low value.
The company has used Modified Retrospective Approach to account for lease liability and the corresponding
right of use asset at the transition date.
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Classification and measurement of financial assets:
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.
Impairment of financial assets:
The Company has assessed its financial assets for possible impairment as per the Expected credit loss model.
However, the financial assets do not suffer from impairmnet considering the nature of the financial assets.
Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date
of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition,
as permitted by Ind AS 101.
Estimates:
The estimates used by the Company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at
April 1, 2018, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of 31.03.2019.
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Reconciliation of Balance Sheet under IGAAP with Ind AS for 31.03.2019
Particulars

Note
No.

₹ in rupees

As at
IndAs
After
31.03.2019 Adjustments Adjustments

ASSETS
1) Non-Current Assets
		
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment
		
(b) Capital Work In Progress
		
(c) Intangible Assets

1

677,957

2) Current Assets
		
(f) Financial Assets
			
(a) Trade Receivables
			
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents
			
(c) Other Receivables
		
(g) Oher Current Asssets
			
(a) Current tax assets (net)
		
(h) Other non-financial assets
TOTAL ASSETS

1,862,223
88,423
386,696
3,192,472

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
		
(a) Equity share capital
			
(b) Other equity
				
(a) Profit & Loss account
				
(b) Other Comprehensive Income
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
		
(a) Financial liabilities
			
(a) Other payables
		
(b) Other Non-Current Liabilities
			
(a) Provisions
(2) Current Liabilities
		
(a) Financial liabilities
			
(a) Borrowings
			
(b) Payables
				
(I) Trade payables
					
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
					enterprises and small enterprises
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other than micro enterprises and small
					enterprises
				
(II) Other payables
					
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
					enterprises and small enterprises
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177,173

14,900,000
-38,511,904
-

938,502
-

1,115,675
677,957

938,502

1,862,223
88,423
386,696
4,130,974

- 14,900,000
-86,303 -38,598,207
57,076
57,076
-

12,896,004
429,467

12,868,695
-

12,896,004
-

429,467
12,868,695

-

198,192
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198,192

Notes
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other than micro enterprises and
					
small enterprises
			
(c) Other Financial Liabilities
				
(b) Provisions
				
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
TOTAL ASSETS
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194,324
217,694
3,192,472

967,729
938,502

967,729
194,324
217,694
4,130,974
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Reconciliation of Balance Sheet under IGAAP with IndAS for April 1, 2018
Particulars

Note
No.

₹ IN LAKHS

“ As at
IndAs
After
31.03.2018 “ Adjustments Adjustments
IGAAP

IndAS

ASSETS
1) Non-Current Assets
		
(a) Property, Plant And Equipment
		
(b) Capital Work In Progress
		
(c) Intangible Assets

3

2,355,287

2) Current Assets
(f) Financial Assets
			
(a) Trade Receivables
			
(b) Cash And Cash Equivalents
			
(c) Other Receivables
(g) Oher Current Asssets
			
(a) Current tax assets (net)
(h) Other non-financial assets
TOTAL ASSETS

208,092
109,085
14,055
358,000
3,510,933

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
		
(a) Equity share capital
		
(b) Other equity
			
(a) Profit & Loss account
			
(b) Other Comprehensive Income

14,900,000
-40,076,649
-

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
		
(a) Financial liabilities
			
(a) Other payables
		
(b) Other Non-Current Liabilities
			
(a) Provisions
(2) Current Liabilities
		(a) Financial liabilities
			
(a) Borrowings
			
(b) Payables
				
(I) Trade payables
					
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
					enterprises and small enterprises
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other than micro enterprises and small
					enterprises
				
(II) Other payables
					
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
					
enterprises and small enterprises
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466,414

16,419,750
403,085

11,201,265
-

173,943
-

640,357
2,355,287

173,943

208,092
109,085
14,055
358,000
3,684,876

- 14,900,000
-153,705 -40,230,354
153,705
153,705

12,933
-

16,419,750
416,018
11,201,265
-

-

277,220
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Notes
					
- Total outstanding dues of creditors
					
other than micro enterprises and small
					enterprises
			
(c) Other Financial Liabilities
		(b) Other Current Liabilities
			
(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
			
(b) Provisions
			
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
TOTAL ASSETS
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109,453
276,809
3,510,933

173,943
-12,933
173,943

173,943
96,520
276,809
3,684,876
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Reconciliation of Profit and Loss account under IGAAP with IndAS for 31.03.2019
Particulars

For the year ended 31.03.2019
Notes

IGAAP

I

IndAs
Adjustments

IndAS

Revenue from operations				
(a) Fees and Commission		
10,620,490
10,620,490
Total Revenue from Operations (I)		
10,620,490
10,620,490
II Other Income			
1,007
1,007
III Total Revenue (I+II)		
10,621,497
10,621,497
IV Expenses				
(a) Finance Cost				
		
(i) On Borrowings
1
1,432,371
34,874
1,467,245
(b) Employee Benefit expenses
2
3,763,712
-96,629
3,667,083
(c) Depreciation, amortization and impairment
1
1,966,571
361,643
2,328,214
(d) Other expenses		
1,894,098
-367,290
1,526,808
Total Expenses (IV)		
9,056,752
-67,402
8,989,350
V Profit before Tax			
1,564,745
67,402
1,632,147
VI Tax Expense				
(a) Current Tax				
(b) Deferred Tax				
Total Tax Expense (VI)		
VII Profit/(loss) for the year (V-VI)		
1,564,745
67,402
1,632,147
VIII Other Comprehensive Income				
(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
3
-96,629
-96,629
Tax effect on above		
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year		
-96,629
-96,629
IX Total comprehensive income (VII +VIII)
(comprising profit/loss and other comprehensive
income for the year)		
1,564,745
-29,227
1,535,518
X Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs.10 each)					
Basic		
			
1.05 		
1.03
Diluted					
1.05 		
1.03

Signature to Schedules & Notes
Vide our report of even date attached
For S.N.S. Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Firm Registration No. 006297S)
S. Nagarajan
(Partner)
(Membership No. 020899)

Tara Thiagarajan
Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Director

Chennai
Date: 12.05.2020
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Auditors’ Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Madura Micro Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated ﬁnancial statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the
consolidated statement of Proﬁt and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, including a
summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
reports of other auditor on the ﬁnancial information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated ﬁnancial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated proﬁts , the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash ﬂows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) speciﬁed under section 143(10) of the
Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulﬁlled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulﬁlled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
Pursuant to Reserve Bank Of India (RBI) issuing ‘COVID-19 Regulatory package-Asset classiﬁcation and
Provisioning’ on 17’th April 2020, the holding company has granted a three month moratorium and consequential
asset classiﬁcation beneﬁt until May 31’st 2020 to its borrowers. As at 31’st March 2020, for determination of
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provisioning, the ageing of these Loans and Advances and their Asset Classiﬁcation will
remain unchanged as per the Regulatory package. Moreover, the estimates and assumptions made by management
in determining the ECL provision required for its loans are subject to uncertainties that are associated with the
outcome of the pandemic. Hence the actual results may vary from these estimates. Refer Note 43 to the ﬁnancial
statements.
The appointment and payment of remuneration to the Managing Director of the holding company for the period
from October 2013 to September 2016 is subject to approval of the Central Government. A sum of Rs.132.50 Lakhs
(excluding gratuity) had been paid as remuneration to the Managing Director for this period subject to central
government approval, and charged to the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss in the respective years. Refer note 39 to the
ﬁnancial statements.
Our opinion is not modiﬁed in respect of these matters.
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Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signiﬁcance in our audit of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the ﬁnancial year ended 31’st March 2020. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed

Transition to Ind AS accounting framework
(as described in note 44, 45 and 46 of the Ind AS
consolidated ﬁnancial statements)

• Considered the Ind AS impact assessment performed
by management to identify areas to be impacted on
account of Ind AS transition. Also considered the
changes made to the accounting policies in the light of
the requirements of the new framework.

In accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 that sets out timelines for
implementation of Ind AS for non-banking ﬁnancial
companies, Holding Company has adopted Ind AS from
April 1, 2019 with an effective date of April 1, 2018 for
such transition. For periods up to and including the year
ended March 31, 2019, the Holding Company had
prepared and presented its ﬁnancial statements in
accordance with the erstwhile generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). In order to
give effect of the transition to Ind AS these ﬁnancial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2020,
together with the comparative ﬁnancial information for
the previous year ended March 31, 2019 and the
transition date balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 have
been prepared under Ind AS.
This change in the ﬁnancial reporting framework
involved detailed evaluation by management of the
potential impact on every component of the ﬁnancial
statements and to apply signiﬁcant judgements for
selection of appropriate accounting policies suitable for
the transactions and operations of the company and
selection of options available for transition of balances
on transition date from previous GAAP to new GAAP.
The transition has also brought about signiﬁcant
changes in the Holding Company’s ﬁnancial reporting
processes, including generation of reliable and
supportable ﬁnancial information and additional
disclosures required by the Ind AS framework as
compared to the previous GAAP. The transition has also
required the management to exercise judgement in
determining the impact of Ind AS on speciﬁc disclosure
requirements prescribed under extant Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) directions.

• Obtained an understanding of managements’
processes and controls around implementing Ind AS
and seeking explanations from management for areas
involving complex judgements or interpretations.
• Reviewed the implementation of exemptions availed
and options selected by the company for ﬁrst time
adoption of Ind AS to see if they are in accordance
with Ind AS 101.
• Tested the accounting adjustments posted as at the
transition date and in respect of the previous year to
convert the ﬁnancial information reported under
erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS.
• Evaluated the appropriateness and adequacy of
disclosures included in the Ind AS ﬁnancial statements,
with the requirements of the applicable standards.
• Assessed the judgement applied by the management
in reporting of areas where the accounting treatment
prescribed under Ind AS was different from the extant
RBI directions and the impact of such differences on
speciﬁc regulatory disclosures such as capital to risk
weighted assets ratio (CRAR) and Net interest margin
(NIM).

In view of the signiﬁcance of the transition with respect
to the ﬁnancial statements and the complexities in
implementing Ind AS discussed above, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report / the management report, chairman’s statement and
business responsibility report but does not include the consolidated ﬁnancial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. When we read the report, If we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated ﬁnancial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated ﬁnancial position, consolidated ﬁnancial performance, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash ﬂows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards speciﬁed under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal ﬁnancial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the ﬁnancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated ﬁnancial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
ﬁnancial reporting process of the Group.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
inﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufﬁcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company, its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated
in India have adequate internal ﬁnancial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
signiﬁcant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated ﬁnancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufﬁcient appropriate audit evidence regarding the ﬁnancial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the ﬁnancial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signiﬁcant audit ﬁndings, including any signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most signiﬁcance in the audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest beneﬁts of such communication.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(a) We did not audit the ﬁnancial statements of the subsidiary whose ﬁnancial statements reﬂect total assets of Rs.
13.92 Lakhs and net assets of Rs. (214.88) lakhs as at 31 March 2020, total revenues of Rs. 83.53 lakhs and net cash
outﬂows amounting to Rs. (15.02) lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements. These ﬁnancial statements have been audited by another auditor whose report has been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 and
sub-section (11) of Section 197 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the
report of the other auditor.
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The ﬁnancial information of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the transition date opening balance
sheet as at April 1, 2018 included in these Ind AS information, are based on the previously issued statutory ﬁnancial
statements for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us for the holding company and on which
we expressed modiﬁed opinion dated 27 May 2019 and 4 May 2018 respectively and which were audited by
another auditor for the subsidiary and on which an unmodiﬁed opinion had been expressed by him in his reports
dated 24 May 2019 and 2 May 2018. The adjustments to those ﬁnancial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us for the holding
company and by the other auditor for the subsidiary.
Our opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modiﬁed in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of other auditor on
separate ﬁnancial statements and other ﬁnancial information of the subsidiary as noted in the ‘Other matters’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
ﬁnancial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.
(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Proﬁt and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated ﬁnancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards speciﬁed
under Section 133 of the Act.
(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the auditor of the
subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group is disqualiﬁed as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
(f) With respect to adequacy of the internal ﬁnancial controls with reference to ﬁnancial statements of the Holding
Company, and its subsidiary company incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor as also the other
ﬁnancial information of the subsidiary, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:
i. The consolidated ﬁnancial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated ﬁnancial
position of the Group – Refer Note 30 to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.
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(g) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the remuneration paid by the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary company, incorporated in India, to its directors is in accordance with the prescribed provisions and the
remuneration paid to every director is within the limit speciﬁed under Section 197, except for the matter stated
in our Emphasis Of Matter section of this report.
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
S Rajeshwari
Partner
Membership No. 024105
Chennai
Place
of Signature: Chennai
18.05.2020
Date:
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Annexure A
Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even
date on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2020, we have audited the internal
ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting of the Holding Company” and another auditor has audited its subsidiary
company which is a company incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal ﬁnancial controls based on the internal control
over ﬁnancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal ﬁnancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efﬁcient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable ﬁnancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal ﬁnancial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal ﬁnancial
controls system over ﬁnancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal ﬁnancial controls
over ﬁnancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufﬁcient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal ﬁnancial controls system over ﬁnancial reporting of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal ﬁnancial control over ﬁnancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of ﬁnancial reporting and the preparation of ﬁnancial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal ﬁnancial control over
ﬁnancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reﬂect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the ﬁnancial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal ﬁnancial control over ﬁnancial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal ﬁnancial controls system over ﬁnancial reporting and such internal
ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting, with certain changes for remote work environment, were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over ﬁnancial reporting criteria established by the
Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting insofar as it relates to the subsidiary company, which is a company
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the other auditor of the subsidiary incorporated in
India.
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
S Rajeshwari
Partner
Membership No. 024105
Chennai
Place
of Signature: Chennai
18.05.2020
Date:
UDIN: 20024105AAAAA42857
UDIN:-
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Balance Sheet
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
Particulars

₹ IN LAKHS

Note
No.

As At
31.03.2020

As At
31.03.2019

As at
01.04.2018

8,024.09
5,694.43
-

13,977.71
5,500.47
-

6,172.41
2,803.82
-

-

-

-

183,197.48
9,460.40
4,535.57
1,260.27

169,432.20
14,715.85
1,033.81
792.66

107,958.35
8,017.12
32.34
176.26

27(B)
27(B)
9
9
9
8 (B)

452.00
1,223.71
749.81
166.27
89.00
15.05
214,868.08

1,063.77
475.93
116.82
103.93
20.79
207,233.94

720.88
344.87
61.22
48.59
14.26
126,350.12

		
(a) Derivative Financial Instruments
		(b) Payables
			(I) Trade payables
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				
enterprises and small enterprises
				
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
				
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
			(II) Other payables
				
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
				
enterprises and small enterprises
				
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
				
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
		(c) Borrowings
10
			- Debt securities
11
			
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
12
			- Subordinated liabilities
13
			
- Financial liability towards securitisation
14(A)
(d) Other financial liabilities

-

7.21

193.35

-

-

-

2,232.08

954.41

67.74

-

-

-

648.35

644.44

1,454.53

13,729.92
141,764.27
7,489.63
8,079.08
179.47

15,321.60
138,531.93
5,000.00
13,786.55
120.27

15,375.63
72,546.49
5,000.00
7,572.62
61.22

ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
		
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
		
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
		
(c) Derivative Financial Instruments
		(d) Receivables
			(I) Trade receivables
			(II) Other receivables
		(e) Loans
			
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
			- Securitised assets
		(f) Investments
(g) Other financial assets
(2) Non-financial assets
		
(a) Current tax assets (net)
		
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
		
(c) Property, plant and equipment
		
(d) Right to use assets
		
(e) Intangible assets
(f) Other non-financial assets
TOTAL ASSETS

4
5

6

7
8 (A)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) Financial liabilities
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(2) Non-financial liabilities
		
(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
		(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-financial liabilities

27(B)
15
14(B)

428.93
155.63

212.08
306.96
133.28

57.70
232.46
119.84

719.48
39,441.24
214,868.08

719.48
31,495.73
207,233.94

719.48
22,949.06
126,350.12

(3) Equity
		
		

16
17

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020

Venkateswaran Balakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer
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Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Whole-time Director

M. Narayanan
Chief Executive Officer

Sanin Panicker
Company Secretary

198

Profit And Loss
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31.03.2020
Particulars

Note
No.

₹ IN LAKHS

For the year ended

Tuesday,
31.03.2020

Sunday,
31.03.2019

41,498.10
2,759.25
736.34

34,651.57
1,875.18
72.59

501.22
25.75
40.51
15.72
250.74
287.17
1,036.38
47,151.18

286.61
26.50
68.11
0.30
328.59
210.27
634.66
38,154.38

439.19

522.90

47,590.37

38,677.28

Total expenses (IV)

18,553.33
996.17
5,714.18
6,740.76
511.40
4,433.52
36,949.36

14,426.02
565.52
3,504.19
4,638.38
358.90
2,976.35
26,469.36

V

10,641.01

12,207.92

Total tax expense (VI)

3,000.50
(173.89 )
(152.76)
2,673.85

3,932.72
71.35
(343.16)
3,660.91

VII Profit / (loss) for the year (V-VI)

7,967.16

8,547.01

I Revenue from operations
(a) Interest income
		
- Interest on loans
		
- Income on securitisation
		
- Income from portfolio purchased under assignment
- Interest on deposits with banks and financial
		
institutions
(b) Fees and commission
(c) Sale of Service
(d) Dividend income
(e) Net gain on fair value changes
(f) Bad debt recovery
(g) Others

18

19

20
21

Total revenue from operations (I)
II

Other income

22

III Total income (I+II)
IV Expenses
(a) Finance costs
		
- On borrowings
- On financial liability towards securitisation
(b) Impairment of financial instruments
(c) Employee benefits expenses
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
(e) Other expenses

23

24
25
9
26

Profit before tax (III-IV)

VI Tax expense
(1) Current tax
		
i. Current year
		
ii. Pertaining to earlier years
(2) Deferred tax
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VIII Other comprehensive income
(a) (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement (losses) and gains on defined
   benefit obligations (net)
		
(2) Income tax relating to items that will not be
       reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (a)
(b) (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
			
- Net change in fair value of loans measured at
			
fair value through other comprehensive income
		
(2) Income tax relating to items that will be
       reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (b)
Other comprehensive income (VIII = a+b)

IX Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)
(comprising profit / (loss) and other
comprehensive income for the year)
X

Earnings per equity share (face value of `₹10.00
each)
Basic
Diluted

(28.83)

(0.08)

7.18
(21.65)

(0.26)
(0.34)

-

-

-

-

(21.65)

(0.34)

7,945.51

8,546.67

110.74
110.74

118.79
118.79

The accompanying notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date
For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020

Venkateswaran Balakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer
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Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Whole-time Director

M. Narayanan
Chief Executive Officer

Sanin Panicker
Company Secretary
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SOCE
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31.03.2020
Equity share capital
Equity shares of ₹10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid.

₹ IN LAKHS

Particulars

No of shares

Amount

At 01.04.2018
Changes in equity share capital during the year
At 31.03.2019
Changes in equity share capital during the year
as at 31.03.2020

7,194,761.00
7,194,761.00
7,194,761.00

719.48
719.48
719.48

Other equity
Statutory reserve
(As required by
Sec 45-IC of
Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934)
As at 01.04.2018
3,015.15
Profit for the year
-   
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes)
-   
Transferred to statutory reserves
1,611.00
As at 31.03.2019
4,626.15
Profit for the year ended 31.03.2020
-   
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes)
-   
Transferred to statutory reserves
1,593.00
As as at 31.03.2020
6,219.15
Particulars
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Securities
premium
8,365.47
-   
-   
8,365.47
-   
-   
8,365.47

Retained
earnings

Total

11,568.44
  8,547.01
  (0.34)
(1,611.00)
18,504.11
  7,967.16
  (21.65)
(1,593.00)
24,856.62

22,949.06
8,547.01
(0.34)
31,495.73
7,967.16
(21.65)
39,441.24
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31.03.2020
₹ IN LAKHS

Particulars

For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Cash flow from operating activities:			
Profit before tax
  10,641.01
  12,207.92
			
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:			
Interest income on loans		
(42,234.44)
(34,724.16)
Income on securitisation		
(2,759.25)
(1,875.18)
Depreciation and amortisations		
511.40
358.90
Interest expense on borrowings		
18,553.33
14,426.02
Interest expenses on financial liability towards securitisation
996.17
565.52
Impairment on financial instruments
847.43
2,149.23
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(1,287.12)
(963.25)
Dividend Income		
(15.72)
(0.30)
			
(25,388.20)
(20,063.22)
		
Operational cash flows from interest:			
Interest received on loans		
42,329.48
35,067.50
Interest received on loans securitised		
2,719.90
1,903.43
Interest paid on borrowings		
(18,491.69)
(14,429.83)
Interest on financial liability towards securitisation
  (1,004.74)
(561.95)
			
Working capital changes:			
Increase / decrease in derivative finacial instruments
(7.21)
(186.14)
(Increase) / decrease in loans		
(13,567.45)
(63,115.57)
Increase/decrease in securitised assets		
5,190.88
(6,943.16)
(Increase) / decrease in bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
(193.96)
(2,696.65)
Increase in other financial assets
  (467.61)
(616.40)
(Increase) / decrease in other non-financial assets
5.74
  (6.53)
Increase in trade and other payables		
1,281.58
76.58
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities
  59.20
  59.05
Increase / (decrease) in provisions		
93.14
74.42
(Decrease) / increase in other non-financial liabilities
  22.35
13.44  
			
(7,583.34)
(73,340.96)
Income tax paid		
(3,490.70)
(3,849.69)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)		
(268.28)
(63,066.80)
Investing activities			
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
(780.77)
(507.56)
Purchase of Intangible assets		
(39.03)
(93.33)
Purchase of investments at fair value through profit and loss
(142,225.00)
(174,750.00)
Sale of investments at fair value through profit and loss
138,989.71
174,077.41
Net cash flows (used in) / from investing activities (B)		 (4,055.09)
(1,273.48)
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Financing activities			
Debt securities (repaid) / issued (net)		
(1,559.63)
(84.57)
Borrowings other than debt securities (repaid)/ issued (net)		
3,690.20
65,644.69
Subordinated liabilities (repaid) / issued (net)		
2,500.00
Financial liability towards securitisation (net)		
(5,698.90)
6,210.36
Net Cash flows from financing activities (C )		
(1,068.33)
71,770.48
			
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)		
(5,391.70)
7,430.20
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year		
13,414.51
5,984.31
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year		
8,022.81
13,414.51
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents consists of 			
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 4)		
8,024.09
Cash credit (refer note 11)		
(1.28)
Total			
8,022.81

13,977.71
(563.20)
13,414.51

The accompanying notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of financial statements

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm’s Registration No.003990S/S200018
Rajeshwari S
(Partner)
Membership No.024105
Chennai
18.05.2020
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Venkateswaran Balakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer

Tara Thiagarajan
Managing Director

F S Mohan Eddy
Whole-time Director

M. Narayanan
Chief Executive Officer

Sanin Panicker
Company Secretary
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Madura Micro Finance Limited

CIN:- U65929TN2005PLC057390
Notes to the consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the year ended 31’st March , 2020
1. Corporate information
Madura Micro Finance Limited (“the Company”), headquartered in Chennai, is a Company incorporated on
02.09.2005 under Companies Act, 1956 and registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Deposit
accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND) with effect from 28.02.2006. The Company got classiﬁed
as a Non-Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI) effective 11.12.2013. The
company’s debentures are listed in Bombay Stock Exchange.
Pursuant to the execution of Share Purchase Agreements dated 27th November 2019 by the Promoters, Major
Shareholders and others, 75.64% of the paid-up Capital of the Company has been acquired by M/s CreditAccess
Grameen Limited (CAGL), Bangalore, a Non-Banking Financial Company, on 18th March 2020.Consequently,
effective 18th March 2020, your Company has become a Subsidiary of CAGL.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing loans to the Self-Help Group (SHG) members and
other loans.
The Consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorized for issue on 18th May 2020.
2. Basis of preparation
The Consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and notiﬁed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The rules specify the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain class of companies and sets out dates of applicability.
Madura Micro Finance Limited, being a Non-Banking Financial Company, for which IND AS is applicable from
Phase III as deﬁned in the said notiﬁcation, is required to apply the standards as speciﬁed in Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. Hence, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to
as “Ind AS”) notiﬁed under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with transition date of 1
April 2018. The Consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The Consolidated ﬁnancial statements comprise the ﬁnancial statements of Madura Micro Finance Limited (the
holding company) and its subsidiary Madura Micro Education Private Limited (the holding company and its
subsidiary is referred to as the “Group”).
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notiﬁed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended till date)] and other relevant provisions of the Act.
In respect of signiﬁcant accounting matters, the Group has analysed the provisions contained in Ind AS and the
relevant guidance as per RBI Guidelines and has adopted appropriate accounting treatment while ensuring
compliance with RBI Guidelines. The Group follows the prudential norms for income recognition, asset
classiﬁcation and provisioning as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India for NBFC-MFI’s and follows the
provisioning norms as per Reserve Bank of India or Ind AS, whichever is more stringent.
For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Group prepared its consolidated ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) notiﬁed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the Master Direction – Non-Banking
Financial Company – Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘the NBFC Master Directions’) issued by RBI.
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Notes
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the ﬁrst, the Group has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. The Group has applied Ind AS 101 - ﬁrst time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards,
for transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS. An explanation of how transition to Ind AS has affected the
previously reported ﬁnancial position, ﬁnancial performance and cash ﬂows of the Group is provided in Note No.
44.
The Consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments, ﬁnancial assets held for trading and ﬁnancial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through proﬁt or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value. The
consolidated ﬁnancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.
New and amended standards and interpretation
Ind AS 116 – ‘Leases’
Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ provides a new model for lessee accounting in which the majority of leases have been
accounted for by the recognition on the balance sheet of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The subsequent
amortization of the right-of-use asset and the interest expense related to the lease liability have been recognized
in proﬁt or loss over the lease term.
The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 in the ﬁnancial reporting period commencing 1 April 2019 and has elected to
apply the retrospective transition approach under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognized
at the date of initial application with no restatement of comparative periods’ ﬁnancial information. Under this
approach, in respect of leases previously classiﬁed as operating leases, the lease liability has been recognised at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application and the right-of-use asset has been recognised at an amount equal to the lease
liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of initial application. Being the ﬁrst year of INDAS adoption, the Group has
recognised the lease liability and right-of-use asset as per above mentioned measurement principles at the date
of transition to INDAS as permitted by the Standard.
Ind AS 116 introduces a revised deﬁnition of a lease. As permitted by the standard, the Group has elected not to
reassess the existing population of leases under the new deﬁnition and only applied the new deﬁnition for the
assessment of contracts entered into after the transition date.
The presentation and timing of recognition of charges in the statement of proﬁt and loss also changed as the
operating lease expense reported under Ind AS 17, typically on a straight-line basis, has been replaced by
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability. In the cash ﬂow statement, operating
lease payments presented within cash ﬂows from operating activities under Ind AS 17 but under Ind AS 116
payments have been presented as ﬁnancing cash ﬂows, representing repayments of debt, and as operating cash
ﬂows, representing payments of interest.
New Standards notiﬁed but not eﬀective
None
2.1 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
“The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated ﬁnancial statements requires Management to make use of
estimates and judgements. In view of the inherent uncertainties and a level of subjectivity involved in
measurement of items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent ﬁnancial years could differ from
those on which the Management’s estimates are based. Accounting estimates and judgements are used in
various line items in the ﬁnancial statements for e.g.:
•
•
•
•
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Business model assessment (Refer Note no.3.13) - Financial Instrument
Fair value of ﬁnancial instruments (Refer Note no.3.15) - Fair value measurement
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) (Refer Note no. 3.1.1)
Impairment of ﬁnancial assets (Refer Note no.3.13.4) - Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
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•
•
•
•
•

Provisions (Refer Note no. 3.8)
Contingent liabilities and assets (Refer Note no.3.9)
Provision for tax expenses (Refer note no.3.11) - Taxes
Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 3.6.1)
Leases covered under INDAS 116 (Refer note 33)

2.2 Presentation of Consolidated ﬁnancial statements
The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity.
The Group generally reports ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities on a gross basis in the balance sheet. They
are offset and reported net only when INDAS speciﬁcally permits the same or it has an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event. Similarly the
Group offsets incomes and expenses on a net basis only when it is speciﬁcally permitted to do so by INDAS.
In the case of subsidiary, the normal operating cycle is taken as 12 months.
3. Summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the signiﬁcant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated
ﬁnancial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.
3.1 Revenue recognition
3.1.1 Interest income
The Group computes Interest income by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying
amount of a ﬁnancial asset except for:
• Purchased or originated credit-impaired ﬁnancial assets, where the company applies the credit
adjusted EIR to the amortised cost of the ﬁnancial asset from initial recognition, and
• Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit impaired ﬁnancial assets but
subsequently have become credit-impaired ﬁnancial assets, where the company applies EIR to the
amortised cost of the ﬁnancial asset in subsequent reporting periods.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the ﬁnancial asset to the gross carrying amount of a ﬁnancial asset.
When calculating the EIR, the Group includes all fees and charges paid or received to and from the
borrowers that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts, but not future credit losses.
3.1.2 Interest income on all ﬁnancial assets required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the
contractual interest rate.
3.1.3 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
3.1.4 The Group recognises gains on fair value change of ﬁnancial assets measured at FVTPL and realised
gains on derecognition of ﬁnancial asset measured at FVTPL on net basis.
3.1.5 Income from assignment transactions i.e. present value of excess interest spread is recognised when
the related loan assets are de-recognised.
3.1.6 Interest income on deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.
3.1.7 The fees receivable in respect of courses conducted is reckoned on accrual basis on the basis of the
courses conducted during the year. Other income is accounted for on accrual basis.
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3.2 Finance cost
Borrowing cost on ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised by applying the EIR.
3.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, comprise cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term investments with an original
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible with insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.
3.4 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Costs comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), any attributable expenditure in
making the assets ready for intended use.
Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic beneﬁts
associated with these will ﬂow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
3.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities),
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Following initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Transition to IND AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all assets, recognised as
of 1 April 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed
cost as of the transition date.
3.6 Depreciation and amortization
3.6.1 Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE (other than freehold land and properties under construction) is recognised and
measured on the depreciable amount ( being cost less residual value) using the straight-line method as
per the useful life given in Schedule II except the following cases where it is depreciated as per the useful
lives estimated by management.
Asset Type
Useful Life
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Motor Vehicles
5 years
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Furnitures & Fixtures
6.67 years
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Electrical Fittings
5 years
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Temporary structures
1 year
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, and the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
3.6.2 Amortisation
Amortisation on intangible assets is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of
the asset. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, for the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on prospective basis. Management
has estimated the useful life of Software to be the license period or 3 years, whichever is lower.
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3.7 Impairment of non–ﬁnancial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inﬂows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ﬂows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reﬂects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks speciﬁc to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account if available. If no such transactions can be identiﬁed, an appropriate valuation model is
used.
De-Recognition:
An item of property, plant and equipment and any signiﬁcant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic beneﬁts are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the item (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is recognized in the statement of proﬁt and loss, when the item is derecognised.
An intangible-asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic beneﬁts are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible-assets measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in proﬁt or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
3.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable
that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reﬂect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their
present values, where the time value of money is material.
3.9 Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liability is disclosed for (i) Possible obligations which will be conﬁrmed only by future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or (ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not
probable that an outﬂow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent assets are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as required by Ind AS 37, where an
inﬂow of economic beneﬁts is probable.
3.10 Retirement and other employee beneﬁts
3.10.1 Deﬁned contribution plan
Retirement beneﬁts in the form of provident fund is a deﬁned contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company recognises
contribution payable to the respective fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service.
3.10.2 Deﬁned beneﬁt plan
Gratuity liability, which is unfunded, is a deﬁned beneﬁt obligation and is provided for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each ﬁnancial year.
Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurement of the liabilities are included in other
comprehensive income.
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3.10.3 Leave salary
The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as
long-term employee beneﬁt for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are
provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the end of each
ﬁnancial year.
3.10.4 Short-term employee beneﬁts ,including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, proﬁt sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and
non-monetary beneﬁts for current employees, are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis.
3.11 Income Taxes
Tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax.
3.11.1 Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities, including any adjustments of current tax for prior periods,
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of proﬁt or loss is recognised
outside the statement of proﬁt or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the
recognized amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
3.11.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable proﬁt. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable proﬁts will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufﬁcient taxable proﬁts will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of proﬁt or loss is recognised outside
the statement of proﬁt or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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3.12 Earning per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net proﬁt or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net proﬁt or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
3.13 Financial instruments
A ﬁnancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a ﬁnancial asset of one entity and a ﬁnancial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the instruments
3.13.1 Financial Assets
3.13.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The classiﬁcation of ﬁnancial
instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the
management’s intention when acquiring them. All ﬁnancial assets (not measured
subsequently at fair value through proﬁt or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the ﬁnancial asset.
3.13.1.2 Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, ﬁnancial assets are classiﬁed in four categories:
• Debt instruments at amortised cost.
• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through proﬁt or loss
(FVTPL).
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI.
3.13.1.3 Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
• The ﬁnancial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold ﬁnancial assets
in order to collect contractual cash ﬂows.
• The contractual terms of the ﬁnancial asset give rise on speciﬁed dates to cash ﬂows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement such loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in interest income in the statement of proﬁt and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the statement of Proﬁt and Loss.
3.13.1.4 Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ﬁnancial asset is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being carried to other
comprehensive income, if both the following conditions are met:
• The ﬁnancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash ﬂows and selling ﬁnancial assets, and
• Contractual terms of the asset give rise on speciﬁed dates to cash ﬂows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.13.1.5. Financial assets at fair value through proﬁt or loss (FVTPL)
A ﬁnancial asset other than those stated as amortized cost/FVTOCI is subsequently fair
valued through proﬁt or loss. A gain or loss on a ﬁnancial instrument that is subsequently
measured at fair value through proﬁt or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in proﬁt or loss and presented net in the statement of proﬁt and loss within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Dividend income from these ﬁnancial assets is
included in other income.
Derecognition of ﬁnancial assets
The Group derecognises a ﬁnancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash ﬂows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the ﬁnancial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
ﬁnancial asset, the Group continues to recognise the ﬁnancial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a ﬁnancial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in proﬁt or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in proﬁt or loss on disposal of that ﬁnancial asset.
3.13.2 Financial Liabilities
3.13.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classiﬁed and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A ﬁnancial
liability is classiﬁed as at FVTPL if it is classiﬁed as held-for trading or it is designated as on
initial recognition. All ﬁnancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
company’s ﬁnancial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative ﬁnancial instruments, which are measured at
amortised cost.
3.13.2.2 Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included as ﬁnance costs in
the statement of proﬁt and loss.
3.13.2.3 De-recognition of ﬁnancial liabilities
A ﬁnancial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. When an existing ﬁnancial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modiﬁed, such an exchange or modiﬁcation is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss.
3.13.3 Reclassiﬁcation of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group does not reclassify its ﬁnancial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
Financial liabilities are never reclassiﬁed.
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3.13.4 Impairment of ﬁnancial assets
3.13.4.1 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance principles
The Group recognises impairment allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on Financial
Assets held at amortized cost. The Group also computes the provision for non-performing
assets (NPA) as per IRAC norms of RBI, the higher of the two is recorded in the books.
The measurement of ECL reﬂects an unbiased and probability weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes from reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events and current conditions.
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no signiﬁcant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit
loss (12mECL). The Group’s policies for determining if there has been a signiﬁcant increase in
credit risk are set out in note no--3.15.2.
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a ﬁnancial asset (or a group of ﬁnancial
assets) such as loans and advances and security deposits held at amortised cost are tested for
impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Lifetime Expected Credit Losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit
quality of the ﬁnancial asset has deteriorated signiﬁcantly since initial recognition.
The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for
Loan Receivables.
3.13.4.2 Measurement of ECLs
ECL consists of three key components: Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD)
and Loss Given Default (LGD). ECL is the product of PD, EAD and LGD.
The Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure (gross carrying amount), at a
future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments.
The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the loan has
not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.
The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash ﬂows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the Exposure at Default.
To calculate the ECL, the Company assesses the possible default events at various stages of
the loans. The Company has broadly followed the following approach to compute ECL.
The Advances exposure is broadly classiﬁed into 2 pools: MFI loans and individual loans. The
EAD is categorised based on respective Past Due status as given below:
Stage 1: 12mECL
All exposures where there has not been a signiﬁcant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired
upon origination are classiﬁed under this stage. The Company has assessed that all standard
advances and advances upto 30 days default would fall under this category.
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Stage 2: LTECL — Signiﬁcant increase in credit risk
Financial instruments that have had a signiﬁcant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition are classiﬁed under this stage. 30 Days Past Due upto 90 Days Past Due is
considered as signiﬁcant increase in credit risk and classiﬁed under this category. For these
assets, LTECL are recognized.
Stage 3: LTECL — credit impaired
All exposures greater than 90 Days Past Due assessed as credit impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash ﬂows of that asset have
occurred are classiﬁed in this stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a LTECL
is recognised. Probability of Default is considered at 100% for credit impaired loans. Interest
revenue on these loans is recognized on actual realization, in line with prudential norms.
The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a ﬁnancial assets’ credit risk has increased signiﬁcantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of defaults occurring over the remaining life
of the ﬁnancial assets.
3.14 Write-oﬀs
Loans are written off when they are overdue for more than 180 days. Any subsequent recoveries are
credited to statement of proﬁt and loss.
3.15 Fair value measurement
The Group measures ﬁnancial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation
techniques. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufﬁcient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
3.16 Segment information
The Group operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns for
the purpose of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’. The Group operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic.
3.17 Foreign currency
3.17.1 All transactions in foreign currency are recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.
3.17.2 Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the exchange rate prevailing at the close of the
period.
3.17.3 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on the restatement of Groups’s
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,
or reported in previous Consolidated ﬁnancial statements, are recognised as income or as expenses
in the period in which they arise.
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3.18 Leases (where the Group is the lessee)
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identiﬁed asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group as a lessee
The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identiﬁed asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identiﬁed asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic beneﬁts from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.
At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.
Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
ﬂows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.
Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classiﬁed as ﬁnancing cash ﬂows.
IN LAKHS

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

4. Cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Cash in hand
2.42
3.67
1.88
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Balances with Banks in current accounts
4,016.63
2,367.51
4,168.01
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bank deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months
4,005.04
11,606.53
2,002.52
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
8,024.09
13,977.71
6,172.41
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Fixed deposit with bank not considered as cash and cash
5,694.43
5,500.47
2,803.82
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
equivalents*
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
2,803.82
5,694.43
5,500.47
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
*Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings (Refer Note 11)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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IN LAKHS

31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

6 Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
At amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(A) Term loans:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
106,360.25
186,911.70
171,977.83
Self help group loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,230.72
594.96
1,020.04
Individual loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
109,590.97
187,506.66
172,997.87
Total - Gross
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,632.62
4,309.18
3,565.67
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
107,958.35
183,197.48
169,432.20
Term Loans - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
39.72
25.77
33.61
(B) (a) Secured (SME loan against property)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
109,551.25
187,480.89
172,964.26
(b) Unsecured
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
109,590.97
187,506.66
172,997.87
Total - Gross
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,632.62
4,309.18
3,565.67
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
107,958.35
183,197.48
169,432.20
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(C) (I) Loans in India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Public sector
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
109,590.97
187,506.66
172,997.87
(b) Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
109,590.97
187,506.66
172,997.87
Total - Gross
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,632.62
4,309.18
3,565.67
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
107,958.35
183,197.48
169,432.20
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(C) (II) Loans outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Securitised assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(A)
Term loans:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,050.99
9,814.37
14,965.90
Self help group loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,050.99
9,814.37
14,965.90
Total - Gross
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.87
353.97
250.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,017.12
9,460.40
14,715.85
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(B) (a) Secured
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
9,814.37
14,965.90
8,050.99
(b) Unsecured
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
9,814.37
14,965.90
8,050.99
Total - Gross
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
353.97
250.05
33.87
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
9,460.40
14,715.85
8,017.12
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(C) (I) Loans in India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Public sector
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,050.99
9,814.37
14,965.90
(b) Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,050.99
9,814.37
14,965.90
Total - Gross
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.87
353.97
250.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,017.12
9,460.40
14,715.85
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(C) (II) Loans outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Less: Impairment loss allowance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total - Net
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6(A) Group lending loans
Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard
190,654.95
3,704.05
194,359.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non Performing assets
3,164.67
3,164.67
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
190,654.95
3,704.05
3,164.67
197,523.67
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard
181,109.72
5,085.40
186,195.12
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non Performing assets
1,664.42
1,664.42
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
181,109.72
5,085.40
1,664.42
187,859.54
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gross carrying value of assets as at 1st April 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard
113,439.48
1,209.12
114,648.60
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non Performing assets
546.62
546.62
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
113,439.48
1,209.12
546.62
115,195.22
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to
Group lending loans:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gross carrying value of assets as at
181,109.72
5,085.40
1,664.42
1,87,859.54
.
31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
New assets originated during the year,
17,462.66
-2,538.10
-455.59
14,468.97
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Assets written off during the year
-4,804.85
-4,804.85
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Movement between stages
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 1
-8,119.28
3,637.14
4,482.14
0.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 2
201.84
-2,480.40
2,278.56
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gross carrying value of assets as at
190,654.95
3,704.05
3,164.67
197,523.67
.
31st March 2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
844.29
810.99
1,030.58
2,685.86
ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
81.13
-404.76
-282.47
-606.10
New assets originated during the year,
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-4,804.85
-4,804.85
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Movement between stages
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-37.72
16.90
20.82
0.00
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32.19
-395.56
363.37
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
975.90
708.79
5,695.86
7,380.54
Impact on ECL on account of
movement between stages / updates
to the ECL model
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,895.78
736.36
2,023.31
4,655.46
ECL allowance as at 31st March 2020
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
113,439.48
1,209.12
546.62
115,195.22
Gross carrying value of assets as at
.
1st April 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
74,811.21
-653.21
-205.90
73,952.10
New assets originated during the year,
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-1,287.77
-1,287.77
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Movement between stages
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,064.93
5,082.99
-7,147.93
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
546.54
-553.51
6.97
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
187,859.54
1,664.42
5,085.40
181,109.72
Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
495.07
354.50
344.37
1,193.94
ECL allowance as at 1st April 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
326.48
-191.51
-129.72
5.25
New assets originated during the year,
netted off for repayments and
derecognised portfolio
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-1,287.77
-1,287.77
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Movement between stages
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-31.19
22.18
9.01
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2.04
-162.18
160.14
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
51.89
788.00
1,934.55
2,774.45
Impact on ECL on account of
movement between stages / updates
to the ECL model
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
844.29
810.99
1,030.58
2,685.86
ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Note:The loan balances considered in this note are before netting off unamortised processing charges.
6(B ) Individual lending
Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard assets
603.08
603.08
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Substandard assets
3.88
3.88
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
603.08
3.88
606.96
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gross carrying value of assets as at 31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard assets
973.37
973.37
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Substandard assets
46.52
46.52
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
973.37
46.52
1,019.89
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gross carrying value of assets as at 1st April 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard assets
3,198.10
3,198.10
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Substandard assets
28.76
28.76
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
3,198.10
28.76
3,226.86
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Individual loans are not considered for ECL and hence no stage wise classiﬁcation done. NPA provision made
as per IRACP norms are shown under stage 3 and standard loans under stage 1.
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An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to
individual lending loans:
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
973.37
46.52
1,019.89
Gross carrying value of assets as at
.
31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-308.39
-42.63
-351.03
New assets originated during the year
netted off for repayments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-61.90
-61.90
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-61.90
61.90
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
603.08
3.88
606.96
Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.62
23.26
24.88
ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-68.56
-21.32
-89.87
New assets originated during the year
netted off for repayments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-61.90
-61.90
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Movement between stages
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-13.76
13.76
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
86.45
Impact on ECL on account of
movement between stages / updates
48.14
134.60
to the ECL model
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.76
1.94
7.70
ECL allowance as at 31st March 2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,198.10
28.76
3,226.86
Gross carrying value of assets as at
.
1st April 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-2,139.80
-67.18
-2,139.80
New assets originated during the year
netted off for repayments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-67.18
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-84.93
84.93
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
973.37
46.52
1,019.89
Gross carrying value of assets as at
31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
28.77
14.38
43.15
ECL allowance as at 1st April 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-19.26
-19.26
New assets originated during the year
netted off for repayments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-67.18
-67.18
Assets written off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Movement between stages
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-0.76
0.76
Transfer from Stage 1
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 2
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transfer from Stage 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Impact on ECL on account of
-7.13
75.29
68.16
movement between stages / updates
to the ECL model
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.62
23.26
24.88
ECL allowance as at 31st March 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

218

Notes
Notes:
The loan balances considered in this note are before netting off unamortised processing charges.
Individual loans are not considered for ECL and hence no stage wise classiﬁcation done. NPA provision made as per
IRACP norms are shown under stage 3 and standard loans under stage 1.
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31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7. Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
A) In India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
At fair value through proﬁt and loss account:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-in mutual funds
4,501.95
1,000.19
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-in equity instruments
33.62
33.62
32.34
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
B) Outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
4,535.57
1,033.81
32.34
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8(A) Other ﬁnancial assets (at amortised cost)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Retained interest on assets assigned
845.56
537.17
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
111.83
Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)
211.91
159.45
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loans and advances to employees (unsecured,
71.59
55.75
43.28
considered good)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Others
131.21
40.29
21.15
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
1,260.27
792.66
176.26
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8(B) Other non-ﬁnancial assets (at amortised cost)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other advances
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Unsecured, considered good
15.05
20.79
14.26
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
15.05
20.79
14.26
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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0.36

4.57

-

8.49

111.33

0.07

26.69

225.48

377.00

80.44

457.44

53.96 53.96

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-55.49

-55.49

-

-

as on that date are as below:
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
As at April 01, 2018
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Cost
17.06
21.79
19.00
144.08
14.88
102.09
45.37
142.92
623.53 1,130.72
61.22 1,191.94
466.15 466.15
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Accumulated depreciation
0.25
10.67
144.08
9.74
73.04
45.34
124.79
377.94 785.85
- 785.85
417.56 417.56
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Deemed cost
17.06
21.54
8.33
5.14
29.05
0.03
18.13
245.59 344.87
61.22 406.09
48.59 48.59
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Company has opted for deemed cost under Ind AS 101 and has netted off accumulated depreciation from cost as at April 01, 2018. The cost and accumulated depreciation

Note: The land and building is under mortgage as additional security for debentures issued. Refer Note 10 for information about debentures

0.13
45.53
389.58 640.38
82.47 722.85
91.95 91.95
0.73
6.38
11.79
186.25
As at March 31, 2020
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net book value:
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.03
18.13
245.59 344.87
61.22 406.09
48.59 48.59
17.06
21.54
8.33
5.14
29.05
As at April 01, 2018
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.32
59.07
319.78 475.93
116.82 592.75
103.93 103.93
17.06
21.18
7.29
2.55
48.67
As at March 31, 2019
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
98.15
438.99 749.81
166.27 916.08
89.00 89.00
0.25
17.06
20.82
24.61
17.32
132.61
As at March 31, 2020
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Disposals

the year
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Depreciation charge for

the year
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.06
18.84
164.10 263.38
57.52 320.90
37.99 37.99
0.36
1.80
3.30
74.92
Disposals
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
As at March 31, 2019
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Depreciation charge for

......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
65.78
344.69 650.89
129.89 780.78
39.04 39.04
21.89
23.25
195.27
Additions
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-55.49
-55.49
Disposals
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.38
143.69
828.56 1,390.20
248.74 1,638.93
180.96 180.96
17.06
21.54
30.99
29.11
318.86
As at March 31, 2020
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Depreciation:
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Right
Intangible assets
of use
assets
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Oﬃce
Computer
Total Buildings
Freehold Buildings Leasehold Temporary Electrical Furniture & Vehicles
Total Computer
equipment
software &
Land
Improve- Structures Equipment
Fixtures
Others
ment
in Rented
Total
Premises
Cost / Deemed Cost
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.03
18.13
245.59 344.87
61.22 406.09
48.59 48.59
17.06
21.54
8.33
5.14
29.05
As at April 1, 2018
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.35
59.78
238.67 394.82
113.12 507.94
93.33 93.33
0.77
0.72
94.54
Additions
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-0.38
-0.38
-0.38
Disposals
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.38
77.91
483.87 739.31
174.34 913.65
141.92 141.92
17.06
21.54
9.10
5.86
123.59
As at March 31, 2019
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Property, plant and equipment

IN LAKHS
9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of use Assets and Intangible Assets
......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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10.
Debt securities (at amortised cost)
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debentures (secured)
13,729.92
13,825.96
15,375.63
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debentures (unsecured)
1,495.64
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
13,729.92
15,321.60
15,375.63
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities in India
13,729.92
15,321.60
15,375.63
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
13,729.92
15,321.60
15,375.63
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nature of security
The above debentures are secured by way of ﬁrst and exclusive charge over eligible book debts of the Company.
Debentures (secured) (at amortised cost)
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Terms of debentures

Number of debentures

Face value

Amount ₹ in lakhs

(in Rs)
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14.84% Non-Convertible
Debentures - Privately
placed, Listed Secured by
exclusive charge on the
loans created out of the
proceeds of the debentures.
The NCD was redeemed in
one bullet payment on
08-May-2018

-

-

400

1,000,000

-

-

4,084.57

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.50% Non-Convertible
Debentures - Privately
placed, Listed Secured by
exclusive charge on loans
created out of the
proceeds of the
debentures and
immovable properties.
The NCD is redeemable in
one bullet payment on
31-July-2020.

400

14.15% Non-convertible
Debentures - Privately
placed, Listed. Secured by
hypothecation of loans
granted to Self Help
Groups. The maturity date
of the Debentures is
13-Sep-2020, with 99.99%
redeemed on 13-Sep-2019
and balance redeemable
on maturity date.

366

11.40% Non-convertible
Debentures - Privately
placed, Un-listed Secured
by exclusive charge on
loans created out of the
proceeds of the
debentures and
immovable properties.
The NCD is redeemable in
one bullet payment on
05-Dec-2020.

330

400

400

1,000,000

4,075.62

4,074.36

4,074.36

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

366

366

1,000,000

0.39

3,846.95

3,836.08

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Debentures (secured) (at amortised cost)
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Terms of debentures

Number of debentures

Face value

Amount ₹ in lakhs

(in Rs)
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
31.03.2020
31.03.2019 01.04.2018
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.40% Non-convertible
Debentures - Privately
placed, Listed Secured by
exclusive charge on loans
created out of the
proceeds of the
debentures and
immovable properties. The
NCD is redeemable in one
bullet payment on
31-Dec-2020.

250

250

-

1,000,000

2,495.60

2,490.32

-

...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.00% Non-Convertible
Debentures - Privately
placed, unlisted Secured
by exclusive charge on the
loans created out of the
proceeds of the
debentures and
immovable properties.
99.99% of the principal
amount of the NCD is
redeemable on
13-May-2021 and balance
on 13-May-2023

360

-

-

1,000,000

3,724.31

-

-

...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
13,729.92 13,825.96
15,375.63
...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debentures (unsecured) (at amortised cost)
...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Terms of debentures

Number of debentures

Face value

Amount ₹ in lakhs

(in Rs)
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.40% Non-convertible
1,495.64
150
- 1,000,000
Debentures - Privately
placed, listed. The NCD was
redeemed in one bullet
payment on 31-Dec-2019.
...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,495.64
Total

..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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11. Borrowings other than debt securities (at amortised cost)
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Term loans (secured)
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
95,097.57
82,009.38
44,305.37
Banks
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31,540.60
36,537.90
13,570.85
Financials institutions
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15,124.82
17,272.20
12,047.50
Non-banking ﬁnancial companies
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,149.25
2,434.67
External commercial borrowings
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Cash Credit (secured)
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.28
563.20
188.10
Banks
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
141,764.27
138,531.93
72,546.49
Total
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
141,764.27
136,382.68
70,111.82
Borrowings in India
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,149.25
2,434.67
Borrowings outside India
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
141,764.27
138,531.93
72,546.49
Total
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Refer Note 11.1 for tenure, interest rates and repayment schedule.
All the above loans are secured by a charge on the advances granted to Self Help Groups from the proceeds of
the Loans and by a charge on ﬁxed deposits wherever sanction terms require it.
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Original
Due within 1 year
Due between
Due between
Due between
Due between
Due more than
maturity of
1-2 Years
2-3 Years
3-4 Years
4-5 Years
5 years
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest rate
No. of
No. of
No. of
No. of
No. of
No. of
loan
installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount
Total
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Monthly
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
981.90
11
1,071.60
12
6%-6.5%
2,053.50
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
733.00
6
1,452.00
12
6.5%-7%
2,185.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
981.90
11
1,071.60
12
7%-7.5%
2,053.50
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7.5%-8%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8%-8.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8.5%-9%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
9%-9.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,090.91
12
1,000.00
14
9.5%-10%
2,090.91
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,666.78
11
3,020.20
28
6,084.42
49
10%-10.5%
- 10,771.40
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,706.59
20
6,411.23
89
10.5%-11%
8,117.82
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,052.03
31
17,853.83
160
26,733.78
253
11%-11.5%
- 47,639.65
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,154.39
20
3,368.28
44
11.5%-12%
4,522.67
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
264.00
7
444.00
12
12%-12.5%
708.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,000.06
12
3,999.96
12
12.5%-13%
8,000.02
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
666.67
24
888.89
32
805.56
29
10.5%-11%
111.11
4
2,472.22
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.11
1
133.33
12
111.11
10
11%-11.5%
255.56
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Quarterly
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,250.00
2
2,500.00
4
10%-10.5%
3,750.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
937.50
3
2,535.71
7
10.5%-11%
3,473.21
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,571.43
2
7,714.29
14
11%-11.5%
9,285.71
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
272.72
2
1,012.08
9
1,278.79
12
11.5%-12%
2,563.59
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
83.33
1
333.33
4
11%-11.5%
416.67
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,225.00
4
1,500.00
4
1,500.00
4
11.5%-12%
250.00
4
150.00
3
4,625.00
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Half Yearly
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
200.00
2
200.00
2
1,200.00
2
10.5%-11%
1,600.00
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
80.00
1
360.00
4
360.00
4
11%-11.5%
800.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
690.00
6
2,582.50
7
4,475.00
8
11.5%-12%
415.00
4
8,162.50
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bullet
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14,000.00
7
10.5%-11%
- 14,000.00
1-3 years
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,000.00
1
11%-11.5%
2,000.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,864.32
82
42,305.85
365
90,450.66
615
776.11
12
- 141,546.93
150.00
3
Grand Total
..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

11.1 Terms of repayment of borrowings as on March 31, 2020

Notes

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

224

225

IN LAKHS

# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

Half Yearly
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.33
333.33
1
11.5%-12%
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
200.00
2
2,800.00
200.00
2
1,200.00
2
1,200.00
2
10.5%-11%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
80.00
1
2,850.00
360.00
4
360.00
4
2,050.00
4
11%-11.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
690.00
6
- 12,950.00
415.00
4
2,582.50
7
4,475.00
8
4,787.50
8
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bullet
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6,000.00
6,000.00
3
10.5%-11%
1-3 years
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11%-11.5%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
443.02
4
2,189.96
417.88
3
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
12.5%-13%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,413.02
13
- 137,714.98
832.88
7
14,869.78
121
43,734.65
355
76,864.65
690
Grand Total
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Quarterly
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,871.43
1,871.43
7
10%-10.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6,749.99
857.14
2
5,892.85
12
10.5%-11%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 13,000.00
1,285.71
1
7,000.00
11
4,714.29
9
11%-11.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,933.33
466.67
5
733.33
8
733.33
8
11.5%-12%
. 1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
136.36
136.36
3
12%-12.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
166.28
166.28
2
12.5%-13%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
750.00
83.33
1
333.33
4
333.33
4
11%-11.5%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.5%-12%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Monthly
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6%-6.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,637.00
733.00
6
1,452.00
12
1,452.00
12
6.5%-7%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,562.50
312.50
3
1,250.00
12
9.5%-10%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,164.78
1,212.12
14
2,111.75
29
4,840.91
88
10%-10.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 30,251.50
2,343.22
14
9,918.37
88
17,989.90
194
10.5%-11%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 18,666.63
359.26
25
5,964.02
95
12,343.36
169
11%-11.5%
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 10,120.05
248.00
2
3,608.00
36
6,264.05
77
11.5%-12%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,035.98
264.00
7
499.55
13
1,272.42
28
12%-12.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 10,065.60
4,000.06
12
3,999.96
12
2,065.58
10
13%-13.5%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,222.22
288.89
17
466.67
24
466.67
24
10.5%-11%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
258.04
258.04
9
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

.

Original
Due between
Due between
Due more
Due within
Due between
Due between
maturity of
3-4 Years
4-5 Years
than 5 years
1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 Years
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
loan
No. of
No. of
No. of
Interest rate
No. of
No. of
No. of
installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount
Total
installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

Original
Due between
Due between
Due more than
Due within
Due between
Due between
maturity of
3-4 Years
4-5 Years
5 years
1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 Years
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
loan
No. of
No. of
No. of
Interest rate
No. of
No. of
No. of
Total
installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Monthly
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6%-6.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13
86.79
- 15,786.84
1,067.92
13
6,092.55
86
8,539.58
119
10%-10.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
12
- 15,080.60
739.15
12
6,638.84
95
7,702.61
129
10.5%-11%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
22
7,348.87
437.33
22
2,045.62
55
4,865.92
92
11%-11.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,487.43
556.35
12
3,931.08
81
11.5%-12%
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,272.30
161.76
4
1,110.54
38
12%-12.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,602.64
65.60
4
1,537.04
65
12.5%-13%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
608.65
272.65
10
336.00
12
10.5%-11%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11%-11.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Quarterly
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,650.00
2,621.43
10
3,028.57
11
10%-10.5%
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,214.29
1,428.57
4
1,785.71
5
10.5%-11%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11%-11.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.5%-12%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
318.18
136.36
3
181.82
4
12%-12.5%
.
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
681.56
166.41
2
515.15
6
12.5%-13%
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4
83.33
1,000.00
333.33
4
333.33
4
250.00
3
11%-11.5%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Half Yearly
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
166.67
166.67
1
10.5%-11%
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11%-11.5%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,500.00
333.33
1
1,166.67
4
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2
200.00
4,000.00
200.00
2
1,200.00
2
1,200.00
2
1,200.00
2
10.5%-11%
Above 3 years ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4
360.00
5,550.00
80.00
1
360.00
4
2,050.00
4
2,700.00
4
11%-11.5%
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2
62.50
1,375.00
125.00
2
437.50
2
750.00
2
11.5%-12%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bullet
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.5%-11%
1-3 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11%-11.5%
Above 3 years
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4
443.02
2,493.27
278.17
3
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
443.02
4
12.5%-13%
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
63
1,235.64
278.17 72,136.29
3
723.02
7
4,705.75
63
24,983.32
302
40,210.38
582
Grand Total
.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

12.
Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost)
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,001.95
5,000.00
5,000.00
Debentures
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,487.68
Term Loan
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,489.63
5,000.00
5,000.00
Total
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings in India
7,489.63
5,000.00
5,000.00
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings outside India
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,489.63
5,000.00
5,000.00
Total
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Refer Note 12.1 for tenure, interest rates and repayment schedule.
Debentures (subordinated liabilities, at amortised cost)
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Face
Number of debentures
value
Amount
Terms of
...............................................................................................................................................................................................
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
(in Rs) 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 01.04.2018
Debentures
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14.25%
Subordinated,
Unsecured,
Non-Convertible
Debentures 500
500
500 1,000,000
5,001.95
5,000.00
5,000.00
Privately placed,
Listed. The
NCDs are
redeemable on
29-Mar-2024.
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
5,001.95
5,000.00
5,000.00
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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.

Due between
Due between
Due more than
Due within
Due between
Due between
Original
3-4 Years
4-5 Years
5 years
1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 Years
maturity of ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
No. of
No. of
No. of
loan
Interest rate
No. of
No. of
No. of
Total
installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount installments Amount
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bullet
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Above 3 years
14%-14.5%
2
2,500.00 2,500.00
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Grand Total
2
2,500.00 2,500.00
# This pertains to the principal outstanding only.

12.1 Terms of repayment of subordinate term loans as on March 31, 2020
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31.03.2020

31.03.2019

01.04.2018

13.
Financial liability towards securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,079.08
13,786.55
7,572.62
Borrowings under securitisation arrangement
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,079.08
13,786.55
7,572.62
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14(A)
Other ﬁnancial liabilities (at amortised cost)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
179.47
120.27
61.22
Lease Liability
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
179.47
120.27
61.22
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Refer Note 3.18 for accounting policy on leases and Note 33.7 for movement of lease liability.
14(B)
Other non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
149.77
127.42
114.01
Statutory dues payable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.86
5.86
5.83
Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
155.63
133.28
119.84
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15
Provisions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provision for employee beneﬁts:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
174.41
129.93
258.39
Gratuity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
132.55
102.53
170.54
Leave encashment and availment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
306.96
232.46
428.93
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
16.
Issued capital
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Authorised
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
Equity shares of INR 10 each
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,000.00
1,000.00
1,000.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
719.48
719.48
719.48
71,94,761 (March 31, 2019: 71,94,761) equity shares
of Rs.10 each fully paid.
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Amount
Amount
No. of
No. of
Amount
No. of
Equity shares
Shares ₹ in lakhs
Shares ₹ in lakhs
Shares ₹ in lakhs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
719.48
719.48 7,194,761
719.48 7,194,761
7,194,761
At the beginning of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Issued during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
719.48 7,194,761
719.48
719.48 7,194,761
7,194,761
Outstanding at the end of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
"The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.
Any dividends proposed by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders."
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(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
%
No. of
No. of
%
No. of
%
Holding
Shares
Shares
Holding
Shares
Holding
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Equity shares of INR 10 each
fully paid
5,473,975
76.08%
CreditAccess Grameen Limited
(Holding Company)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,99,345
12.50% 2,330,574
32.39% 2,330,574
32.39%
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,97,683
5.53%
373,516
5.19%
364,366
5.06%
Mr. M Narayanan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.00% 1,159,435
16.11% 1,159,435
16.11%
A V Thomas and Co Ltd
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.00% 1,159,436
16.12% 1,159,436
16.12%
Midland Rubber & Produce
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Company Ltd
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
56,393
0.78%
364,917
5.07%
495,667
6.89%
Employees' Welfare Trust
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.00%
865,916
12.04%
865,916
12.04%
Elevar Equity Mauritius
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
17.
Other equity*
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,626.15
3,015.15
6,219.15
AuthoStatutory reserve (As required by Sec 45-IC of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,365.47
8,365.47
8,365.47
Securities premium
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
18,504.11
11,568.44
24,856.62
Retained earnings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31,495.73
22,949.06
39,441.24
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
* For detailed movement of reserves refer Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
Nature and purpose of reserve
17.1 Statutory reserve (As required by Sec 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)
Statutory reserve represents the accumulation of amount transferred from surplus year on year based on
the ﬁxed percentage of proﬁt for the year, as per section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
17.2 Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised
only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
18.
Interest income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
ended 31.03.2020 ended 31.03.2019
.........................................................................................
On ﬁnancial
On ﬁnancial
assets measured
assets measured
at amortised cost
at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest on loans
41,498.10
34,651.57
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Income from securitisation
2,759.25
1,875.18
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Income from portfolio purchased through assignment
736.34
72.59
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest on deposits with banks and ﬁnancial institutions
501.22
286.61
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
45,494.91
36,885.95
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
19.
Fees and commission
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
ended 31.03.2020
ended 31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loan portfolio servicing fees
25.75
26.50
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
25.75
26.50
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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20.
Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
ended 31.03.2020
ended 31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(A) Net gain / (loss) on fair value instruments at fair value
through proﬁt or loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) On trading portfolio
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
328.59
- Investments
250.74
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) On ﬁnancial instruments designated at fair value
.
through proﬁt or loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(B) Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Gain on derecognition of loans designated at fair
value through proﬁt or loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
328.59
Total Net gain / (loss) on fairvalue changes (C)
250.74
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Fair Value changes:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
327.31
- Realised
248.79
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.28
- Unrealised
1.95
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
328.59
Total Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes (D) to tally with (C)
250.74
21.
Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
ended 31.03.2020
ended 31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gain on de-recognition of loans under assignment
1,036.38
634.66
(Refer note 3.1.5)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
1,036.38
634.66
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
22.
Other Income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
ended 31.03.2020
ended 31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.37
Net gain / (loss) on derecognition of property, plant and
equipment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
46.42
7.06
Net gain / (loss) on foreign currency transaction and
translation (other than considered as ﬁnance cost)
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
456.00
430.50
Advertisement Display Income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
20.11
1.63
Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
522.90
439.19
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
23.
Finance Costs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
ended 31.03.2020
ended 31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
On ﬁnancial
On ﬁnancial
liabilities measured liabilities measured
at amortised cost
at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(A) On borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,731.66
1,741.13
Interest on debt securities
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11,848.46
15,806.79
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
765.36
849.38
Interest on subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
72.50
135.68
Other ﬁnance costs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8.04
20.35
Finance lease obligations
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14,426.02
18,553.33
Total (A)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
565.52
996.17
(B) On ﬁnancial liability towards securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14,991.54
19,549.50
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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24.
Impairment of ﬁnancial instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year
For the year
Particulars
ended 31.03.2020
ended 31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
On ﬁnancial
On ﬁnancial
assets measured
assets measured
at amortised cost
at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Self help group loans
5,731.36
3,522.46
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Individual loans
(17.18)
(18.27)
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Impairment of Advance to Subsidiary
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
5,714.18
3,504.19
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
25.
Employee beneﬁt expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Salaries and wages
5,869.01
4,037.39
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Contribution to provident and other funds
578.82
396.43
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Gratuity
76.98
52.26
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Leave encashment and availment
56.83
43.34
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Staff welfare expenses
159.12
108.96
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
6,740.76
4,638.38
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
26.
Other expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year ended
31.03.2019
31.03.2020
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
257.42
362.71
Rental charges payable under operating leases
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Bank charges
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
22.75
27.09
Rates and taxes
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6.88
14.03
Insurance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
227.07
369.33
Repairs and maintenance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
35.26
49.37
Electricity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
611.56
884.46
Travelling and conveyance
..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
183.33
251.70
Postage and telecommunication
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
63.67
194.78
Printing and stationery
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,079.89
1,606.99
Professional and consultancy charges
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
47.96
48.78
Remuneration to non-executive directors
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Auditors remuneration (refer Note below)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15.91
48.45
Audit fees
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.28
0.49
Out of pocket fees
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
16.03
18.20
Training expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Donations
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
138.43
132.46
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (refer note below)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
269.91
424.68
Miscellaneous expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,976.35
4,433.52
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Auditors remuneration
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
As auditor
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13.29
30.45
Audit fee
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.63
4.36
Limited review
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
12.54
Others (Special purpose limited review and GST audit)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
In other capacity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.10
0.99
Certiﬁcation services
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Taxation matter
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.28
Reimbursement of expenses
0.49
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
16.19
48.94
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019

Details of CSR expenditure
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company
172.40
102.79
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
b) Amount spent during the year (in cash)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
i) Construction / acquisition of any asset
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ii) On purposes other than (i) above
132.46
138.43
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
27. Income tax
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Current tax
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,000.50
3,932.72
Current year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
71.35
Earlier years
-173.89
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-152.76
-343.16
Deferred tax
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,660.91
Total tax charge
2,673.85
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting proﬁt multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Proﬁt before tax
10,641.01
12,207.92
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17 (PY 29.12%)
2,678.13
3,554.95
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Non deductible expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
CSR Expenses
33.34
40.31
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest on delayed payment of tax
0.27
0.24
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Change in tax rate
144.37
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c) Additional allowance of certain expenditure
-12.58
-15.29
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Others
7.84
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(e) Income not subject to tax
4.21
1.52
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Income tax expense reported in statement of proﬁt and
2,847.74
3,589.57
loss (a)+(b)+(c)+(d)+(e )
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Tax expense in the current year
2,847.74
3,589.56
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
27(B) Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net balance
Recognised Net balance Deferred Deferred
(Charge) /
tax
tax
01.04.2019 credit in proﬁt
in OCI
31.03.2020
Particulars
liability
asset
and loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Deferred tax assets/
(liabilities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
56.41
56.41
17.02
39.39
Impact of difference
between tax depreciation /
amortisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.79
7.18
106.54 106.54
87.57
Remeasurement gain / (loss)
on deﬁned beneﬁt plan
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
67.72
1,106.93 1,106.93
1,039.21
Impairment allowance for
loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-46.17
-46.17
-102.40
56.23
Other items
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
152.76
7.18
1,223.71 1,269.88 -46.17
Net Deferred tax assets / 1,063.77
(liabilities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended March 31, 2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Recognised Net balance Deferred Deferred
Net balance
(Charge) /
31.03.2019
tax
tax
in OCI
01.04.2018 credit in proﬁt
asset
liability
and loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Deferred tax assets/
(liabilities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
39.39
39.39
20.30
19.09
Impact of difference
between tax
depreciation/
amortisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-0.26
87.57
87.57
21.63
66.20
Remeasurement gain /
(loss) on deﬁned beneﬁt
plan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,039.21 1,039.21
536.55
502.66
Impairment allowance
for loans
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-102.40
- -102.40
-234.12
131.72
Other items
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,063.77 1,166.17 -102.40
-0.26
343.16
Net Deferred tax assets 720.88
/ (liabilities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

The following tables provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as at:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Current tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
105.03
105.03
Income tax assets
468.78
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
317.11
162.73
Income tax liabilities
16.78
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-212.08
-57.70
Total
452.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
28. Transfer of ﬁnancial assets
28.1 Transferred ﬁnancial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety
The following tables provide a summary of ﬁnancial assets that have been transferred in such a way that
part or all of the transferred ﬁnancial assets do not qualify for de-recognition, together with the associated
liabilities:
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Securitisations
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14,965.90
8,050.99
9,814.37
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at
amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13,786.55
7,572.62
8,079.08
Carrying amount of associated liabilities (debt
securities - measured at amortised cost)
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,179.35
478.37
1,735.29
Net position at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Refer Note 6 and 13
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29(A) Deﬁned beneﬁt plans
Gratuity
29.1 Reconciliation of net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the
net deﬁned beneﬁt liability/assets and its components:
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Reconciliation of present value of deﬁned beneﬁt
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
obligation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
81.35
129.93
174.41
Obligation at the beginning of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
24.23
43.26
65.45
Current service cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.30
9.01
11.54
Interest cost
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.01
Past service cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-6.83
-7.86
-21.83
Beneﬁts settled
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other
comprehensive income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32.25
-2.93
12.34
- Changes in experience adjustments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-15.42
0.01
- Changes in demographic assumptions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3.00
-0.96
16.48
- Changes in ﬁnancial assumptions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
129.93
174.41
258.39
Obligation at the end of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest income on plan assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Re-measurement- actuarial gain
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Return on plan assets recognised in other
comprehensive income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Contributions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Beneﬁts settled
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
174.41
129.93
258.39
Net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
29.2 Expense recognised in proﬁt and loss
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
24.23
43.26
Current service cost
65.45
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.30
9.01
Interest cost
11.54
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.01
Past service cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
39.54
52.27
Net gratuity cost
76.98
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
29.3 Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Re-measurement of the net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32.25
-2.93
12.34
- Changes in experience adjustments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-15.42
0.01
- Changes in demographic assumptions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-0.96
3.00
16.48
- Changes in ﬁnancial assumptions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Re-measurement of the net deﬁned beneﬁt asset
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15.87
0.07
28.83
Total Actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
29.4 Plan assets
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Funds managed by insurer
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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29.5 Deﬁned beneﬁt obligation - Actuarial assumptions
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6.60%
6.94%
4.90%
Discount rate
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.00%
10.00%
10.00%
Future salary growth
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
30.00%
30.00%
30.00%
Attrition rate
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
60 years
60 years
60 years
Normal retirement age
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
29.6 Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation by the amounts shown
below:
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars
Increase Decrease
Increase Decrease
Increase Decrease
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Discount rate (1%
248.45
269.10
168.36
180.89
125.73
134.42
movement)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Future salary growth (1%
267.97
249.25
180.43
168.63
134.12
125.90
movement)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of
211.85
359.68
150.05
220.11
113.65
159.03
attrition rates)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of
258.39
258.40
174.41
174.41
129.93
129.93
mortality rates)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
29(B) Compensated leave
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Reconciliation of present value of deﬁned beneﬁt
obligation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
102.53
65.42
132.55
Obligation at the beginning of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
51.01
12.39
69.38
Current service cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7.11
3.96
8.77
Interest cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Past service cost
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-13.31
-7.90
-18.85
Beneﬁts settled
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised in other
comprehensive income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-16.07
33.40
-30.13
- Changes in experience adjustments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-4.14
0.02
- Changes in demographic assumptions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.28
-0.60
8.79
- Changes in ﬁnancial assumptions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
132.55
102.53
170.54
Obligation at the end of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest income on plan assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Re-measurement- actuarial gain
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Return on plan assets recognised in other
comprehensive income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Contributions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Beneﬁts settled
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
132.55
102.53
170.54
Net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Expense recognised in proﬁt or loss
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
51.01
12.39
Current service cost
69.38
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7.11
3.96
Interest cost
8.77
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Past service cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Re-measurement of the net deﬁned beneﬁt liability
-16.07
33.40
- Changes in experience adjustments
-30.13
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.03
-4.14
- Changes in demographic assumptions
0.02
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.25
-0.60
- Changes in ﬁnancial assumptions
8.79
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Re-measurement of the net deﬁned beneﬁt asset
Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
43.33
45.01
Expense recognised in proﬁt or loss
56.84
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Plan assets
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Funds managed by insurer
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Deﬁned beneﬁt obligation - Actuarial assumptions
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6.60%
6.94%
Discount rate
4.90%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.00%
10.00%
Future salary growth
10.00%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
30%
30%
Attrition rate
30%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Average term of liabilty (in years)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
60 years
60 years
Normal retirement age
60 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation by the amounts shown
below:
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
102.53
132.55
170.54
Present Value of Obligation (Base)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Discount rate (1% movement)
105.73
99.52
136.49
128.84
176.18
165.25
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Future salary growth (1%
99.57
105.61
128.92
136.33
165.44
175.86
movement)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition
111.70
99.49
150.57
125.74
212.35
155.77
rates)
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of
102.53
102.52
132.57
132.54
170.56
170.51
mortality rates)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
30 Contingent liabilities
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32.20
37.66
Demands under Income Tax Act, 1961
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
25.37
25.37
Demand under Employee Provident Fund Act, 1952
25.37
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Indemnity undertaking given to Bajaj Allianz Life
19.84
Insurance Company Limited for insurance claims
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
71.02
71.02
Penalty under Income Tax Act, 1961 - AY 2007-08
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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31 Capital commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and not
provided:
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
For purchase / development of computer software
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32 Related party transactions
Names of the related parties (as per IndAS – 24)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Credit Access Grameen Limited
Holding Company
w.e.f. March 18, 2020)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited
Company under common control
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Scimergent Analytics and Education
Company under common control
Private Limited
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Microcredit Foundation of India
Company under common control
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Companies in which directors exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence A V Thomas and Co Ltd (till March 18, 2020)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Companies in which directors exercise signiﬁcant inﬂuence Midland Rubber & Produce Company Ltd
(till March 18, 2020)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
Key Management Personnel
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. F S Mohan Eddy
Key Management Personnel
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. M Narayanan (w.e.f. August 01, 2019)
Key Management Personnel
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Rajasekar Ramaraj (till March 18, 2020)
Non-executive Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Ashok Mirza (till March 18, 2020)
Non-executive Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Ajit Thomas (till March 18, 2020)
Non-executive Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Independent Director
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Ms. Kavitha Vijay (till March 18, 2020)
Independent Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa (till March 18, 2020)
Independent Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. George Joseph (w.e.f. March 18, 2020)
Additional Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Paolo Brichetti (w.e.f. March 18, 2020)
Additional Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Ram Diwakar Boddupalli
Additional Director
(w.e.f. March 18, 2020)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Manoj Kumar (w.e.f. March 18, 2020)
Additional Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mr. Udaya Kumar Hebbar (w.e.f. March 18, 2020)
Additional Director
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Mrs. Pamela Mohan
Relative of Key Management Personnel
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Key Management Personnel
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Transactions during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Salary and perquisites ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
104.63
137.30
Ms. Tara Thiagarajan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
100.94
124.65
Mr. F S Mohan Eddy
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
100.37
Mr. M Narayanan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Balances at the end of the year
133.00
98.00
Incentives payable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provisions for gratuity and leave beneﬁts are made for the Company as a whole and the amounts pertaining to
the key management personnel are not speciﬁcally identiﬁed and hence are not included above.
Other related parties
Transactions during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Sitting fees
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8.00
5.25
Mr. Ashok Mirza
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
9.75
3.50
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.75
12.00
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8.50
9.50
Mr. R Ramaraj
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
9.50
12.00
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Rent Paid
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
18.00
17.40
Mrs. Pamela Mohan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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31.03.2019

Transactions during the year
Company under common control
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Professional charges
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6.00
Scimergent Analytics and Education Pvt Ltd
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
200.88
258.78
Scisphere Analytics India Private Limited
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Balances at the end of the year
Other related parties
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Sitting fees payable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2.75
Mr. Ashok Mirza
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3.75
Mrs. Kavitha Vijay
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.50
Mr. N C Sarabeswaran
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4.50
Mr. R Ramaraj
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.25
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Leases - Ind AS 116
33.1 Effective April 1 2019, the group has applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1 2019
using the Modiﬁed Retrospective method along with the transition option to recognise the Right Of Use
asset (ROU) at an amount equal to the Lease liability. Being the ﬁrst year of Ind AS adoption, company has
recognised the lease liability and right-of-use asset as per above mentioned measurement principles at the
date of transition to Ind AS as permitted by the Standard. A sum of Rs. 61,22,175 has been recognised as
ROU asset and a similar sum of Rs. 61,22,175 has been recognised as lease liability as on transition date of
1 Apr 2018.
33.2 The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment
with a similar end date.
2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.
3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.
33.3 The company's leased assets mainly comprise ofﬁce building. Leases contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The term of property leases ranges from 1-3 years. The company has used an
incremental borrowing rate of 12.98% to determine the lease liability and right to use of asset for leases
entered into before March 2019 and accounted under Ind AS 116 and 11.84% for leases entered into in
2019-20.
33.4 Total lease liabilities are analysed as at
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
a Denominated in the following currencies:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Rupees in Lakhs
179.47
120.27
61.22
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Foreign currency
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
179.47
120.27
61.22
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
b Maturity of Lease liability
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
79.59
47.72
46.11
Current
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
99.88
72.54
15.11
Non Current
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
179.47
120.27
61.22
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.5 The following amounts were recognised as expense in the year:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
57.52
80.44
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Expense relating to variable lease payments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets
257.42
362.71
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest on lease liabilities
8.39
20.84
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total recognised in the income statement
464.00
323.33
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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31.03.2020
31.03.2019
33.6 The following are the undiscounted contractual cash ﬂows of lease liabilities. The payment proﬁle has been
based on management’s forecasts and could in reality be different from expectations:
Maturity analysis:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Less than 1 year
465.79
347.49
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Between 1 and 2 years
107.19
214.27
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Between 2 and 5 years
11.30
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 5 years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
572.98
573.05
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.7 The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31,
2019:
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Balance as at 1 Apr
120.27
61.22
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
129.89
Additions
113.12
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
20.35
Finance cost accrued during the period
8.39
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Deletion
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-91.03
-62.46
Payment of lease liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
179.47
120.27
Balance as of Mar 31
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Refer Note 9 for movement in right to use of assets.
34 RBI Disclosures
a. Capital to risk assets ratio ('CRAR'):
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
23.01%
19.45%
CRAR (%)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
19.53%
16.63%
CRAR-Tier I Capital (%)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3.48%
2.82%
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
55.00
40.00
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II capital
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Notes:
Impairment allowance on Stage 1 loans has been considered as ‘contingent provision for standard asset’ for the
purpose of determining Tier II capital;
b. Investments
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1. Value of Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Gross value of investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) in India
1,033.81
4,535.57
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Provisions for depreciation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) in India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(iii) Net value of investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) in India
1,033.81
4,535.57
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) outside India
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2. Movement of provision held towards depreciation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Opening balance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(iii) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provision
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(iv) Closing balance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
c. Derivatives
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7.21
Cross Currency Swap for External Commercial Borrowing
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: Nil).
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31.03.2019

d. Disclosure related to securitization
The information on securitisation activity of the Company as an originator is furnished below:
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8
6
No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitization
transactions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amount of securitized assets as per books of SPV sponsored
9,851.06
15,707.53
by NBFC
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amount of exposures retained by NBFC to comply with
MRR as on the date of balance sheet
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
a. Off-balance sheet exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· First loss
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· Others
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
b. On-balance sheet exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· First loss – cash collateral
1,599.78
1,326.75
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· Others - over collaterisation
2,840.46
2,628.14
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amount of exposures other than MRR
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
a. Off-balance sheet exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
i. Exposure to own securitizations
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· First loss
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· Loss
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ii. Exposure to third party transactions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· First loss
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· Others
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
b. On-balance sheet exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
i. Exposure to own securitizations
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· Others
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ii. Exposure to third party transactions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· First loss
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
· Others
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
e. Details of ﬁnancial assets sold to securitization / reconstruction company for asset reconstruction:
The Company has not sold any ﬁnancial asset to securitization / reconstruction company for asset
reconstruction in the current and previous year.
f. Details of securitisation and assignment transactions:
The Company has undertaken four assignment transactions and four securitisation transactions during the
current year (March 31, 2019: two assignment and four securitisation transactions).
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Number of loans assigned / securitised during the year
1,40,240
1,70,456
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold
21,774.69
24,731.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Aggregate consideration
21,774.69
24,731.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Interest recognised in statement of proﬁt and loss account
2,521.45
3,842.87
including amortisation of unamortised interest spread
(retained interest)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Note: The above are securitisation and assignment transactions during the year.
g. Details of non-performing ﬁnancial asset purchased / sold:
The Company has not purchased / sold any non-performing ﬁnancial assets in the current and previous year.
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h. Asset liability management:
Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2020:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars

Upto 30 /

1 to 2

2 to 3

3 to 6

6 months

1 to 3

3 to 5

Over 5

Total

31 days
months
months
months
to 1 years
years
years
years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
5,712.47 3,457.62 12,064.73 33,715.35 53,548.01 54,148.02 5,919.75 2,496.96 1,71,062.90
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5.93
- 1,92,657.87
Advances
- 14,641.21 40,918.63 65,821.93 71,270.17
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,535.57
Investments
4,501.95
33.62
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-

Foreign currency

assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Foreign currency

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Company has cash and bank balances amounting to Rs 8024.09 lakhs which is sufﬁcient to meet the ALM mismatch

Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2020:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars

Upto 30 /

1 to 2

2 to 3

3 to 6

6 months

1 to 3

3 to 5

Over 5

Total

31 days
months
months
months
to 1 years
years
years
years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
6,322.83 8,647.92 7,044.64 28,571.95 44,221.82 69,270.88 6,410.79
- 1,70,490.83
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Advances
12,364.30 12,533.11 12,290.01 34,972.60 57,649.84 54,327.86
10.34
- 1,84,148.06
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Investments
- 1,000.19
33.62
1,033.81
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Foreign currency

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Foreign currency

-1.48

-1.53

117.72

106.86

213.41

861.68

852.60

-

2,149.25

liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
The above maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, has been prepared with reference to the carrying values of
assets and liabilities.

i. Exposures to real estate
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Category
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
A. Direct exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.61
25.77
(i) Residential Mortgages ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property
that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;
(All loans are under Rs 15 lakhs)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
(ii) Commercial Real Estate ...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates
(ofﬁce buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial
premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitised exposures...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
a. Residential
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
b. Commercial Real Estate.
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
B. Indirect Exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
33.61
25.77
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have any exposure to Capital Market.
Details of ﬁnancing of parent company products
The Company has not ﬁnanced any parent company products.
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Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit
(GBL) exceeded by applicable NBFC
The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year w.r.t Single Borrower Limit /
Group Borrower Limit.
j. Unsecured advances: Refer Note 6.
k. 'Registration obtained from other ﬁnancial regulators:
The Company is not registered with any other ﬁnancial sector regulators.
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
a) Ministry of Corporate Affairs
CIN No.U65929TN2005PLC057390
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
b) Reserve Bank of India
N-07.00754
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
c) Microﬁnance Institutional Network
20
l. Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators:
No penalties were imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and previous year.
IN CRORES

m. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings:

Borrowing
limit /
conditions
imposed
Name of
rating
Date of
Rating / (Previous by rating
Valid
agency
agency
rating
year rating)
up to
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Commercial Paper
Not applicable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Working Capital Facility (Cash

Rating is not done

credit/WCDL)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
CARE 31-Mar-20 BBB+ (Under Credit
950.00 31-Mar-21
watch with Positive
Implications) / BBB+
Positive
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ICRA 04-Dec-19 BBB+ placed on watch
300.00 03-Dec-20
Long Term Bank Facilities
with positive implication
/ BBB+ Stable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ICRA 04-Dec-19 BBB+ placed on watch
36.60 03-Dec-20
14.15% Non-Convertible Debentures
with positive implication
(allotted in August 2015)
/ BBB+ Stable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ICRA 04-Dec-19 BBB+ placed on watch
50.00 03-Dec-20
14.50% Non-Convertible Debentures
with positive implication
(allotted in March 2017)
/ BBB+ Stable
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.50% Non-Convertible Debentures
CARE 05-Dec-19 BBB+ (Under Credit
40.00 04-Dec-20
(allotted in August 2017)
watch with Positive
Implications) / BBB+
Positive
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.40% Non-Convertible Debentures
CARE 05-Dec-19 BBB+ (Under Credit
33.00 04-Dec-20
(allotted in December 2017)
watch with Positive
Implications) / BBB+
Positive
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.40% Non-Convertible Debentures
CARE 05-Dec-19 Closed / BBB+ Positive
15.00 04-Dec-20
(allotted in August 2018)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.40% Non-Convertible Debentures
CARE 05-Dec-19 BBB+ (Under Credit
25.00 04-Dec-20
(allotted in August 2018)
watch with Positive
Implications) / BBB+
Positive
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11.00% Non-Convertible Debentures
CARE 05-Dec-19 BBB+ (Under Credit
36.00 04-Dec-20
(allotted in November 2019)
watch with Positive
Implications)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
MFI Grading
ICRA 22-Jul-19 M2+ / Rating not done
21-Jul-20
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Perpetual Debt
NA
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Long Term Bank Facilities
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For the year ended
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
n. Provisions and contingencies
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Impairment of ﬁnancial instruments
808.89
2,127.69
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,000.50
4,004.07
Provision for income tax
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provision for gratuity
76.98
52.26
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
56.83
43.34
Provision for leave encashment and availment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provision fraud and misappropriation (net of recoveries)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provision for other assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Total
3,943.20
6,227.36
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
o. Drawdown from reserves:
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2020 (previous year: Nil).
p. Concentration of advances, exposures and NPAs
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Concentration of advances
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
414.25
182.27
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.09%
0.23%
(%) of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total
advances
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Concentration of exposures
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
414.25
182.27
Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.23%
0.09%
(%) of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to
total exposure
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Concentration of NPAs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
17.45
50.00
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
The above represents amount outstanding as per repayment schedule agreed with the borrowers.
q. Sector-wise NPAs
Particulars

Percentage of NPAs Percentage of NPAs
to Total Advances
to Total Advances
in that sector as at
in that sector as at
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Agriculture and allied activities
1.07%
0.84%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
MSME
0.52%
0.84%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Corporate borrowers
0.00%
8.90%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Services
0.00%
0.00%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Unsecured personal loans
0.00%
0.00%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Auto loans
NA
NA
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other personal loans
NA
NA
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
r. Movement of NPAs
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.59%
0.36%
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross):*
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,710.94
575.38
Opening balance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,622.89
3,253.20
Additions during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,165.28
2,117.65
Reductions during the year (loans written off)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,168.55
1,710.94
Closing balance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
657.10
216.63
Opening balance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,651.48
2,558.11
Additions during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,165.28
2,117.65
Reductions during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,143.30
657.10
Closing balance
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Opening balance
1,053.84
358.75
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Provisions made during the year
971.42
695.09
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Write-off / write-back of excess provisions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Closing balance
2,025.26
1,053.84
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
s. Disclosure of customer complaints
No. of
Particulars
complaints
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0
a. No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
167
b. No. of complaints received during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
167
c. No. of complaints redressed during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0
d. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
t. Information on instances of fraud
Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31, 2020:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
No. of
Amount
Amount
Nature of fraud
cases
of fraud
Recovery
provided
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Instances of fraud reported during the year ended March 31, 2020:
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
No. of
Amount
Amount
Nature of fraud
cases
of fraud
Recovery
provided
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1
7.32
3.09
4.23
Cash Embezzlement
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
u. The net interest margin (NIM)
Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Average interest (a)
21.34%
21.62%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Average effective cost of borrowing (b)
11.36%
11.31%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net interest margin (a-b)
9.98%
10.31%
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Note:
1. Above computation is in accordance with the method accepted by RBI vide its letter no
DNBS.PD.NO.4906/03.10.038/2012-13 dated April 4, 2013 to Micro-ﬁnance Institutions Network (the
“MFIN format”) read with the FAQ sissued by RBI on October 12, 2017.
2. Securitised loans qualifying for de-recognition as per RBI’s “true sale” criteria and related interest income have
not been considered for computation of “average interest charged” in accordance with the MFIN format.
Accordingly, the purchase consideration received towards such securitisations and related ﬁnance costs have
not been considered for computation of “average effective cost of borrowings”. As per Ind AS 109, such loans
and borrowings continue to be recognized on the balance sheet in the Ind AS ﬁnancial statements.
3. Interest income considered for computation of “average interest charged” excludes loan processing fee
collected from customers in accordance with para 54 (vi) of the RBI Master Directions. As per Ind AS 109, such
loan processing fee forms part of interest income in the Ind AS ﬁnancial statements.
v. The Company has not disbursed any loan against the security of gold.
All disclosure pertaining to 2018-19 have been reworked based on Ind AS ﬁgures as per RBI circular DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20.
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Note : IRACP provisions for Stage 1 and 2 includes additional 5% provisions of Rs 409.22 lakhs for defaulting loans under
amounting to Rs 8184.37 lakhs, for which asset classiﬁcation beneﬁt is extended based on RBI's circular
DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dt 17-Apr-2020

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,90,448.39
Total
Stage 1
1,901.54
1,88,546.85
1,174.25
727.29
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,704.05
Stage 2
736.36
2,967.69
14.82
721.54
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,384.67
Stage 3
2,241.38
1,143.30
1,982.90
42.35
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,97,537.12
Total
4,879.27
1,92,657.84
3,171.97
1,491.19
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loss
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
NPA total
3,168.55
2,025.26
1,143.30
1,982.90
42.35
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other items
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage
1
...............................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage
2
...............................................................................................................................................................................................
Loan to subsidiary
216.12
Stage 3
216.12
- Not applicable Not applicable
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subtotal
216.12
216.12
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful up to 1 year
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1 - 3 years
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 3 years
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful assets total
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,168.55
Substandard
Stage 3
2,025.26
1,143.30
1,982.90
42.35

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,90,448.39
Standard
Stage 1
1,901.54
1,88,546.85
765.03
1,136.51
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,704.05
Stage 2
736.36
2,967.69
14.82
721.54
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Additional provision (refer note below)
409.22
-409.22
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Standard assets total
1,94,152.44
2,637.90
1,91,514.55
1,189.07
1,448.83
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Loss
Diﬀerence
Allowances
between
Asset
Gross
(provisions)
IndAs 109
Classiﬁcation
Carrying
required
Provisions as
provisions
Asset Classiﬁcation as
as per IndAS
amount as per
under IndAS
Net carrying
per IRACP
and IRACP
per RBI Norms
109
IndAS
109
Amount
norms
Norms
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)=(3)-(4)
(6)
(7)=(4)-(6)
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Performing Assets

As at 31st March 2020

w. Asset classiﬁcation as per RBI Norms
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Note: Stage 1 provision includes an additional provision of Rs 11.05 Cr on standard assets of SHG potfolio of Tamil Nadu created
in 2019, based on an estimate of impact of natural disaster on the state's portfolio.

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,81,169.64
Total
Stage 1
1,950.90
1,79,218.74
728.33
1,222.56
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,085.40
Stage 2
810.99
4,274.41
20.00
790.99
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,963.41
Stage 3
1,308.50
654.90
1,903.45
-849.61
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,88,218.45
Total
4,070.39
1,84,148.06
2,651.78
1,163.94
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loss
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,708.74
NPA total
1,053.84
654.90
1,903.45
-849.61
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other items
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 2
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
254.66
Loan to subsidiary
Stage 3
254.66
- Not applicable Not applicable
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
254.66
Subtotal
254.66
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful up to 1 year
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1 - 3 years
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 3 years
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful assets total
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,708.74
Substandard
Stage 3
1,053.84
654.90
1,903.45
-849.61

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Performing Assets
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,81,169.64
Standard
Stage 1
1,950.90
1,79,218.74
728.33
1,222.56
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,085.40
Stage 2
810.99
4,274.41
20.00
790.99
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,86,255.04
Standard assets total
2,761.89
1,83,493.15
748.33
2,013.55
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loss
Diﬀerence
Allowances
between
Asset
Gross
(provisions)
IndAs 109
Classiﬁcation
Carrying
required
Provisions as
provisions
Asset Classiﬁcation as
as per IndAS
amount as per
under IndAS
Net carrying
per IRACP
and IRACP
per RBI Norms
109
IndAS
109
Amount
norms
Norms
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)=(3)-(4)
(6)
(7)=(4)-(6)
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

As at 31st March 2019

Notes
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................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,15,857.46
Total
Stage 1
953.24
1,14,904.22
466.55
486.69
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,209.12
Stage 2
354.50
854.63
5.00
349.50
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
851.59
Stage 3
634.96
216.63
1,195.10
-836.35
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,17,918.18
Total
1,942.70
1,15,975.48
1,666.65
-0.16
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Note: Stage 1 provision includes additional provision created to meet minumum provisions required under IRACP.

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loss
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
575.38
NPA total
358.75
216.63
1,195.10
-836.35
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other items
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 1
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Stage 2
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
276.21
Loan to subsidiary
Stage 3
276.21
- Not applicable Not applicable
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
276.21
Subtotal
276.21
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
575.38
Substandard
Stage 3
358.75
216.63
1,195.10
-836.35
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful up to 1 year
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1 - 3 years
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
More than 3 years
Stage 3
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Doubtful assets total
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Performing Assets
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,15,857.46
Standard
Stage 1
953.24
1,14,904.22
466.55
486.69
.........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,209.12
Stage 2
354.50
854.63
5.00
349.50
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,17,066.58
Standard assets total
1,307.74
1,15,758.85
471.55
836.19
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Loss
Diﬀerence
Allowances
between
Asset
Gross
(provisions)
IndAs 109
Classiﬁcation
Carrying
required
Provisions as
provisions
Asset Classiﬁcation as
as per IndAS
amount as per
under IndAS
Net carrying
per IRACP
and IRACP
per RBI Norms
109
IndAS
109
Amount
norms
Norms
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)=(3)-(4)
(6)
(7)=(4)-(6)
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

As at 1st April 2018

Notes
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35 Risk Management
35.01 Introduction and risk proﬁle
Madura Micro Finance Limited (“Group”) is one of the leading microﬁnance institutions in India focused on
providing ﬁnancial support to women from low income households engaged in economic activity with
limited access to ﬁnancial services. The Group predominantly offers collateral free loans to women from
low income households, willing to borrow in a group and agreeable to take joint liability. The wide range of
lending products address the critical needs of customers throughout their lifecycle and include income
generation, home improvement, children’s education, sanitation and personal emergency loans.
35.02 Market Risk
The Group is exposed to various types of market risks during the normal course of business such as credit
risk, operational risk, cash management risk, Market Exposure risk, Liquidity risk and Interest rate risk.
35.03 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from defaults by borrowers under loan agreements. In order to
address credit risk, the Group has stringent credit assessment policies for client selection. Measures such
as verifying client details, online documentation and the usage of credit bureau data to get information on
past credit behaviour also supplement the efforts for containing credit risk.
Madura predominantly operate in rural and semi urban areas, where we are of the view that the impact of
credit risk is limited. Most of our borrowers are into Agriculture, Dairy, Animal Husbandry, textiles, cottage
and small trading businesses, where they operate in a 30 km radius. As on date, these businesses are
running as usual with minimum or no impact. Also, we will be choosy and cautious while lending to our
borrowers in June 2020, when we restart lending. As on date, we are of the opinion the covid -19 incidence
will be very less and not going to hamper our progress. More clarity will evolve in the months to come, and
the way our Government handles the whole situation.
35.04 Operational Risk
Operational risks arise from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external
events. The Group controls it's operational risk by maintaining a comprehensive system of internal controls
supported by an on-the-ground internal audit team which conducts check at the client and branch levels
concurrently with checks and balances instituted at the corporate level. In addition, the Group has
leveraged technology to enhance data integrity and swifter reporting to help in providing actionable
intelligence to contain fraud by taking measures such as verifying client details and documentation online
and using credit bureau data to get information on potential frauds.
35.05 Cash Management Risk
The Group's branches collect and deposit a large amount of cash through a high volume of transactions
taking place in our branch network. To address the cash management risks, the Group has developed
advanced cash management checks that it employs at multiple levels to track and tally accounts. The Group
ensures that cash collected up to a certain time is deposited at local bank branches on the same day.
35.06 Market Exposure risk
Market risk is that the fair value or future cash ﬂows of ﬁnancial instruments will ﬂuctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group classiﬁes
exposures to market risk into either trading or non–trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios
separately.
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35.07 Total market risk exposure
31.03.2020
Carrying
Traded Non-traded
Primary risk sensitivity
amount
risk
risk
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,024.09
8,024.09 No market risk
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank
balances
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,694.43
5,694.43 Interest rate risk - 1% - Rs 40.91 lakhs
Fixed deposits
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial assets at Amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
192,657.88
192,657.88 No market risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,501.95
4,535.57
33.62 Price risk - 1% - Rs 45.02 lakhs
Financial investments–FVTPL
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,260.27
1,260.27 No market risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Other ﬁnancial assets at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,501.95
212,172.24
207,670.29
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

141,764.27

-

141,764.27

Interest rate risk on ﬂoating rate interest

loans. 0.25%-Rs 139.73 lakhs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ECB loan

-

-

-

Currency risk & interest rate risk-

Squared off during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13,729.92
13,729.92 No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Debt Securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,489.63
7,489.63 No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Subordinate debt
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,079.08
8,079.08 No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Borrowings under securitisation
\
arrangement
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
179.47
179.47
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
171,242.37
171,242.37
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31.03.2019
Carrying
Traded
Non-traded
Primary risk sensitivity
amount
risk
risk
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13,977.71
13,977.71 No market risk
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank
balances
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,500.45
5,500.45 Interest rate riskFixed deposits
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial assets at Amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
184,148.05
184,148.05 No market risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,000.19
1,033.81
33.62 Price risk
Financial investments–FVTPL
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
792.66
792.66 No market risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Other ﬁnancial assets at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,000.19
205,452.68
204,452.49
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

136,382.68

-

136,382.68

Interest rate risk on ﬂoating rate interest

loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,149.25
2,149.25 Currency risk & interest rate risk
ECB loan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt Securities

15,321.60

-

15,321.60

No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate

5,000.00
5,000.00 No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Subordinate debt
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings under securitisation

13,786.55

-

13,786.55

No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate

arrangement
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
120.27
120.27
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
172,760.35
172,760.35
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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01.04.2018
Primary risk sensitivity
Carrying
Traded
Non-traded
amount
risk
risk
Assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6,172.41
6,172.41 No market risk
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank
balances
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,803.82
2,803.82 Interest rate riskFixed deposits
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial assets at Amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
115,975.47
115,975.47 No market risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32.34
32.34 Price risk
Financial investments–FVTPL
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
176.26
176.26 No market risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Other ﬁnancial assets at amortised cost
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
125,160.30
125,160.30
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)

70,111.82

-

70,111.82

Interest rate risk on ﬂoating rate interest

loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,434.67
2,434.67 Currency risk & interest rate risk
ECB loan
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15,375.63
15,375.63 No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Debt Securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,000.00
5,000.00 No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate
Subordinate debt
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings under securitisation

7,572.62

-

7,572.62

No interest risk as ﬁxed interest rate

arrangement
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
61.22
61.22
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
100,555.96
100,555.96
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
*The sensitivity of the statement of proﬁt and loss is the effect of the changes in market interest rates on debt securities, other
borrowings and subordinated liabilities or price on investments and forex rates on foreign currency exposures.

35.08 Market risk – trading (trading book)
The Group has invested in listed Mutual funds in 2019-20 which is subject to security price risk. The Group's
exposure to such investments is limited. The Group manages the risk by diversifying the portfolio or for
holding the investments in only very short spans of time before deploying them in business.
35.09 Liquidity risk and fund management risk
Liquidity risk arises due to the unavailability of adequate amount of funds at an appropriate cost and tenure.
The Group may face an asset-liability mismatch caused by a difference in the maturity proﬁle of our assets and
liabilities. This risk may arise from the unexpected increase in the cost of funding an asset portfolio at the
appropriate maturity and the risk of being unable to liquidate a position in a timely manner and at a
reasonable price. The Group monitors liquidity risk through our Asset Liability Management Committee.
Monitoring liquidity risk involves categorizing all assets and liabilities into different maturity proﬁles and
evaluating them for any mismatches in any particular maturities, particularly in the short-term. The Group
actively monitors it's liquidity position to ensure that it can meet all borrower and lender-related funding
requirements.
The Reserve Bank of India has offered three months moratorium to borrowers and the same could be
extended based on the period of lockdown. This could have an impact on the liquidity of the company. The
Company has approached its bankers who have funded the operations for a moratorium on term loan
payments and some banks have already approved the same. 90% of the branches have commenced operations
as on date. The Company has made collections even during the lockdown. So the impact of liquidity risk is
expected to be low.
There are Liquidity Risk mitigation measures put in place which helps in maintaining the following:

251

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes
35.10 Diversiﬁed funding resources
Asset Liability Management (ALM) can be termed as a risk management technique designed to earn an
adequate return while maintaining a comfortable surplus of assets over liabilities. ALM, among other
functions, is also concerned with risk management and provides a comprehensive as well as dynamic
framework for measuring, monitoring and managing liquidity and interest rate risks. ALM is an integral part of
the ﬁnancial management process of MMFL. It is concerned with strategic balance sheet management,
involving risks caused by changes in the interest rates and the liquidity position of MMFL. It involves
assessment of various types of risks and altering the asset-liability portfolio in a dynamic way in order to
manage risks.
ALM committee constitutes of Board of Directors who would review the tolerance limits for liquidity/
interest rate risks and would recommend to Board of Directors for its approval from time to time. As per the
directions of the Board, the ALM statements would be reported to the ALM committee on quarterly basis for
necessary guidance.
The scope of ALM function can be described as follows:
i. Liquidity risk management
ii. Interest Rate risk management
iii. Funding and Capital Management
Capital guidelines ensure the maintenance and independent management of prudent capital levels for MMFL
to preserve the safety and soundness of the Group, to support desired balance sheet growth and the
realization of new business; and to provide a cushion against unexpected losses. Refer Note 34(a) with respect
to regulatory capital of the Group as at the reporting dates.
IN LAKHS

35.11 Liquidity assessment as on March 31, 2020
Particulars

Upto 30 /

1 to 2

2 to 3

3 to 6

6 months

1 to 3

3 to 5

Over 5

Total

31 days
months
months
months
to 1 years
years
years
years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities
73.12
305.49
-2.62 3,992.30
5,790.45 3,572.54
-1.36
13,729.92
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings (other

4,282.75

3,152.25 12,066.51 26,730.04

44,558.46 50,048.18

926.08

- 1,41,764.27

than debt securities)
7,489.63
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subordinated

-0.12

-0.12

0.84

-0.38

1.17

-3.75 4,995.04 2,496.95

liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,356.70
- 2,993.39
3,197.93
531.06
8,079.08
Financial liability
towards
securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,712.45 3,457.62 12,064.73 33,715.35 53,548.01 54,148.03 5,919.76 2,496.95 1,71,062.90

35.12 Liquidity assessment as on March 31, 2019
Particulars

Upto 30 /

1 to 2

2 to 3

3 to 6

6 months

1 to 3

3 to 5

Over 5

Total

31 days
months
months
months
to 1 years
years
years
years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities
69.35
331.41
-3.06 3,650.23
1,487.99 9,785.68
15,321.60
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings (other

4,822.31

6,952.84

5,824.73 22,052.40

38,086.83 58,529.43 2,263.39

- 1,38,531.93

than debt securities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subordinated

-

-

-

-

-

- 5,000.00

-

5,000.00

liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial liability
1,429.70 1,362.14 1,340.69 2,976.18
4,860.40 1,817.44
13,786.55
towards
securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6,321.36 8,646.39 7,162.36 28,678.81 44,435.22 70,132.55 7,263.39
- 1,72,640.08
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35.13 Liquidity assessment as on April 01, 2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Particulars

Upto 30 /

1 to 2

2 to 3

3 to 6

6 months

1 to 3

3 to 5

Over 5

Total

31 days
months
months
months
to 1 years
years
years
years
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities
72.55 4,394.02
-1.91
-5.87
-3.96 10,920.80
15,375.63
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings (other

2,523.33

2,887.85

3,120.74 12,609.43

19,393.35 29,716.40 2,019.08

276.31

72,546.49

than debt securities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subordinated

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 5,000.00

5,000.00

liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial liability
531.03
514.73
514.73 1,544.18
3,028.91 1,439.04
7,572.62
towards
securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,126.91 7,796.60 3,633.56 14,147.74 22,418.30 42,076.24 2,019.08 5,276.31 1,00,494.74

35.14 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in market interest rates might adversely affect MMFL's ﬁnancial
condition and the changes in interest rates affect MMFL signiﬁcantly. The immediate impact of changes in
interest rates is on earnings (i.e. reported proﬁts) by changing its Net Interest Margin (NIM). The risk from the
earnings perspective can be measured as changes in Net Interest Margin (NIM). In line with RBI guidelines, the
traditional Gap analysis is considered as a suitable method to measure the Interest Rate Risk for MMFL.
In case of MMFL, it may be noted that portfolio loans are not rate sensitive as there is no re-pricing of existing
loans are carried out. Only liabilities in the form of borrowings are rate sensitive and considering the size of
our business, the quantum of impact of change of interest rate of borrowings on liquidity is not signiﬁcant and
can be managed with appropriate treasury action.
On account of COVID-19, the banks are expected to reset the interest rates . The MCLR rates of public sector
banks have dropped marginally after March 2020. Depending on the period of impact of pandemic, the
interest rates could undergo a change. However, MMFL has signiﬁcant exposure to ﬁxed rate borrowings by
way of NCDs and ﬁnancial institution and partial exposure to ﬂoating rate interest loans from banks. These
ﬂoating rate interest rates are reset annually.
The company lends at ﬁxed rates. Hence there is no short term impact of interest rate risk on the company.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible charge in interest rates (all other
variables being constant) of the Group's proﬁt and loss statement.
35.15
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Eﬀect on proﬁt /
Eﬀect on proﬁt /
loss and equity for loss and equity for
Particulars
Basis points
the year 2018-19
the year 2019-20
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-139.73
-105.99
+ 25
Increase in basis points
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
139.73
105.99
- 25
Decrease in basis points
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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35.16 ALM - Funding and Capital Management
35.16 A Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020
Within 12

After 12

Total
SI No. Particulars
months
months
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ASSETS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,024.09
8,024.09
Cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,832.70
2,861.73
5,694.43
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(II) Other receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
112,914.59 70,282.89 183,197.48
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,467.18
993.22
9,460.40
- Securitised assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Derivative Financial Instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,501.95
33.62
4,535.57
Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,186.63
73.64
1,260.27
Other ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non-ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
452.00
452.00
Current tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,223.71
1,223.71
Deferred tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
749.81
749.81
Property, plant and equipment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3.99
162.28
166.27
Right to use assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital work in progress
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Intangible assets under development
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
89.00
89.00
Intangible assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15.05
15.05
Other non-ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
137,946.18 76,921.90 214,868.08
Total assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Derivative Financial Instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprise
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

2,232.08

-

2,232.08

small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(II) Other payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

648.35

-

648.35

small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10,158.74
3,571.18
13,729.92
- Debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
90,790.02 50,974.25 141,764.27
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.39
7,488.24
7,489.63
- Subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7,548.04
531.04
8,079.08
- Financial liability towards securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
85.59
93.88
179.47
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Current tax liabilities (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
121.46
307.47
428.93
Provisions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
149.77
5.86
155.63
Other non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
719.48
719.48
Equity share capital
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 39,441.24
39,441.24
Other equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
111,735.44 103,132.64 214,868.08
Total liabilities and equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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35.16 B Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2019
Within 12

After 12

Total
SI No. Particulars
months
months
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ASSETS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(1) Financial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13,977.71
13,977.71
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,789.29
3,711.18
5,500.47
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Derivative Financial Instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c) Receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(II) Other receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
117,755.52 51,676.68 169,432.20
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
12,054.34
2,661.51
14,715.85
- Securitised assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,000.19
33.62
1,033.81
(e) Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
732.08
60.60
792.68
(f) Other ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Non-ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Current tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,063.77
1,063.77
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
475.92
475.92
(c) Property, plant and equipment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
13.87
102.95
116.82
Right to use assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital work in progress
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Intangible assets under development
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
103.92
103.92
(e) Intangible assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
20.79
20.79
(f) Other non-ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
147,343.79 59,890.15 207,233.94
Total assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(1) Financial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7.21
7.21
Derivative Financial Instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

-

-

-

and small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
954.41
954.41
(II) Other payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

-

-

-

and small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

644.44

-

644.44

small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,535.92
9,785.68
15,321.60
- Debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
77,739.11 60,792.82 138,531.93
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,000.00
5,000.00
(c) - Subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11,969.11
1,817.44
13,786.55
- Financial liability towards securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
53.92
66.35
120.27
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
212.08
212.08
Current tax liabilities (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
103.10
203.86
306.96
(a) Provisions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
127.42
5.86
133.28
(b) Other non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(3) Equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
719.48
719.48
(a) Equity share capital
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 31,495.73
31,495.73
(b) Other equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
97,339.51 109,894.43 207,233.94
Total liabilities and equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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35.16 C Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at April 1, 2018
Within 12

After 12

Total
SI No. Particulars
months
months
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ASSETS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(1) Financial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6,172.41
6,172.41
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,563.65
1,240.17
2,803.82
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Derivative Financial Instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c) Receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(II) Other receivables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
71,262.12 36,696.23 1,07,958.35
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,995.50
2,021.63
8,017.13
- Securitised assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
32.34
32.34
(e) Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
162.00
14.26
176.26
(f) Other ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Non-ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Current tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
720.88
720.88
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4.66
340.21
344.87
(c) Property, plant and equipment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1.74
59.48
61.22
Right to use assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Capital work in progress
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Intangible assets under development
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
23.55
25.03
48.58
(e) Intangible assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
14.26
14.26
(f) Other non-ﬁnancial assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
85,199.89 41,150.23 126,350.12
Total assets
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(1) Financial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
193.35
193.35
Derivative Financial Instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

-

-

-

small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
67.74
67.74
(II) Other payables
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

-

-

-

small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

1,454.53

-

1,454.53

small enterprises
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Borrowings
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4,454.83 10,920.80
15,375.63
- Debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
40,534.70 32,011.79
72,546.49
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,000.00
5,000.00
(c) - Subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6,133.58
1,439.04
7,572.62
- Financial liability towards securitisation
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-128.06
189.28
61.22
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
57.70
57.70
Current tax liabilities (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
78.40
154.06
232.46
(a) Provisions
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
113.98
5.86
119.84
(b) Other non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(3) Equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
719.48
719.48
(a) Equity share capital
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
- 22,949.06
22,949.06
(b) Other equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
52,767.40 73,582.72 126,350.12
Total liabilities and equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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35.17 Risk management structure
Risk is an integral part of our business and sound risk management therefore is critical to our success. As a
ﬁnancial intermediary, the Group are exposed to risks that are particular to the lending that it do and the
environment in which it operate. The Group continuously identify and implement comprehensive policies
and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk. The Group's risk management process is continuously
reviewed, improved and adapted in the context of changing risk scenarios and the agility of our risk
management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk landscape.
The Group assess the ﬁtness of it's risk management process on an event-driven basis.
The Group's risk management process has three components:
The assessment of business risks, operational controls assessment and compliance processes.
Concentration Risk - The Group aims to avoid concentration in both our loan portfolio and our borrowings.
To mitigate concentration risk, it has well deﬁned geographic and lender dependence norms.
Borrowing Dependence Norms In order to reduce dependency on any single lender, the Group has
adopted a cap on borrowings from any single lender at 25%.
35.18 Capital Management
The Group's capital management objectives are
- to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
- to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings
- to provide an adequate return to shareholders
Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efﬁcient overall ﬁnancing
structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the
Group’s various classes of debt. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
IN LAKHS

Particulars
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
171,062.90
172,640.08
100,494.74
Net Debt
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
40,160.72
32,215.21
23,668.54
Total Equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4.26
5.36
4.25
Net debt to total equity
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + subordinated liabilities +
ﬁnancial libilities towards securitization.
Impairment Assessment
The references below show where the Group’s impairment assessment and measurement approach is set
out in this report. It should be read in conjunction with the summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies.
Deﬁnition of default, signiﬁcant increase in credit risk and stage assessment
For the measurement of ECL, Ind AS 109 distinguishes between three impairment stages. All loans need to
be allocated to one of these stages, depending on the increase in credit risk since initial recognition (i.e.
disbursement date):
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Stage 1: includes loans for which the credit risk at the reporting date is in line with the credit risk at the
initial recognition (i.e. disbursement date).
Stage 2: includes loans for which the credit risk at reporting date is signiﬁcantly higher than at the risk at
the initial recognition (Signiﬁcant Increase in Credit Risk).
Stage 3: includes default loans. A loan is considered default at the earlier of (i) the Group considers that the
obligor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realizing collateral (if held); or (ii) the obligor is Past Due more than 90 days on any material credit
obligation to the Group.
The Group offers products with monthly repayment frequency, whereby 30 and above Days Past Due
('DPD') means already 1 missed instalments from the borrower, and accordingly, the Group has identiﬁed
the following stage classiﬁcation to be the most appropriate for its Loans:
Stage 1: 0 to 30 DPD.
Stage 2: 31 to 90 DPD (SICR).
Stage 3: above 90 DPD (Default).
Probability of Default ('PD')
PD describes the probability of a loan to eventually falling into Stage 3. PD %age is calculated for each loan
account separately and is determined by using available historical observations.
PD for stage 1: is derived as %age of all loans in stage 1 moving into stage 3 in 12-months’ time.
PD for stage 2: is derived as %age of all loans in stage 2 moving into stage 3 in the maximum lifetime of the
loans under observation.
PD for stage 3: is derived as 100% considering that the default occurs as soon as the loan becomes overdue
for 90 days which matches the deﬁnition of stage 3.
Exposure at default (EAD)
Exposure at default (EAD) is the sum of outstanding principal and the interest amount accrued but not
received on each loan as at reporting date.
Loss given default (LGD)
LGD is the opposite of recovery rate. LGD = 1 – (Recovery rate). LGD is calculated based on past
observations of Stage 3 loans.
The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash ﬂows due and those that the lender
would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the Exposure at Default.
Grouping ﬁnancial assets measured on a collective basis
The Group believes that the Self Help Group (SHG) loans have shared risk characteristics (i.e.
homogeneous) and Individual loans (IL) have not shared risk characteristics. Therefore, SHG and IL are
treated as two separate groups for the purpose of determining impairment allowance.
Analysis of inputs to the ECL model under multiple economic scenarios
Adjusting the ECL to reﬂect the expected changes (if any) in the economic environment for forward looking
information in the form of management overlay.
Based on the historical loss experience, adjustments need to be made on the average PD computed to give
effect of the current conditions which is done through management overlay by assigning probability
weightages to different scenarios.
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35.19 Foreign currency risk:
In view of the Pandemic and oil prices, the rupee has been weakening against the USD. However as of 31st
March 2020, the company does not have any foreign currency exposure.
36 Financial instruments – Fair values
Accounting classiﬁcation and fair values:
Carrying amounts and fair values of ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy, are presented below. It does not include the fair value information for ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial
liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

IN LAKHS

31.03.2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Carrying
Financial assets
Measured at
amount
Fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
192,657.84
195,846.52
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
FVTPL
4,535.57 4,501.95
33.62
Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
197,193.41 4,501.95 195,846.52
33.62
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31.03.2020
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Carrying
Fair value of ﬁnancial liabilities
Measured at
amount
Fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities
Amortised cost
13,729.92
14,024.46
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
141,764.27
142,805.57
Borrowings other than debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
7,489.63
8,509.28
Subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
162,983.82
165,339.31
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Carrying
Financial assets
Measured at
amount
Fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
184,148.06
187,403.17
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
FVTPL
1,033.81 1,000.19
33.62
33.62
Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
185,181.87 1,000.19 187,436.79
33.62
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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31.03.2019
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Carrying
Fair value of ﬁnancial liabilities
Measured at
amount
Fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
15,321.60
15,625.00
Debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
138,531.93
139,235.00
Borrowings other than debt securities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
5,000.00
5,547.00
Subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
158,853.52
160,407.00
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Carrying
Financial assets
Measured at
amount
Fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
115,975.48
117,866.32
Loans
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
FVTPL
32.34
32.34
Investments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
116,007.82
117,866.32
32.34
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
01.04.2018
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Carrying
Fair value of ﬁnancial liabilities
Measured at
amount
Fair value
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Debt securities
Amortised cost
15,375.63
15,688.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings other than debt securities
Amortised cost
72,546.48
73,473.00
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Amortised cost
5,000.00
5,480.00
Subordinated liabilities
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
92,922.11
94,641.00
Total
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables, loans measured at Amortised cost, other ﬁnancial assets / liabilities,other non-ﬁnancial assets /
liabilities, payables and provisions are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term
nature.
37 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reﬂects the proﬁt / loss after tax and equity share data used in the basic and diluted EPS
calculations:
31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,547.01
Net proﬁt / (loss) after tax as per statement of proﬁt and loss
7,967.16
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,547.01
7,967.16
Net proﬁt / (loss) as above for calculation of basic EPS and diluted EPS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,547.01
7,967.16
Net proﬁt / (loss) for calculation of diluted EPS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
71,94,761
71,94,761
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
71,94,761
71,94,761
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating dilutive EPS
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
118.79
Earnings per share (Rs)
110.74
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
110.74
118.79
Diluted earnings per share (Rs)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
10.00
10.00
Nominal value per share (Rs)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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38 The erstwhile promoters, major shareholders and others signed Share Purchase Agreements with Credit Access
Grameen Limited (NSE: CREDITACC, BSE: 541770) (“CAGL”), India’s leading microﬁnance institution on 27th
November, 2019 enabling CAGL to acquire 76.34% of the Company’s shares. The Directors have approved a
Scheme of Amalgamation of the Company with M/s CreditAccess Grameen Limited (CAGL- Transferee
Company) under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, subject to obtaining the necessary approvals
from the Shareholders, Reserve Bank of India, Securities Exchange Board of India, National Company Law
Tribunal, Lending Institutions and others.
Company received RBI approval for the same on 29th January 2020 pursuant to which 54,42,128 Equity Shares
representing 75.64% of the paid-up Capital of the Company have been acquired by CAGL on 18th March 2020
and the shareholding has further increased to 76.08% as on 31 March 2020.
Consequently, effective 18th March 2020, our company has become a Subsidiary of Credit Access Grameen
Limited. Company will be applying to NCLT post lockdown, and on approval will be merged with CAGL.
39 The approval for re-appointment of Ms. Tara Thiagarajan as the Managing Director of the Holding Company for
the period Oct 2013 to Sep 2016 is pending with the Central Government for approval. The Company has
furnished all the necessary documents/clariﬁcations in this regard to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA).
During this period an amount of INR 1,32,50,024 excluding gratuity was paid to Ms. Tara Thiagarajan as
remuneration. The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic has created a technical delay for obtaining the approval order
from MCA. However, the Company is conﬁdent of getting the approval at earliest based on the recent
communication from MCA.
40 Segment information
The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to members, having similar risks and returns for
the purpose of Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments'. The Company operates in a single geographical
segment i.e. domestic.
IN LAKHS

41 Disclosure relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

31.03.2020
31.03.2019
Particulars
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Interest due on the above remaining unpaid to suppliers
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c) Interest paid during the year in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Amount paid to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payments which
have been paid beyond the appointed but without adding the interest
speciﬁed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmen
Act, 2006
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(f) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(g) Interest remaining due and payable and paid during the year, for
disallowance of deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
42 Additional Information as required under Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as
subsdiary / associates / joint ventures
Net assets, i.e total assets

minus total liabilities
Share in proﬁt or loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
As % of consolidated

As % of consolidated

proﬁt or loss
Amount
proﬁt or loss
Amount
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Parent

100.01%
40,162.83
100.26%
7,988.20
Madura Micro Finance Limited
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subsidiary

-0.01%
-2.12
-0.26%
-21.04
Madura Micro Education Private Limited
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
100.00%
40,160.71
100.00%
7,967.16
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
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43 On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization.
It continues to spread across the country leading to a signiﬁcant decline and volatility in the Indian ﬁnancial
markets and a signiﬁcant decrease in local economic activities. On March 24, 2020, the Indian government
announced a strict 21-day lockdown followed by further extensions of lockdown till 17 may 2020 and various
containment measures.
The Company has made an initial assessment of the impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets and
receivables as at March 31, 2020. The Company’s business is expected to be impacted by lower lending
opportunities and higher credit losses in the coming ﬁnancial years thereby affecting future proﬁtability. Subject
to this, the Company expects to earn interest income from existing loan book during the coming years thereby
recovering the ﬁxed costs likely to be incurred.
Moreover, with various stimulus packages and other measures being announced by the Government to revive
economic activity in the country, company expects business to improve over the next couple of quarters.
In accordance with the Reserve Bank Of India (RBI) guidelines relating to COVID-19 regulatory package dated
April 17’th 2020, the Company has granted moratorium of three months on the payment of all instalments falling
due between March 1 2020 and May 31 2020 to its eligible borrowers based upon a Board approved policy. For
all such accounts where the moratorium is granted, the asset classiﬁcation will remain unchanged during the
moratorium period.
The company makes provision for impairment based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model as per INDAS 109.
Company has revised its ‘Probability of Default’(PD) estimates to factor in the impact of the pandemic and has
created an additional management overlay on ECL as at March 31, 2020.
The Company, based on its initial estimates and assumptions, has provided for the impact of the pandemic on the
Financial Statements. Moreover, due to the uncertainties associated with the pandemic, the actual impact may
not be in line with current estimates. The Company will continue to closely monitor any changes to the estimates
basis future economic conditions. Further, the impact assessment does not indicate any adverse impact on the
ability of the company to continue as a going concern.
44 Disclosure as per Ind AS 101 First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards:
44.01 Overall principle:
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of 1st April, 2018 (the transition
date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items
of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind
AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.
However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions
availed by the Company as detailed below:
44.02 Mandatory exceptions and optional exemption:
Deemed Cost:
The Group has elected to use the written down value of the PPE, intangible on the date of transition as the
cost of PPE.
Classiﬁcation of debt instruments:
The Group has determined the classiﬁcation of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the
amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the
transition date.
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Leases:
The Group as a lessee has applied the provisions of IND AS 116 on lease by lease basis.
The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 for lease terms which ends within 12
months from the date of transition and where management does not have an intention to continue the
lease.
Similarly the Group has also elected not to apply the requirements of IND AS 116 where the underlying
asset value is of low value.
The Group has used Modiﬁed Retrospective Approach to account for lease liability and the
corresponding right of use asset at the transition date.
Classiﬁcation and measurement of ﬁnancial assets:
The Group has classiﬁed the ﬁnancial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.
Impairment of ﬁnancial assets:
The Group has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as
permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that ﬁnancial instruments were initially
recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date.
Further, the Group has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the
date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been signiﬁcant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.
Estimates:
The estimates at April 1, 2018 and at March 31, 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Previous GAAP (after adjustments to reﬂect any differences in accounting policies)
apart from the following items where application of Previous GAAP did not require estimation:
- FVTPL / FVOCI – equity and debt instrument.
- Impairment of ﬁnancial assets based on expected credit loss model.
The estimates used by the Group to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reﬂect conditions
at April 1, 2018, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of March 31, 2019.
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Refer
As at 31.03.2019
note Previous
Ind AS
As at
below GAAP
Adjustments 31.03.2019

Previous
GAAP

As at 01.04.2018
Ind AS
As at
Adjustments
01.04.2018

IN LAKHS

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
13,977.71
13,977.71
6,172.41
6,172.41
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
5,500.47
5,500.47
2,803.82
2,803.82
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c) Receivables
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(I) Trade receivables
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(II) Other receivables
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Loans
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-926.78 169,432.20 108,744.76
-786.41
107,958.35
- Loan portfolio (excluding securitised assets)
1&2 170,358.98
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2,628.13
12,087.72
14,715.85
1,219.45
6,797.67
8,017.12
- Securitised assets
7
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(e) Derivative Financial Instruments
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(f) Investments
1,020.19
13.62
1,033.81
20.00
12.34
32.34
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(g) Other ﬁnancial assets
255.49
537.17
792.66
176.26
176.26
7
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Non-ﬁnancial assets
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Current tax assets (net)
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)
1,011.59
52.18
1,063.77
390.40
330.48
720.88
5
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c) Property, plant and equipment
475.93
475.93
344.87
344.87
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d) Right to use assets
116.82
116.82
61.22
61.22
6
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(e) Capital work in progress
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(f) Intangible assets under development
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(g) Intangible assets
103.93
103.93
48.59
48.59
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(h) Other non-ﬁnancial assets
20.79
20.79
14.26
14.26
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
195,353.21
11,880.73 207,233.94 119,934.82
6,415.30
126,350.12
Total assets
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

(1)

...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
ASSETS
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Sr. Particulars
No.

45 Reconciliation of equity as at Mar 31, 2019:

Notes
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Previous
GAAP

As at 01.04.2018
Ind AS
As at
Adjustments
01.04.2018

...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Financial liabilities
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7.21
7.21
193.35
193.35
(1) Derivative Financial Instruments
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Payables
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) (I) Trade payables
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
954.41
954.41
67.74
67.74
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
and small enterprises
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(II) Other payables
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
644.08
0.36
644.44
1,454.53
1,454.53
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
and small enterprises
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Borrowings
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
15,374.85
-53.25
15,321.60
15,436.74
-61.11
15,375.63
(c) - Debt securities
1
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
-518.66 138,531.93
72,806.56
-260.07
72,546.49
- Borrowings (other than debt securities)
1 139,050.59
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00
5,000.00
- Subordinated liabilities
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1,730.90
12,055.65
13,786.55
695.82
6,876.80
7,572.62
- Financial liability towards securitisation
7
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
120.27
120.27
61.22
61.22
Other ﬁnancial liabilities
6
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(d)
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
212.09
212.09
57.70
57.70
(2) Current tax liabilities (net)
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
306.96
306.96
455.58
-223.12
232.46
(a) Provisions
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
133.28
133.28
119.84
119.84
(b) Other non-ﬁnancial liabilities
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(c)
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Equity
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
719.48
719.48
719.48
719.48
(3) Equity share capital
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
31,219.36
276.35
31,495.72
22,927.48
21.58
22,949.06
(a) Other equity
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
195,353.21
11,880.73 207,233.94 119,934.82
6,415.30
126,350.12
(b) Total liabilities and equity
...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Refer
As at 31.03.2019
note Previous
Ind AS
As at
below GAAP
Adjustments 31.03.2019

IN LAKHS

Notes
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46 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31.03.2019
Sr. Particulars
No.

Refer
note
below

For the year ended 31st March 2019

Previous
Ind AS
IndAS
GAAP
Adjustments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
I Revenue from operations
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Interest income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1
35,045.70
- Interest on loans
-394.13
34,651.57
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7
857.56
- Income on securitisation
1,017.62
1,875.18
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
72.59
- Income from portfolio purchased for assignment
72.59
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
286.61
- Interest on deposits with banks and ﬁnancial institutions
286.61
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
26.50
26.50
(b) Fees and commission
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
68.11
68.11
(c) Sale of Service
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
0.30
0.30
(d) Dividend income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
327.31
1.28
328.59
(e) Net gain on fair value changes
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7
209.09
1.18
210.27
(f) Bad debts Recoverd
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7
108.53
526.13
634.66
(g) Others
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
37,002.30
Total revenue from operations (I)
1,152.08
38,154.38
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
522.90
522.90
II Other income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
37,525.20
1,152.08
38,677.28
III Total income (I+II)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
IV Expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) Finance costs
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
1
14,668.36
- On borrowings
-242.34
14,426.02
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
7
- On ﬁnancial liability towards securitisation
565.52
565.52
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
2
3,426.53
77.66
3,504.19
(b) Impairment of ﬁnancial instruments
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3
4,638.45
-0.07
4,638.38
(c) Employee beneﬁts expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6
301.38
57.52
358.90
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
6
3,038.80
-62.45
2,976.35
(e) Other expenses
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
26,073.54
Total expenses (IV)
395.82
26,469.36
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
11,451.66
756.26
12,207.92
V Proﬁt before tax (III-IV)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
VI Tax expense
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,932.72
(1) Current tax
3,932.72
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
71.35
(2) Earlier year tax
71.35
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
5
-621.19
(2) Deferred tax
278.03
-343.16
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
3,382.88
Total tax expense (VI)
278.03
3,660.91
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
8,068.78
478.23
8,547.01
VII Proﬁt / (loss) for the year (V-VI)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
4
VIII Other comprehensive income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(a) (1) Items that will not be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
- Remeasurement (losses) and gains on deﬁned beneﬁt
-0.08
-0.08
obligations (net)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassiﬁed
-0.26
-0.26
to proﬁt or loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subtotal (a)
-0.34
-0.34
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(b) (1) Items that will be reclassiﬁed to proﬁt or loss
- Net change in fair value of loans measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
(2) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassiﬁed to
proﬁt or loss
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Subtotal (b)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Other comprehensive income (VIII = a+b)
-0.34
-0.34
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
IX Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII) (comprising proﬁt /

8,068.78

477.89

8,546.67

(loss) and other comprehensive income for the year)
...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Madura Micro Finance Consolidated Financial Statements

266

Notes
Notes
1 EIR on loans and borrowings:
Under Previous GAAP, loan processing fees received in connection with loans portfolios were recognized upfront
and credited to proﬁt or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, loan processing fee is credited to proﬁt and loss using the
effective interest rate method (amortising the processings over the period of the loan). The unamortized portion of
loan processing fee is adjusted from the loan portfolio.
For Borrowings under Previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised
upfront and charged to proﬁt or loss for the period. Under IndAS, transaction costs are included in the initial
recognition amount of ﬁnancial liability and charged to proﬁt or loss using the effective interest method.
2 Expected credit losses on loans:
Under Previous GAAP, the Company has created provision for loans and advances based on the provisioning
norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India in NBFC Master Directions. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance
has been determined based on Expected Credit Loss model (ECL). Loans unders ecurutisation and guarantees
which were earlier off balance sheet items have now been classiﬁed under loans based on risk retained and
impairment allowance has been done on such items also. The differential impact has been adjusted in Retained
earning/ Proﬁt and loss during the year. Under Previous GAAP, contingent provision against standard assets and
provision for non-performing assets were presented under provisions. However, under Ind AS, ﬁnancial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL are presented net of provision for expected credit losses.
3 Deﬁned beneﬁt obligations:
Both under Previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment deﬁned
beneﬁt plan on an actuarial basis. Under Previous GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are
charged to proﬁt or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net deﬁned beneﬁt liability and the return on plan
assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net deﬁned beneﬁt liability] are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI.
4 Other comprehensive income:
Under Previous GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately. Hence, it
has reconciled Previous GAAP proﬁt or loss to proﬁt or proﬁt or loss as per Ind AS. Further, Previous GAAP proﬁt
or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.
5 Deferred tax:
Previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on
differences between taxable proﬁts and accounting proﬁts for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account
for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach
has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Previous
GAAP.
In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting
policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of equity.
6 Lease accounting:
Under the previous GAAP, the lease rentals on operating leases were accounted as rent. Under the Ind AS, a Right
to Use of asset and lease liability are created and depreciation is charged on the Right to use of asset and ﬁnance
cost is charged on lease liability.
The company has exhanged lease rentals and depreciation on assets accounted under Ind AS 116 and lease rentals
on other assets as rent expense.
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7 Assignment & Securitisation transactions:
Under the previous GAAP the company derecognised Assignment transactions and accounted for Excess interest
spread (EIS) as and when the interests were collected. Under Ind AS inview of signiﬁcant risk being transferred to
the Asignee, the EIS is accounted upfront on the sale of the portfolio. This income is credited to the Proﬁt and Loss
account.
Under the previous GAAP the company derecognised Securitisation transactions and accounted for income as and
when the interest and the Excess interest spread were received.Under Ind AS, since the risk is retained with the
company the securitised portfolio is recognised in the books and the income under securitised portfolios is
accounted using the effective interest rate method.
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